
 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend committee meetings. However, occasionally, committees 
may have to consider some business in private. Copies of agendas, minutes and reports are available 
on request in Braille, in large print, on audio tape, on computer disk or in other languages. 

 

 
 

Public Accounts Select Committee 

Agenda 
 
Thursday, 30 June 2022 
7.00 pm, Civic Suite, Lewisham Town Hall, London SE6 4RU 
 
For more information contact: Timothy Andrew 
(timothy.andrew@lewisham.gov.uk) 020 8134 7916 
 
This meeting is an open meeting and all items on the agenda may be audio 
recorded and/or filmed. 
 

Part 1 
 
Item  Pages 

 
1.   Election of the Chair and Vice-Chair 

 
 

2.   Minutes of the meeting held on 17 March 2022 
 

3 – 6 

3.   Declarations of interest 
 

7 – 10 

4.   Responses from Mayor and Cabinet 
There are none to report. 
 

 

5.   Financial outturn report 2021-22 
 

11 – 45 

6.   Financial monitoring 2022-23 
 

47 – 70 

7.   Medium term financial strategy 
 

71 – 105 

8.   Select Committee work programme 
 

107 - 136 

Public Document Pack



 

Public Accounts Select Committee 
Members 

 
Members of the committee, listed below, are summoned to attend the meeting 
to be held on Thursday, 30 June 2022.  
 
Kim Wright, Chief Executive 

Wednesday, 22 June 2022 
 
  

Councillor James Rathbone (Chair)  

Councillor Rudi Schmidt (Vice-Chair)  

Councillor Eva Kestner  

Councillor Joan Millbank  

Councillor John Paschoud  

Councillor Eva Stamirowski  

Councillor Susan Wise  

Councillor Mark Ingleby (ex-Officio)  

Councillor Ese Erheriene (ex-Officio)  
  

   



 

 

 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 
SELECT COMMITTEE 
Thursday, 17 March 2022 at 7.00 pm 

 
 

IN ATTENDANCE:  Councillors Mark Ingleby (Chair), Jim Mallory, Joan Millbank and 
James Royston 

 
ALSO JOINING THE MEETING VIRTUALLY: Councillor Alan Hall (Vice-Chair) 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Paul Maslin (Chair of Overview and Scrutiny), Councillor James 
Rathbone, Timothy Andrew (Scrutiny Manager), David Austin (Director of Corporate 
Services), Rich Clarke (Head of Assurance) and Kathy Freeman (Executive Director for 
Corporate Resources) 
 
ALSO PRESENT VIRTUALLY: Councillor Amanda De Ryk (Cabinet Member for 
Finance), Barry Bugden (Social Value Officer), Raymond Kinsella (Principal Business 
Development Officer), Katharine Nidd (Head of Financial Strategy, Planning and 
Commercial) and Nick Penny (Head of Service Finance) 
 
NB: Those Councillors listed as joining virtually were not in attendance for the purposes 
of the meeting being quorate, any decisions taken or to satisfy the requirements of s85 
Local Government Act 1972 
 
1. Minutes of the meeting held on 27 January 2022 

 
1.1 Resolved: that the minutes of the meeting held on 27 January be agreed as 

an accurate record. 
 

2. Declarations of interest 
 
2.1 Councillor Ingleby declared an interest as a trustee of the Goldsmith’s 

Community Association – in relation to any discussion at the meeting 
regarding business rates.  

 
3. Responses from Mayor and Cabinet 

 
3.1 Members asked Kathy Freeman (Executive Director for Corporate 

Resources) to provide an overview of her section 25 statement on the 
robustness of the Council’s budget. 

 
3.2 Kathy Freeman provided an overview of the statement, noting its key 

elements – including: economic factors; risks to the budget; cost pressures; 
shortfalls in income and the impacts of the pandemic; organisational capacity 
and resilience; the capital programme; the future uncertainty in local 
government finance and the impact of legislative changes as well as the 
priorities of the Future Lewisham Programme. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

 
 
 

2 

3.3 In response to a question from the Committee, Kathy Freeman emphasised 
the ongoing level of risk and the uncertainties facing the Council. 

 
3.4 Resolved: that the response from Mayor and Cabinet be noted. 
 

4. Financial Forecasts 
 
4.1 Nick Penny (Head of Service Finance) introduced the report – noting the 

level of overspending in the Council’s budget and areas of ongoing pressure. 
He highlighted children’s and adult social care and the remaining spending 
from pandemic related funding. 

 
4.2 Nick Penny and Kathy Freeman responded to questions from the Committee 

– the following key points were noted: 

 There had been a slight improvement in the budget overspend for 
children’s social care. 

 There had also been a reduction in overspending the adult social care 
division due to: direct payment refunds; funding from health partners and 
management action. There was no expectation of savings from the adult 
social care review in this financial year. 

 Transport services were a particular area of cost pressure. 

 There were no longer significant cost pressures in the environment 
division. 

 Works carried out on Lewisham Homes’ leaseholder properties were 
carried out by contractors and then billed to leaseholders. It was proposed 
in future that the works were billed upfront (as was the case at many other 
local authorities). The position of the housing revenue account would 
improve when funds for works were received from leaseholders. 

 Work was taking place to increase the number of specialist placements in 
the borough for children with complex needs to attend local schools. 

 Work was taking place with Lewisham Homes to manage the costs 
associated with repairs and maintenance. Improved governance 
arrangements were also in place to monitor spending. 

 The adult social care programme had identified a number of areas in 
which it should be possible to achieve efficiencies and savings. 

 Funding was still being held for borough wide community equalities 
programmes. 

 Additional work would need to take place to realise savings from the 
Oracle programme. 

 
4.3 Councillor Amanda de Ryk (Cabinet Member for Finance) addressed the 

Committee. She noted the difficult financial situation facing the Council as 
well as the challenges facing officers in meeting increased demand with 
fewer people. 

 
4.4 Resolved: that the report be noted. It was also agreed that further 

information would be available at the next meeting regarding mitigations for 
overspending on schools placements and repairs and maintenance at 
Lewisham Homes. 

 

Page 4



 

 
 
 

3 

 
5. Audit Panel Update 

 
5.1 Councillor Rathbone introduced the item – noting his thanks to the Panel’s 

independent members and to councillor colleagues for their work over the 
year. 

 
5.2 Rich Clarke (Head of Assurance) introduced the report – noting key issues 

from the Panel’s recent meeting (which were not covered in the report). 
 
5.3 Rich Clarke and David Austin (Director of Corporate Services) responded to 

questions from the Committee – the following key points were noted: 

 Work was taking place to develop additional internal control measures. 

 Efforts were being made to recruit additional independent Audit Panel 
members. 

 Grant Thornton (the Council’s external auditors) had issued a draft of the 
value for money statement for review – it was anticipated that this would 
be formally signed off in June. 

 The Catford Regeneration Partnership Ltd continued to oversee the 
meanwhile use of Catford shopping centre. Work would take place to 
further develop and formalise its future functions, an update would be 
included in the forthcoming update of the Partnership’s business plan. 

 
5.4 In Committee discussions the following key points were also noted: 

 The joint work between the Panel and the Committee on issues raised by 
internal audit was welcome. 

 The importance of independent members of audit, the potential value of 
an internal control board and the need to ensure that there are robust 
governance measures in place. 

 
5.5 Resolved: that the report be noted. 
 

6. Local Supply Chain Update 
 
6.1 Katherine Nidd (Head of Financial Strategy, Planning and Commercial) 

introduced the report – noting achievements and milestones over the past 
four years. She emphasised the importance of the ‘Lewisham Deal’ of key 
public sector partners in the borough to support inclusive economic 
development. 

 
6.2 Katherine Nidd, Raymond Kinsella (Principal Business Development Officer) 

and Barry Budgen (Social Value Officer) responded to questions from the 
Committee – the following key points were noted: 

 New initiatives were being trialled to support smaller business and 
organisations to access procurement opportunities. 

 Focused work was taking place with businesses in different sectors to 
develop and encourage business growth and resilience. 

 Social value monitoring was being carried out through a number of 
Council contracts. It was intended that in the next two years, all Council 
contracts would include deliverable social value measures. 

Page 5



 

 
 
 

4 

 Procurement was only one of the elements of community wealth building 
and social value. 

 
6.3 In Committee discussions – the following key points were also noted: 

 Members thanked officers for their work and dedication over the past four 
years. 

 There was potential to grow green industries. 

 Recent work at Overview and Scrutiny Committee (drawing on the work of 
the New Economics Foundation) was relevant to this work. 

 There were a number of other issues (including assets and digital 
inclusion) that were relevant to social value. 

 
6.4 Resolved: that the report be noted – and that officers be thanked and 

commended for their work. 
 

7. Select Committee work programme 
 
7.1 The Committee considered the final work programme report of the 

administration. 
 
7.2 The following work programme suggestions were made for consideration by 

members of the committee in the new administration: 

 Zero based budgeting; 

 Capital programme financing; 

 Section 106 and CIL (auditing section 106 funding); 

 Housing Revenue Account business planning; 

 Local supply chains; 

 Strategic partnership working (and engagement with land owners); 

 Green economy and circular economy; 

 Food strategy;  

 Reporting back to the Audit Panel on its concerns; 

 Staff culture, income generation and commercialisation; 
 
7.3 Resolved: that the work programme report be noted – and that the 

suggestions made be put forward for consideration by members of the 
Committee in the new administration. 

 
 
The meeting ended at 9pm 
 
 
Chair:  
 ---------------------------------------------------- 
 
Date: 
 ---------------------------------------------------- 

Page 6



 

 

Public Accounts Select Committee 

 

1. Summary 

1.1. Members must declare any personal interest they have in any item on the 
agenda. There are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s 
Member Code of Conduct: 

(1)  Disclosable pecuniary interests 

(2)  Other registerable interests 

(3)  Non-registerable interests. 

1.2. Further information on these is provided in the body of this report. 

2. Recommendation 

2.1. Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the 
agenda. 

Declarations of Interest 

Date: 2022-23 

Key decision: No 

Class: Part 1 (not restricted)  

Ward(s) affected: All (none specific) 

Contributor: Jeremy Chambers (Director of Law, Governance and Elections) 

 

) 

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the 
agenda. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



  

3. Disclosable pecuniary interests  

3.1 These are defined by regulation as: 

(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or 
gain 

(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 
by the Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in 
the register in respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as 
a member or towards your election expenses (including payment or 
financial benefit  from a Trade Union). 

(c) Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they 
are a partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the 
securities of which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for 
goods, services or works. 

(d)  Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 

(e)  Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 

(f)   Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the 
Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a 
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of 
which they have a beneficial interest.   

(g)   Beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 

(a)  that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land 
in the borough; and  

(b)  either: 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 
of the total issued share capital of that body; or 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person* has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued 
share capital of that class. 

*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a 
person with whom they live as spouse or civil partner.  

4. Other registerable interests 

4.1 The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register the 
following interests: 

(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which you 
were appointed or nominated by the Council 

(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to charitable 
purposes, or whose principal purposes include the influence of public 
opinion or policy, including any political party 

Page 8



  

(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an 
estimated value of at least £25. 

5. Non registerable interests 

5.1. Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be likely 
to affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close associate more 
than it would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area generally, but which is 
not required to be registered in the Register of Members’ Interests (for example a 
matter concerning the closure of a school at which a Member’s child attends).  

6. Declaration and impact of interest on members’ participation 

6.1. Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are present 
at a meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must declare the nature 
of the interest at the earliest opportunity and in any event before the matter is 
considered. The declaration will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. If the 
matter is a disclosable pecuniary interest the member must take not part in 
consideration of the matter and withdraw from the room before it is considered. 
They must not seek improperly to influence the decision in any way. Failure to 
declare such an interest which has not already been entered in the Register 
of Members’ Interests, or participation where such an interest exists, is 
liable to prosecution and on conviction carries a fine of up to £5000  
 

6.2. Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable 
pecuniary interest they must still declare the nature of the interest to the meeting 
at the earliest opportunity and in any event before the matter is considered, but 
they may stay in the room, participate in consideration of the matter and vote on 
it unless paragraph 6.3 below applies. 

6.3. Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, the member must consider whether a reasonable member of 
the public in possession of the facts would think that their interest is so significant 
that it would be likely to impair the member’s judgement of the public interest. If 
so, the member must withdraw and take no part in consideration of the matter nor 
seek to influence the outcome improperly. 

6.4. If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a member, 
their, family, friend or close associate more than it would affect those in the local 
area generally, then the provisions relating to the declarations of interest and 
withdrawal apply as if it were a registerable interest.   

6.5. Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s personal 
judgement, though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek the advice of the 
Monitoring Officer. 

7. Sensitive information  

7.1. There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are interests 
the disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk of violence 
or intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such interest need 
not be registered. Members with such an interest are referred to the Code and 
advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

Page 9



  

8.  Exempt categories 

8.1. There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in 
decisions notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing so. 
These include:- 

(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the matter 
relates to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears exception) 

(b)  School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a 
parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor 
unless the matter relates particularly to the school your child attends or 
of which you are a governor 

(c)   Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 

(d)   Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  

(e)  Ceremonial honours for members 

(f)   Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception). 

9.  Report author and contact  
 

9.1.  Jeremy Chambers, Director of Law, Governance and Elections - Jeremy 
Chambers@lewisham.gov.uk, 020 83147648  

 

Page 10

mailto:stephen.gerrard@lewisham.gov.uk
mailto:stephen.gerrard@lewisham.gov.uk


 

 

Public Accounts Select Committee 

 

Financial Outturn Report 2021/22 
 

Date: 15th June 2022 

Key decision: No 

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Executive Director for Corporate Resources, Director for Finance and Head 

of Strategic Finance, Planning and Commercial 

Outline and recommendations 

This report presents the financial outturn for the 2021/22 financial year.  

The report covers the outturn position on the Council’s General Fund, Dedicated 
Schools Grant, Housing Revenue Account, Collection Fund and Capital Programme.  

Public Accounts Select Committee is recommended to: 

Note the final report was approved at Mayor and Cabinet on the 15 June 2022 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Timeline of engagement and decision-making 

15 June 2022 – Financial Outturn for 2021/22 – report to Mayor & Cabinet (M&C) 

30 June 2022 – Financial outturn for 2021/22 – report to Public Accounts Select 
Committee for info 

30 June 2022 - First 2022/23 financial monitoring report to Public Accounts Select 

 

 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. As per Appendix 1, the Financial Outturn report 2021/22 presented to Mayor and 
Cabinet on the 15 June 2022.  

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. Public Accounts Select Committee is recommended to: 

2.2. Note the outturn report which was approved Mayor and Cabinet on the 15 June 
2022. 

 

3.  POLICY CONTEXT 

3.1. As per Appendix 1, the Financial Outturn report 2021/22 presented to Mayor and 
Cabinet on the 15 June 2022.  

 

4. MAIN BODY REPORTSTRUCTURE OF THE REPORT 

4.1. As per Appendix 1, the Financial Outturn report 2021/22 presented to Mayor and 
Cabinet on the 15 June 2022.  

 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 

5.1. As per Appendix 1, the Financial Outturn report 2021/22 presented to Mayor and 
Cabinet on the 15 June 2022.  

 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1. As per Appendix 1, the Financial Outturn report 2021/22 presented to Mayor and 
Cabinet on the 15 June 2022.  

 

7. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

7.1. As per Appendix 1, the Financial Outturn report 2021/22 presented to Mayor and 
Cabinet on the 15 June 2022.  

Page 12

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

8. CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

8.1. As per Appendix 1, the Financial Outturn report 2021/22 presented to Mayor and 
Cabinet on the 15 June 2022.  

9. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

9.1. As per Appendix 1, the Financial Outturn report 2021/22 presented to Mayor and 
Cabinet on the 15 June 2022.  

 

10. HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS  

10.1. As per Appendix 1, the Financial Outturn report 2021/22 presented to Mayor and 
Cabinet on the 15 June 2022.  

 

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

11.1. Budget Report 2021/22 – Full Council 3 March 2021 
https://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s77544/Council%20Budget%
202021-2022.pdf 

 

12. GLOSSARY  

 

13. REPORT AUTHOR AND CONTACT 

13.1. For more information please contact David Austin, Director of Finance at 
david.austin@lewisham.gov.uk; or Nick Penny, Head of Service Finance 
nick.penny@lewisham.gov.uk 

 

APPENDIX 1 

Financial Outturn Report 2021/22 

 

Page 13

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
mailto:david.austin@lewisham.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Mayor and Cabinet 

 

 

Financial Outturn Report 2021/22 

Date: Wednesday 15 June 2022 

Key decision: No 

Class: Part 1 

Ward(s) affected: None Specific 

Contibutors: Executive Director for Corporate Resources 

Outline and recommendations 

This report presents the financial outturn for the 2021/22 financial year.  

The report covers the outturn position on the Council’s General Fund, Dedicated 
Schools Grant, Housing Revenue Account, Collection Fund and Capital Programme.  

The Council-wide outturn for General Fund activities is an overspend of £25.7m.This 
position consists of Covid related expenditure or income foregone of £25.2m which is 
met entirely by Covid grant funding which leaves a business as usual remaining 
overspend of £0.5m.  

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) has a surplus of £1.6m which enables a 
reduction in the budgeted drawdown from HRA reserves.  

The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) is currently forecasted to overspend by a 
cumulative £10.4m at the end of the financial year (£5.4m in 2021/22 with £5m 
brought forward from 2020/21).  

The General Fund Capital Programme spend is £42.2m, which is 67% of the revised 

budget of £66.3m and the HRA Capital Programme spend is £82.8m, which is 70% of 

the budget of £115.9m.  The unspent budget is largely due to delayed expenditure on 

the programme with the budget transferred into 2022/23.  

 

At the 31 March, 92.4% of council tax due had been collected which remains (2.6% 
or £4.2m) adrift of the targeted level, at the same date, 94% of business rates due 
had been collected which remains (5% or £2.8m) adrift of the targeted level.  
Collection activities continue alongside billing for the new financial year in 2022/23. 

The Council routinely sets aside funding in the accounts for uncollectable debt 
consistent with the policies audited by the external auditors.  In recent years these 
balances have not been cleared down and the older debts written off.  The report 
notes the amount fully provided for of £42m to be written off, the majority under 
delegation, but with Mayor and Cabinet approval sought for £1m of individual debts 
each over £50k.  

 
Page 15



 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Timeline of engagement and decision-making 

February 2022 – Budget Report 2022/23 to Mayor and Cabinet 
 
15 June 2022 – Financial Outturn report 2021/22 to Mayor and Cabinet 
 
 

 

 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report sets out the financial outturn for 2021/22 at the end of March 2022.  The report 

compares the final outturn position to the position reported as part of the budget report to 

Mayor and Cabinet in February.  The key areas to note are as follows: 

 

1.2 There is a forecast overspend of £0.5m against the Directorates’ net general fund revenue 

budget, after the application of £25.2m Covid grant funding to support the local authority’s 

response to the Covid pandemic.  This is a £2.4m improvement on the position reported to 

Mayor and Cabinet in February as part of the Budget Report for 2022/23.  The 

improvement is explained in detail in paragraph 4.2.  

 

1.3 The Council has received £18.7m of covid funding in 2021/22 which alongside £12.4m of 
covid funding carried forward from 2020/21 totals £31.1m.  This funding has been used 
to cover £25.2m of expenditure incurred or income forgone with £5.5m of grant funding 
unspent.  Of the unspent £5.5m, £4.4m is Local Authority Support Grant or Contain 
Outbreak Management Fund which is ringfenced to use against the ongoing impact of 
Covid in 2022/23.  The remaining £1.1m relates to grants which were ringfenced for 
specific activity or expenditure and for which the Council has not incurred the full value of 
qualifying expenditure to meet the level of grant awarded, this will be returned to the 
relevant funding bodies in 2022/23. This is set out in more detail in section 5 of the 
report.  

1.4      The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) has a surplus of £1.6m after several favourable 

movements close to year end.  This is set out in more detail in section 12 of the report. 

 

1.5 The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) following the high needs secondary transfer 

            process is currently forecast to overspend by a cumulative £10.4m at the end of 

  the financial year (£5.4m in 2021/22 with £5m brought forward).  This is set out in more 

detail in section 13 of the report.  

 

1.6 The General Fund Capital Programme spend as at 31 March 2022 is £42.2m, which is 67% 

of the revised budget of £66.3m which was approved at Mayor and Cabinet in February. 

The HRA Capital Programme spend as at 31 March 2022 is £82.8m, which is 70% of the 

budget of £115.9m revised and approved at Mayor and Cabinet in February. The unspent 

budget is largely due to delayed expenditure on the programme with the budget slipped into 

2022/23.  This is set out in more detail in section 14 of the report.  

 

1.7 As at 31 March, 92.4% of council tax due had been collected which remains (2.6% or 

£4.2m) adrift of the targeted level.  At the same date, 94% of business rates due had been 

collected which remains (5% or £2.8m) adrift of the targeted level.  This is set out in more 

detail in section 15 of the report.  

 

Page 16

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

2. PURPOSE AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to set out the financial outturn for 2021/22 providing a 

comparison to the financial position reported to Mayor and Cabinet as part of the Budget 

Setting report, as part of the preparation of the draft financial statements underway to be 

available for audit from the 1 July 2022. 

  

2.2 Mayor and Cabinet are asked to:  

2.2.1 Note the Outturn Position for 2021/22, including the utilisation of Covid funding to mitigate 

expenditure incurred or income forgone as a result of Covid, as summarised in section 4 

with additional detail in the subsequent sections of the report.  

2.2.2 Note, as part of routine financial year closing work, the proposed write-off of debts under 

delegation as detailed in section 16. 

2.2.3 Agree the proposed write off of the specific debts each over £50k as detailed in section 16 

with supporting detail in Appendix C.  

 

3. POLICY CONTEXT  

3.1 This financial position demonstrates the impact of the very severe financial constraints 

which have been imposed on Council services with the cuts made year on year, despite the 

increasing demand to deliver services to the borough’s residents. 

 

3.2 The Council's strategy and priorities drive the Budget with changes in resource allocation 

determined in accordance with policies and strategy.  The Council launched its current 

Corporate Strategy in 2018, with seven corporate priorities as stated below: 

 

3.3 Corporate Priorities 

 Open Lewisham - Lewisham will be a place where diversity and cultural heritage is 

recognised as a strength and is celebrated. 

 Tackling the housing crisis - Everyone has a decent home that is secure and 

affordable. 

 Giving children and young people the best start in life - Every child has access to 

an outstanding and inspiring education, and is given the support they need to keep 

them safe, well and able to achieve their full potential. 

 Building and inclusive local economy - Everyone can access high-quality job 

opportunities, with decent pay and security in our thriving and inclusive local economy. 

 Delivering and defending health, social care and support - Ensuring everyone 

receives the health, mental health, social care and support services they need. 

 Making Lewisham greener - Everyone enjoys our green spaces, and benefits from a 

healthy environment as we work to protect and improve our local environment. 

 Building safer communities - Every resident feels safe and secure living here as we 

work together towards a borough free from the fear of crime. 

 

3.4 Values are critical to the Council’s role as an employer, regulator, and securer of services 

and steward of public funds.  The Council’s values shape interactions and behaviours 

across the organisational hierarchy, between officers, and members, between the council 

and partners and between the council and citizens.  In delivering our duties, we are guided 

by the Council's four core values: 

Page 17

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 

 We put service to the public first 

 We respect all people and all communities 

 We invest in employees 

 We are open, honest, and fair in all we do.  

 

3.5 The Council’s strong and resilient framework for prioritising action has served the 

organisation well in the face of austerity and on-going cuts to local government spending. 

This continues to mean, that even in the face of the most daunting financial challenges 

facing the Council and its partners, we continue to work alongside our communities to 

achieve more than we could by simply working alone. 

 

3.6 This joint endeavour helps work through complex challenges, such as the pressures faced 

by health and social care services, and to secure investment in the borough, for new 

homes, school improvements, regenerating town centres, renewed leisure opportunities 

and improvement in the wider environment.  This work has and continues to contribute 

much to improve life chances and life opportunities across the borough through improved 

education opportunities, skills development and employment.  There is still much more that 

can be done to realise our ambitions for the future of the borough; ranging from our work to 

support housing supply and business growth, through to our programmes of care and 

support to some of our most vulnerable and troubled families. 

 

3.8 The pace, scope and scale of change has been immense: the pandemic has demanded 

agility, creativity, pace, leadership, organisational and personal resilience, strong 

communications and an unerring focus on the right priorities.  The service and finance 

challenges arising from Covid are now blending with the wider economic implications of a 

decade of austerity, the trading changes arising from Brexit, and now the impacts arising 

from other global events (e.g. war in Ukraine, Covid lock downs in China, extreme climate 

events in India, etc..) impacting the supply of energy, goods and services and driving up 

inflation.   

3.9 Within the Council, the impact of the Covid pandemic is felt acutely across all of our service 

areas and throughout the year we have been grappling with real challenges in how we keep 

services running for our residents and how we protect the most vulnerable.  Across the 

borough, residents are looking afresh at our borough, their neighbourhoods, and seeing 

where they live through new eyes. 

3.10 While we do not yet fully understand what all of the long-term implications of Covid will 

mean for the borough, there have been many clear and visible impacts of the pandemic on 

our residents, Lewisham the place and also the Council.  We know that coronavirus has 

disproportionately affected certain population groups in Lewisham, matching patterns that 

have been identified nationally and internationally: older residents, residents born in the 

Americas & the Caribbean, Africa or the Middle East & Asia, and residents in the most 

deprived areas of the borough have considerably higher death rates.  We know that more 

Lewisham residents are claiming unemployment benefits compared to the beginning of this 

year and that food insecurity has increased in the borough. 

 

 

 

 

Page 18

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

4. GENERAL FUND OUTTURN POSITION 

4.1 The Council is reporting an overspend on general fund activities of £25.7m. This includes  

Covid related expenditure or income foregone of £25.2m which is met by Covid grant 

funding and a general fund ‘Business as Usual’ (BAU) overspend of £0.5m.  

Table 1 – General Fund Outturn Position  

General Fund 
Net 

budget 

Outturn 
Full 
Year 

Forecast 
Variance 

Over/ 
(Under) 

 Covid-
19 

related 
Variance 

Business 
as Usual 
Outturn 
Over/ 

(Under) 

Projected 
Outturn 

in 
Budget 
report 
Over/ 

(Under) 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Children & Young People  59.0 64.0 5.0 4.4 0.6 0.4 

Community Services 81.8 96.5 14.7 13.4 1.3 2.9 

Housing, Regeneration 
and Public Realm 

22.5 26.7 4.2 4.8 (0.6)  (0.4)  

Corporate Resources 33.1 35.4 2.3 2.5 (0.2)  0.1 

Chief Executives 11.2 10.7 (0.5)  0.1 (0.6)  (0.1)  

Directorate Totals 207.6 233.3 25.7 25.2 0.5 2.9 

Covid-19 Government 
Grant Income - Applied 

N/A (25.2)  (25.2)  (25.2)  0.0 0.0 

Corporate Items 35.5 35.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Net Revenue Budget 243.1 243.6 0.5 0.0 0.5 2.9 

 

4.2 The Business as Usual movement since the position reported to Mayor and Cabinet in 

February is detailed below by Directorate: 

 Children and Young People: £0.2m adverse movement due to additional expenditure 

on Transport Services. 

 Community Services: £1.6m favourable movement due to winter package costs being 

less than had being forecast.  

 Housing, Regeneration and Public Realm: £0.2m favourable movement due to lower 

tonnage levels within Waste Services. 

 Corporate Resources: £0.3m favourable movement due to staffing vacancies and 

minor underspends across the service. 

 Chief Executives: £0.5m favourable movement due to staffing vacancies and prudent 

budget management. 

4.3 As in previous years, any overspend in service budgets must be funded through the use of 

corporate provision budgets where there is capacity, or the use of reserves.  For 2021/22 

Page 19

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

we were able to fund the BAU overspend from provisions without an unplanned drawing 

down of reserves. 

5. COVID GRANT FUNDING AND UTILISATION 

5.1 The Council had available £31.1m of Covid grant funding to utilise against relevant 

expenditure incurred or income foregone as a result of Covid. The £31.1m consisted of 

£12.4m of grant funding carried forward from 2020/21 (as per the grant conditions) and 

£18.7m of further grant awarded in 2021/22.  

 

Table 2 – Covid Grants Received to cover Service Expenditure 

Funding Description 2020/21 
Remaining 
Allocation 

2021/22 
Allocation 

Total 
Across 
Both 
Years 

Grants with Carry Forwards into 2022/23 £m £m £m 

Covid-19 Local Authority Support Grant (Tranches 1 to 5) 7.8 10.0 17.8 

Sales, Fees and Charges Income – (Tranche 4) 0.0 1.2 1.2 

Contain Outbreak Management Fund 4.2 2.6 6.8 

Sub Total Per Annum 12.0 13.8 25.8 

 

Funding Description 2020/21 
Remaining 
Allocation 

2021/22 
Allocation 

Total 
Across 
Both 
Years 

Ringfenced Funding - To be used in 2021/22 or paid 
back to awarding body 

£m £m £m 

Local Election 0.0 0.1 0.1 

Sport England Leisure Relief Funding 0.1 0.1 0.2 

Community Asymptomatic Testing 0.0 0.4 0.4 

Community Champions 0.3 0.2 0.5 

LA Practical Support Funding 0.0 0.6 0.6 

Clinically Extremely Vulnerable Grant 0.0 0.6 0.6 

Workforce recruitment and retention 0.0 2.9 2.9 

Sub Total Per Annum 0.4 4.9 5.3 

Totals 12.4 18.7 31.1 

 

5.2 The outturn position shows the utilisation of £25.2m of Covid funding in 2021/22 to offset 

General Fund Covid expenditure or income forgone as per the table below.  The £4m of 

Covid-19 Local Authority Support grant can be used in 2022/23 to offset the impact of 

legacy covid expenditure or income forgone whereas the Contain Outbreak Management 

Fund carry forward can only be used against specific qualifying expenditure.  £0.4m of 

Community Champions funding, £0.5m of LA Practical Support funding and £0.2m of 

Clinically Extremely Vulnerable Grant will be repaid as the grants have strict conditions 

around eligible expenditure.  Lewisham has unused elements of these grants which have to 

be repaid as the level of qualifying expenditure that has arisen is less than the total grant 

Page 20

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

value and these grants cannot be used against general expenditure incurred as a result of 

Covid.  

Table 3 – Covid Grant Utilisation 

 

Funding Description 

Total 
Across 
Both 
Years 

Included 
within 

Outturn 

Used by 
Non 

General 
Fund 

Available 
to use 

Grants with Carry Forwards into 2022/23 £m £m £m £m 

Covid-19 Local Authority Support Grant (Tranches 1 to 5) 17.8 13.8 0.0 (4.0)  

Sales, Fees and Charges Income – (Tranche 4) 1.2 1.2 0.0 0.0 

Contain Outbreak Management Fund 6.8 6.0 0.4 (0.4)  

Sub Total Per Annum 25.8 21.0 0.4 (4.4)  

 

Funding Description 

Total 
Across 
Both 
Years 

Included 
within 

Outturn 

Used by 
Non 

General 
Fund 

To be 
Repaid 

Ringfenced Funding - To be used in 2021/22 or paid 
back to awarding body 

£m £m £m £m 

Local Election 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 

Sport England Leisure Relief Funding 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 

Community Asymptomatic Testing 0.4 0.4 0.0 0.0 

Community Champions 0.5 0.1 0.0 (0.4)  

LA Practical Support Funding 0.6 0.1 0.0 (0.5)  

Clinically Extremely Vulnerable Grant 0.6 0.4 0.0 (0.2)  

Workforce recruitment and retention 2.9 2.9 0.0 0.0 

Sub Total Per Annum 5.3 4.2 0.0 (1.1)  

Totals 31.1 25.2 0.4 (5.5) 

 

6. SAVINGS 

6.1 The tables below shows a summary savings delivery position at the end of 2021/22.  There 

are £5.5m of undelivered savings for 2020/21 (which have been largely mitigated by covid 

funding – for this financial year only) with a detailed breakdown provided in appendix A and 

£8m of undelivered savings for 2021/22 with a detailed breakdown provided in Appendix B. 

This non delivery is included within the reported outturn position above and these savings 

will need to be delivered in 2022/23. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Table 4 - Savings Delivered in 2021/22 

2020/21 Savings 2021/22 
Agreed 
Savings 

2021/22 
Achieved 

2021/22 
Unachieved 

Covered 
by 

Covid 
Grants 

  £m £m £m £m 

Chief Executive Directorate -  -  -  -  

Children and Young People Directorate 1.4 0.0 1.4 1.4 

Community Services Directorate 3.7 0.8 2.8 2.8 

Corporate Resources Directorate 0.9 0.8 0.2 0.2 

Housing, Regeneration and Public Realm 
Directorate  2.2 1.0 1.2 0.8 

Total 8.1 2.6 5.5 5.1 

 

2021/22 Savings 2021/22 
Agreed 
Savings 

2021/22 
Achieved 

2021/22 
Unachieved 

  £m £m £m 

Chief Executive Directorate 0.8 0.8 0.0 

Children and Young People Directorate 2.6 2.5 0.1 

Community Services Directorate 12.3 5.7 7.2 

Corporate Resources Directorate 2.2 1.5 0.7 

Housing, Regeneration and Public Realm 
Directorate  3.1 3.1 0.0 

Cross Cutting 1.5 1.5 0.0 

Total 22.6 15.2 8.0 

 

7. CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 

7.1 The Children and Young People’s directorate is showing a business as usual overspend of 

£0.6m after the application of £4.4m Covid grant funding and £3m of one off corporate 

funding. The table below shows the variances by Division: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Table 5 – Children and Young People Directorate Outturn 

Children and Young 
People Directorate 

Net 
budget 

Outturn 
Full 
Year 

Forecast 
Variance 

Over/ 
(Under) 

 Covid-
19 

related 
Variance 

Business 
as Usual 
Outturn 
Over/ 

(Under) 

Projected 
Outturn 

in 
Budget 
report 
Over/ 

(Under) 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Children’s Social Care  41.6 50.2 8.6 3.4 5.2 4.2 

Corporate Funding 
Adjustment 

0.0 (3.0)  (3.0)  0.0 (3.0)  (3.0)  

No Recourse to Public 
Funds  

2.6 1.2 (1.4)  0.0 (1.4)  (0.8)  

Education Services  11.1 13.6 2.5 1.0 1.5 0.0 

Families, Quality & 
Commissioning 

6.2 4.5 (1.7)  0.0 (1.7)  0.0 

Schools (2.5)  (2.5)  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Total 59.0 64.0 5.0 4.4 0.6 0.4 

 

7.2 Children’s Social Care: £1m adverse position from the position reported to Mayor and 

Cabinet in February.  The number of Children Looked After (CLA) in March 2022 was 475, 

an increase from 459 in December, this increase in numbers reflects the increasing need 

and costs of supporting these Children.  For context there were 479 CLA’s in April 2021.  

Another key pressure is £1m of additional staffing over and above the budgeted level due 

to additional demands on the service, this has been funded as part of the MTFS process for 

2022/23.  There continues to be a pressure on the Section 17 payments element within 

Children’s Social Care.  The pressure on Children Looked After was partially mitigated by 

associated income from the Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC) grant 

funding which funds expenditure incurred supporting these children.  

 

7.3 Reserves: Unchanged, £3m of one off planned corporate funding to mitigate the expected 

level of pressure in 2021/22, to provide the Directorate with time to deliver against the 

2020/21 overspend reduction measures as part of the sufficiency strategy.  

 

7.4 No Recourse to Public Funds: An overall underspend of £1.4m which partially offsets the 

pressure on Children’s Social Care.  It should be noted that the final outturn position 

showed a further underspend of £0.6m compared to the position reported to Mayor and 

Cabinet as part of the budget report in February, reflecting a continuation in the reduced 

demand for the service.   

 

7.5 Education Services: The final outturn position shows a pressure of £1.5m against the 

budget. The transport service is forecast to overspend by £1.4m (after £1.75m was added 

to the budget in 2021/22), the increase in transport costs is linked to the ongoing pressure 

on the high needs budget, see Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) section 13 of the report. 

The pressure has been further exacerbated by an increase in costs for fuel, driver 

shortages and other inflationary pressures.  An internal Transport board is reviewing the 

Page 23

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

use of both in house provision and taxi service.   Elsewhere within the service there is a 

£0.6m pressure on Education Psychology and Children with Complex Need largely 

mitigated by underspends across the rest of the service.  

 

7.6 Families, Quality and Commissioning: The service has an underspend of £1.7m, during 

2021/22. The service has been undergoing transformation which has led to the 

appointment of new staff and a number of posts being vacant for extended periods of the 

financial year.  In light of the wider pressures on the directorate, management action has 

been taken to minimise expenditure to mitigate some of the pressures across Children’s 

Social Care and Education. It should also be noted that there has been reduced spend in 

some areas such as youth justice due to delays in the justice system as a result of covid.  

 

7.7 Schools: Unchanged from the position reported as part of the budget report in February in 

terms of any immediate impact on the General Fund.  

  

8. COMMUNITIES 

8.1 The Communities Directorate is showing a business as usual overspend of £1.3m after the 
application of £13.4m Covid grant funding. The table below shows the variances by 
Division: 

 

Table 6 – Community Services Directorate Outturn 

 

Community Services 
Net 

budget 

Outturn 
Full 
Year 

Forecast 
Variance 

Over/ 
(Under) 

 Covid-
19 

related 
Variance 

Business 
as Usual 
Outturn 
Over/ 

(Under) 

Projected 
Outturn 

in 
Budget 
report 
Over/ 

(Under) 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Adults’ Social Care  61.3 74.2 12.9 8.4 4.5 3.5 

Integrated Commissioning 7.7 6.1 (1.6)  0.0 (1.6)  0.0 

Public Health  (0.8)  1.3 2.1 2.1 0.0 (0.3)  

Communities, Partnerships 
and Leisure  

10.0 11.5 1.5 2.6 (1.1)  (0.2)  

Culture, Learning and 
Libraries  

3.6 3.4 (0.2)  0.3 (0.5)  (0.1)  

Total 81.8 96.5 14.7 13.4 1.3 2.9 

 

8.2 Adult Social Care and Integrated Commissioning: There is a net favourable movement 

of £0.6m across these Services since the projected outturn was reported to Mayor and 

Cabinet in February (the services are best viewed together due to the links between the 

two).  There were significant improvements on Adult Social Care due to £1m of winter 

placement demand not being realised and £0.7m of additional Workforce Recruitment and 

Page 24

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Retention funding being available to fund existing costs within the forecast.  This 

improvement along with other minor underspends has enabled Adult Social Care to fund 

the strategic service redesign work on the Empowering Lewisham  programme, aimed at 

improving outcomes for residents in Lewisham. The cause of the remaining net £2.9m 

pressure is due to undelivered savings with care package budgets.  

 

8.3 Public Health: The grant has been fully spent on Public Health expenditure.  

8.4 Communities, Partnerships and Leisure: An improvement of £0.9m since the position 

reported to Mayor and Cabinet as part of the budget report in February.  Following a review 

of eligible expenditure within the forecast the Council has been able to utilise £0.4m 

Clinically Extremely Vulnerable (CEV) grant, with £0.2m returned to awarding body due to 

the lack of qualifying eligible expenditure.  The remainder of the improvement is due to the 

forecast requirement for £0.4m of contribution to the London Wide Mortality Management 

Scheme-Wave 2 not materialising due to the level of contributions made in the prior year 

being sufficient.  

8.5 Culture, Learning and Libraries: An improvement of £0.4m since the position reported to 

Mayor and Cabinet due to £0.2m staffing vacancies across the Libraries service and 

previously forecast expenditure of £0.2m being eligible for funding from the COMF covid 

grant.  

 

9. HOUSING, REGENERATION AND PUBLIC REALM 

9.1 The Housing, Regeneration and Public Realm Directorate is showing a business as usual 

underspend of £0.6m after the application of £4.8m Covid grant funding. The table below 

shows the variances by Division: 

Table 7 – Housing, Regeneration and Public Realm Directorate Outturn 

Housing, Regeneration 
and Public Realm 

Net 
budget 

Outturn 
Full 
Year 

Forecast 
Variance 

Over/ 
(Under) 

 Covid-
19 

related 
Variance 

Business 
as Usual 
Outturn 
Over/ 

(Under) 

Projected 
Outturn 

in 
Budget 
report 
Over/ 

(Under) 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Strategic Housing  3.6 5.7 2.1 1.8 0.3 0.0 

Public Realm  18.1 19.5 1.4 2.7 (1.3)  (0.6)  

Regeneration 0.0 0.6 0.6 0.2 0.4 0.3 

Planning 0.8 0.9 0.1 0.1 0.0 (0.1)  

Total 22.5 26.7 4.2 4.8 (0.6)  (0.4)  

 

9.2 Strategic Housing: £0.3m adverse movement from the position reported to Mayor and 

Cabinet in February due to the increased numbers of service users within Temporary 

Accommodation in the later part of 2021/22, a trend that is growing and expected to 

continue into 2022/23.  The overspend (covered by covid funding) is due to the cost of 

temporary accommodation. 

9.3 Public Realm: £0.7m favourable movement due to improvements in Street and 

Page 25

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Environmental Services.  The tonnage levels were lower than forecast and a £0.1m rebate 
was received from Bywaters (Recycling contract).  Covid grant funding is being used to 
mitigate income pressures across parking services, street markets, commercial and garden 
waste.  The business as usual underspend is due to a net income contribution on moving 
traffic contraventions which is reinvested into the concessionary fares and restricted 
Highways and Transport budgets in line with the legislation.   

9.4 Regeneration: £0.1m adverse movement due to a lower level of salary recharge to capital 
for active schemes than had previously been forecast, the remainder of the pressure is due 
to a change in the plans on the Copperas Street project. 

9.5 Planning: £0.1m adverse movement due to income incorrectly categorised earlier in 

2021/22 which has since been reallocated.  

 

10. CORPORATE RESOURCES 

10.1 The Corporate Resources Directorate is showing a business as underspend of £0.2m after 
the application of £2.5m Covid grant funding. The table below shows the variances by 
Division: 

Table 8 – Corporate Resources Directorate Outturn 2021/22 

 

Corporate Resources 
Net 

budget 

Outturn 
Full 
Year 

Forecast 
Variance 

Over/ 
(Under) 

 Covid-
19 

related 
Variance 

Business 
as Usual 
Outturn 
Over/ 

(Under) 

Projected 
Outturn 

in 
Budget 
report 
Over/ 

(Under) 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Assurance 2.7 2.6 (0.1)  0.0 (0.1)  (0.1)  

Financial Services   5.5 5.3 (0.2)  0.0 (0.2)  (0.1)  

Resident & Business 
Services  

18.0 20.5 2.5 2.5 0.0 0.2 

IT & Digital Services  7.6 7.7 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1 

Reserves (0.7)  (0.7)  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Total 33.1 35.4 2.3 2.5 (0.2)  0.1 

 

10.2 Assurance: The position is unchanged from the reported position in the budget report in

 February.  

10.3 Financial Services: An improvement of £0.1m since the position reported to Mayor and 

Cabinet in February due to various small movements across the service including a 

reduction in expenditure on recruitment than previously forecast. 

 

10.4 Residents and Business Services: An £0.2m improvement on the business as usual 

position since the position reported to Mayor and Cabinet in February due to lower than 

expected in year expenditure on utilities. There has been also been a £0.5m improvement 

on income which has meant that £0.5m of Covid grant required is no longer required to 

mitigate the anticipated shortfall. The pressures mitigated by Covid grant funding are 

Page 26

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

arising from the closure of courts which restricted the Council’s ability to take enforcement 

action and collect debts.   

 

10.5 IT and Digital Services: The position is unchanged from the reported position in the 

budget report.  

 

10.6 Reserves: Unchanged position with a planned drawdown relating to Insurance of £0.7m.  

 

11. CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 

11.1 The Chief Executive’s Directorate is showing a business as usual underspend of £0.6m 
after the application of £0.1m Covid grant funding. The table below shows the variances by 
Division: 

 

Table 9 – Chief Executive’s Directorate Outturn 

 

Chief Executive's 
Net 

budget 

Outturn 
Full 
Year 

Forecast 
Variance 

Over/ 
(Under) 

 Covid-
19 

related 
Variance 

Business 
as Usual 
Outturn 
Over/ 

(Under) 

Projected 
Outturn 

in 
Budget 
report 
Over/ 

(Under) 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Assistant Chief Executive 7.3 7.1 (0.2)  0.0 (0.2)  (0.2)  

Law, Governance & 
Elections 

3.9 3.6 (0.3)  0.1 (0.4)  0.1 

Total 11.2 10.7 (0.5)  0.1 (0.6)  (0.1)  

 

11.2 Assistant Chief Executive: No change to the position reported underspend to Mayor and 

Cabinet as part of the budget report in February. It should be noted that Transformation 

costs of £0.4m and £0.2m of Programme Management Office (PMO) costs have been met 

within the outturn position enabling this funding to be kept in reserve to be used in future 

years. The £0.6m business as usual improvement that has enabled this is due to £0.4m of 

staffing vacancies following a restructure and £0.2m of reduced expenditure across the 

service.  

 

11.3 Law, Governance and Elections: An improvement of £0.5m since the position reported to 

Mayor and Cabinet in January due to staffing vacancies across the financial year as well as 

some minor unspent budgets across Legal Services.  

 

12. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) 

12.1 The table below shows the HRA Outturn Position. There are several key movements within 

the reported position which are detailed below: 

 

 

Page 27

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Table 10 – HRA Outturn 2021/22 

 

Housing Revenue Account Net budget 
Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 
Over / 

(Under) 

  £m £m £m 

Housing, Regeneration and Public Realm – Housing 15.2 14.8 (0.4)  

Lewisham Homes & Repairs & Maintenance 38.3 48.1 9.8 

Resources 1.8 1.9 0.1 

Centrally Managed Budgets (55.3)  (66.4)  (11.1)  

Total 0.0 (1.6)  (1.6)  

 

12.2 Housing, Regeneration and Public Realm (Housing) – The £0.4m underspend is due to 
additional hostel income of £0.2m, underspends on rehousing and lettings of £0.1m and 
other small underspends across the service of £0.1m.  There is an underspend of £1.5m on 
the service however this will need to be carried forward as allocations for strategic housing 
and development initiatives have been committed.  

12.3 Lewisham Homes & Repairs & Maintenance Repairs & Maintenance – The pressure is 
due to repairs and maintenance expenditure over and above the budget figures, this has 
arisen due to the volume of repairs requests on the service and repair/material costs being 
higher than anticipated.  

12.4 Resources – The net impact on these budgets is a minor overspend of £0.1m. 

12.5 Centrally Managed Budgets - There is a significant income target from the charging of 
major works at properties owned by leasehold tenants, currently work undertaken on a 
leaseholder’s property is charged to them upon completion, as opposed to in advance 
based on estimates.  At 31 March, there was a shortfall of £11.3m against the income 
target with no significant leasehold charges raised for 2021/22.  It is anticipated that the 
totality of these works will be billed in 2022/23, Lewisham Homes are planning to move to 
billing in advance as oppose to in arrears on leaseholder works from April 2022.  

12.6 The income shortfall of £11.3m is mitigated by the following underspends/income received 
to leave a surplus of £11.1m: 

 £6.7m lower revenue contribution to capital than was budgeted, see paragraph 12.8 
for further detail. 

 A reduction in the forecast interest charges of £1.1m due to the reduction in capital 
expenditure reducing the need for any external borrowing as well as a lower cash 
return on investment (CRI) of 3.24% as oppose to the budgeted 4%.  

 An additional income of £0.7m from tenant’s rents and service charges due to void 
levels being lower than the budgeted rates. 

 An underspend on the energy budget of £0.5m. 

 Other underspends of £0.9m. 

 Bad debt impairments charged to the HRA were close to budget following the 
additional contribution to provisions to cover the impact of the Thames Water 
refunds. 

Page 28

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 Additional grant of £9.5m for the removal of Aluminium Composite Material (ACM) 
cladding (capital programme) has recently been negotiated and agreed with 
Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DHLUC (May 2022) 
following completion of the removal and replacement work at Hatfield & Gerrard 
house.  

 A receipt of £3m from the decent homes programme.  

 For both of the above items, the related expenditure has been incurred across the 
previous financial years (as well as 2021/22), as part of the HRA capital 
programme. The works were from revenue contributions to capital, receiving this 
funding enables a lower drawdown from HRA reserves in 2021/22, compared to the 
budget (see paragraph 12.8), effectively recompensing the HRA reserve for costs 
funded in prior years.  

12.7 Lewisham Homes final capital expenditure was £48.9m against the general capital 
allocations re-profiled budget of £58.2m (was £78.8m).  This is a forecast underspend of 
£9.3m against the re-profiled programme (or £29.9m against the original allocation). In 
addition, the development programme costs were £34.0m against a re-profiled allocation of 
£50.2m.  These have combined to result in £6.7m reduction in the forecasted revenue 
capital contribution. 

12.8 The HRA budgeted contribution from reserves is £46.7m.  The forecasted contribution will 
now reduce by £3.2m (£1.6m underspend plus £1.6 carry forward for specific activities) to 
£43.5m.  This will leave the HRA in a balanced position for financial year 2021/22. 

 

13. DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT (DSG) 

13.1 The table below shows the draft DSG Outturn for 2021/22 and the cumulative impact on the 

overall DSG position. The net deficit on the DSG is £9.1m however each of the sub blocks 

come with their own condition around expenditure with £1.3m set aside to fund specific 

challenges across the schools, central school services and early years blocks, leaving a 

reported deficit of £10.4m.  

Table 11 – DSG Outturn 

 

DSG 2021/22 
Schools 

block 
£m 

Central 
school 

services 
block 

£m 

High 
needs 
block 

£m 

Early 
years 
block 

£m 

Total 
DSG 

allocation 
£m 

Gross 222.8 4.3 62.1 23.4 312.5 

In year Virements (1.1)  0.0 1.1 0.0 0.0  

DSG Budget 221.7 4.3 63.1 23.4 312.5 

Expenditure 220.5 4.3 68.5 23.7 317.0 

Virement for Term Time Only 1.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.2 

Offset Against Prior Year Reserves 0.0 (0.1)  0.0 (1.0)  (1.1)  

Total Spend 221.7 4.3 68.5 22.6 317.1 

Variance 0.0 0.0 5.4 (0.8)  4.6 

 

 

 

 

Page 29

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 12 – DSG Overall Position 

 

DSG Overall 
Schools 

block 
£m 

Central 
school 

services 
block 

£m 

High 
needs 
block 

£m 

Early 
years 
block 

£m 

Total 
DSG 

allocation 
£m 

Total spend for 2021/22 221.7 4.3 68.5 22.6 317.1 

DSG Variance 2021/22 0.0 0.0 5.4 (0.8)  4.6 

Balance Brought Forward (0.4)  (0.3)  5.0 (1.5)  2.9 

DSG Variance 2021/22 0.0 0.0 5.4 (0.8)  4.6 

Prior Year Funds Applied 0.0 0.1 0.0 1.0 1.1 

Estimate of Clawback 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 

Balance Carry Forward (0.4)  (0.2)  10.4 (0.7)  9.1 

 

13.2  The DSG is subdivided into four individual “blocks”. Each block has specific application as 

defined by the Department for Education (DfE) as part of its grant conditions. 

 

13.3 Schools Block (SB) – the schools block allowed for a transfer of £1.2m to support the Term 

Time Only process (as agreed by Schools forum), this has been fully spent. The balance 

carry forward of £0.4m has been held to provide targeted support for schools in deficit that 

have been adversely impacted meeting Term time only costs.  

13.4 Central Schools Services Block (CSSB) - Funding allocations to Local Authorities have 

been reducing year on year for CSSB, through careful management actions in both 

2020/21 and 2021/2022, the CSSB has a marginal surplus at the end of 2021/22 of £0.2m, 

which is being used to support transitional pressures for 2022/23.  Children and Young 

Peoples are currently reviewing overall core services offer following the initial 

announcement of the white paper.  

 13.5 The high needs block overspend is £5.4m against a budget of £62.1m, this will be partially 

offset by a £1.1m funding transfer as agreed with Schools forum to support the pressure.  

This will result in a cumulative deficit of £10.4m including the deficit brought forward of £5m 

from 2020/21. 

 

13.6 The Directorate is currently working towards a mitigation plan supported by Schools forum. 

The mitigation plan is currently in its third year of embedding which includes creating more 

in-house capacity both in special schools and resources basis.  The position is not unique 

to Lewisham, we are currently commencing discussions with the Department for Education 

(DfE) to progress as part of the DfE safety value scheme.  This is the second wave of the 

initiative and will include approx. 50 other LA’s. The main challenges continue to be 

 0-5 year olds as more children are diagnosed with specialist need. This will require 

early intervention and support to prevent long term need for Education, Health and 

Care Plan (EHCP).  

Page 30

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 Post 16 /Further Education, continuing increase in numbers staying on to full time 

/part time education up to 25. 

 In borough provision, currently working with schools to create capacity to place 

more pupils in borough. This has included expansions to special schools and the 

creation of more targeted resource basis. 

13.7 It should be noted that the first two bullet points reflect the underfunded nature of the high 

needs block since the extension of the statutory age from 5 to 18, to 0 to 25.  The DfE is 

aware of the challenges and has provided additional funding over the last 3 years, whilst 

the funding is welcomed, the demand continues to outstrip the available funding.  This is 

despite an overall reduction in pupil numbers of approx.1,500. 

 

13.8 The Government is currently consulting on SEND changes which is expected to be followed 

by a SEND funding paper.  The concern here is that the proposals to further support the 

needs of young people could again result in greater cost implications.  It should be noted 

that there is an associated budget pressure on the General Fund for transport related costs. 

 

13.9 Early Years Block – Unlike the other 3 blocks, funding for Early Years remains provisional 
until the validation of the pupil data for January, this is expected to be completed in 
June/July.  

13.10 2020/21 – The DfE confirmed a favourable end of year position £1.5m, in agreement with 
schools forum, circa £1m was paid out to providers including schools to support challenges 
faced by covid.  This was in line with the DfE expectation regarding the use of this funding. 

13.11 2021/22 – The funding remains provisional until the validation process is concluded.  Our 
initial assessment suggests overall increase in 2 year old numbers relative to DfE estimate 
of circa 6%.  However, the 3 & 4 year old funding levels appear to have reduced by circa 
3%.  A potential clawback of £0.5m is anticipated.  Should this be the case, then there 
would be an underspend of £0.3m, resulting in a cumulative position of £0.7m.  Due to the 
nature of spend and finalisation of the funding it remains prudent to have a level of 
contingency to support any year on year variations. 

 

14. CAPITAL  

14.1 The revised General Fund Capital Expenditure budget approved at Mayor and Cabinet in 

February was £66.3m, £42.2m of expenditure has been incurred during 2021/22 which is 

67% of the budget. 

 

14.2 The HRA Capital Expenditure budget was £115.9m, £83m of expenditure has been 

incurred which is 70% of the budget.  

 

14.3 The table below shows the expenditure versus budget on a scheme by scheme basis, 

unspent budget will be slipped into 2022/23 when it is expected the costs will be incurred.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Table 13 – Capital Outturn 

 

2021/22 Capital Programme 

Revised 
Budget  
(M&C 

Feb 22) 

Revised 
Budget 

Proposed 
March 
2022 

Outturn 

Spent to 
Date 

(Revised 
Budget) 

GENERAL FUND £m £m £m % 

CCTV Modernisation 1.1 1.1 0.7 61% 

Leisure Schemes 3.6 3.6 2.0 57% 

Schools - School Places Programme 7.2 7.2 7.5 104% 

Schools – Other (Inc. Minor) Capital Works 4.6 4.6 4.7 103% 

Schools – Unallocated 0.0 0.0 0.0 0% 

Highways & Bridges – TfL 1.5 1.5 1.0 66% 

Highways & Bridges – LBL 4.1 4.1 2.8 68% 

Asset Management Programme  1.3 1.3 0.6 52% 

Other AMP Schemes 1.7 1.7 1.1 65% 

Unallocated AMP 0.0 0.0 0.0 0% 

Broadway Theatre 2.0 2.0 0.6 28% 

Catford Phase 1 – Thomas Lane Yard/ CCC 0.6 0.6 0.6 109% 

Catford Station Improvements 0.1 0.1 0.1 95% 

Travellers Site Relocation 0.1 0.1 0.0 42% 

Lewisham Gateway (Phase 2) 3.5 3.5 0.6 17% 

Beckenham Place Park (Inc. Eastern Part) 0.4 0.4 0.0 4% 

Catford Town Centre 0.2 0.2 0.7 294% 

Milford Towers Decant 0.3 0.3 0.3 83% 

Deptford Southern Sites Regeneration 0.3 2.6 2.2 86% 

Edward St. Development 12.0 12.0 4.4 37% 

Lewisham Homes – Property Acquisition 3.0 3.0 3.0 100% 

Achilles St Development 1.0 0.0 0.0 78% 

Place Ladywell 0.8 0.8 0.5 69% 

Temporary Accommodation - Mayow Rd 7.0 3.9 3.7 96% 

Temporary Accommodation - Canonbie Rd 1.8 1.8 1.2 71% 

Temporary Accommodation - Sydney Arms 1.0 0.0 0.0 100% 

Temporary Accommodation - Morton House 0.6 0.6 0.0 6% 

Temporary Accommodation - Manor Avenue 0.3 0.3 0.0 4% 

Disabled Facilities Grant 1.3 1.3 1.7 126% 

Private Sector Grants and Loans 0.6 0.4 0.6 141% 

Other General Fund Housing Schemes 1.5 1.1 0.7 61% 

Other Miscellaneous Schemes 3.1 3.2 0.8 25% 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 66.3 63.1 42.2 67% 

 

Page 32

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

2021/22 Capital Programme 

Revised 
Budget  
(M&C 

Feb 22) 

Revised 
Budget 

Proposed 
March 
2022 

Outturn 

Spent to 
Date 

(Revised 
Budget) 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT £m £m £m % 

Building for Lewisham Programme (BfL) 50.2 50.6 33.5 66% 

Decent Homes Programme 57.8 59.4 48.1 81% 

Housing Management System 1.3 1.3 0.3 22% 

Other Schemes 6.5 6.5 0.9 14% 

TOTAL HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 115.9 117.7 82.8 70% 

TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME  182.1 180.8 125.0 69% 

 

15. COLLECTION FUND 

 

15.1 Council Tax - The collection rate for 2021/22 was 92.4% against a target of 95% which is 

£4.2m below the targeted level.  The billed level of income was £161.7m and the income 

collected was £12.3m below this level. 

Table 14 – Council Tax Collected 

 

Collection 
Fund 

Cash 
Collected 

(cumulative) 

Cash 
needed to 
meet 95% 

Profile 

Difference 
between 
collected 
and 95% 
profile 

Current 
Year 

Collection 
Rate% 

Required 
Collection 

Rate to 
reach 
95% 

Difference 
% 

Previous 
Year 

Collection 
Rate 

Mar-22 149,414,401 153,611,857 (4,197,456)  92.40% 95.00% -2.60% 92.82% 

 

15.2 Business Rates - The collection rate for 2021/22 was 94% against a target of 99% which 

is £2.8m below the targeted level.  The billed level of income was £55.4m and the income 

collected was £3.3m below this level. 

Table 15 – Business Rates Collected 

 

Collection 
Fund 

Cash 
Collected 

(cumulative) 

Cash 
needed to 
meet 95% 

Profile 

Difference 
between 
collected 
and 95% 
profile 

Current 
Year 

Collection 
Rate% 

Required 
Collection 

Rate to 
reach 
95% 

Difference 
% 

Previous 
Year 

Collection 
Rate 

Mar-22 52,113,037 54,888,966 (2,775,929)  94.00% 99.00% -5.00% 91.62% 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 33

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

16. DEBT  

16.1. The Council works hard to collect the monies owed to it for services provided and, where 

individuals may be struggling to pay, engages early and often over extended periods to 

work with customers to assist them pay.  Only as a last resort will the Council use 

enforcement and court action to collect monies owed to it. 

  

16.2. However, as for all organisations, it is not always possible to recover all debts owed.  For 

example, some businesses stop trading or individuals leave the Borough and cannot be 

traced.  The Council therefore routinely sets aside funding in the accounts for uncollected 

debt, consistent with the policies and judgements set out and audited by the external 

auditors.  At the 31 March 2021, the most recent audited accounts, the balance being held 

against uncollected General Fund debts was £93.1m. 

 

16.3. In recent years, due to the focus on the new Finance system implementation, Finance 

Reorganisation as well as the impact of Covid, these balances have not been cleared down 

and the older debts written off.  At 31 March 2022 the Council had debts owing of £126.1m, 

with the £93.1m provision available to cover those debts over one year old should they be 

deemed uncollectable or uneconomic to collect.   

 

16.4. Following a detailed review of the Council’s debt position undertaken in 2021/22 for the 

closing of accounts process, the following specific proposals for 2021/22 are set out below 

for action now.  More generally, it is also the intention that this process is followed and 

refined each year as part of the regular monitoring reported to Members.  This will ensure 

any older debts are critically assessed for the likelihood of recovery and action taken 

promptly to bring them forward for write off if that is deemed the most economically 

appropriate action.     

 

16.5. It is now proposed to clear the accounts of the older debts, typically over six years old or 

four years in the case of Sundry debts and with some going back more than ten years, so 

that recovery work is concentrated on live accounts to ensure the most success in 

collecting monies owed to the Council.   

 

16.6. In summary, the approach taken to derive these proposals for each category was:  

 

 Sundry Debt – Debts are reviewed on a category by category basis, debts under £1k 

which are older than four years as well as specific debts identified as part of the year 

end review are proposed for write off. 

 Housing Benefit Overpayments – Debts over six years old with no payment activity 

and no benefits claimed in recent years are proposed for write off. 

 Council Tax - Those debts over six years and older are proposed for write off. 

 Business Rates – Debts over six years old with no payments or activity on the account 

are proposed for write off. 

 

16.7. This work will involve clearing the older fully provided for debts totalling £42m by writing 

them off against the monies already set aside for this purpose.  The majority of individual 

debts will be cleared under delegation, in line with the Constitution which delegates 

authority to the Section 151 Officer to approve individual write offs of up to £50k.  For those 

over £50k, totalling just under £1m, Mayor and Cabinet approval is sought for the write off 

of £1m of individual debts each over £50k.  

Page 34

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 

16.8. The table below shows the levels of General Fund debt currently and where the proposed 

write offs by debt type will be made. 

 

Table 16 – Council’s Debt Position 

General Fund Debt Summary Amount Outstanding 
at 31 March 2022  

Proposed  
Write Offs 

 £ £ 

General Fund Sundry Debtor             21,922,842       2,141,936  

Housing Benefit Overpayments             23,817,821     10,543,640  

Council Tax             73,222,018           28,742,709  

Business Rates                7,161,208           527,698  

Total           126,123,889           41,955,983  

 

16.9. Of the £42m proposed write offs the table below shows the write offs over £50k by category 
with a line by line breakdown shown in Appendix C.  

 

Table 17 – Write Offs for debts over £50k 

Write off by category of debt Amount 

 £ 

Sundry Debts 432,392 

Housing Benefit Overpayments 428,072 

Council Tax 0 

Business Rates 118,084 

Total 978,548 

 

17. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

17.1 This report concerns the projected financial outturn for 2021/22. Therefore, any financial 

implications are contained within the body of the report. 

 

18. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

18.1 The Council is under a duty to balance its budget and cannot knowingly budget for a deficit. 

It is imperative that there is diligent monitoring of the Council’s spend and steps taken to 

bring it into balance.  

 

18.2 The individual debts recommended for write off in section 16 of the report and detailed at 

Appendix C are presented in compliance with the delegations as set out in the Constitution: 
 

 Part 2 Articles, under Article 16, section 16.2 Key Decisions, paragraph c, point (xiv) which 
state; 

Page 35

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

- writing off any bad debt in excess of £50,000, unless the Council has within the last 3 
years already written off debts for the person/organisation concerned totalling that amount 
in which case any further write off would be a key decision. 

 

19. CRIME AND DISORDER, CLIMATE AND ENVIRONMENT IMPLICATIONS 

19.1 There are no specific crime and disorder act or climate and environment implications 

directly arising from this report. 

 

20. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

20.1 The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a public sector equality duty (the equality duty or 

the duty). It covers the following protected characteristics: age, disability, gender 

reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or 

belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

 

20.2 There are no equalities implications directly arising from this report. 

 

21. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Short Title of Report Date Location Contact 

Budget Report 2021/22 3rd March 2021 (Council) 1st Floor Laurence House David Austin 

 

22. REPORT AUTHOR AND CONTACT 

David Austin, Director of Finance at david.austin@lewisham.gov.uk; or 

Nick Penny, Head of Service Finance nick.penny@lewisham.gov.uk 

Page 36

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
mailto:david.austin@lewisham.gov.uk


 

APPENDIX A – 2020/21 Savings yet to be delivered 

Ref Director Proposal 2021/22 
Agreed 
Savings 

2021/22 
Achieved 

2021/22 
Gap 

Covered 
by Covid 
Grants 

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE DIRECTORATE  £'000   £'000   £'000   £'000  

CYP01 Lucie Heyes More efficient use of residential placements            300               -               300             300  

CYP03 Lucie Heyes More systematic and proactive management of the market            600               -               600             600  

CYP04 Lucie Heyes Commission semi-independent accommodation for care leavers            250               -               250             250  

CYP05 Lucie Heyes 
Residential framework for young people. Joint SE London Commissioning 
Programme 

           200               -               200             200  

Total for Children & Young People Directorate         1,350               -            1,350          1,350  

COMMUNITY SERVICES DIRECTORATE  £'000   £'000   £'000   £'000  

COM04 Joan Huton Reduce costs for Learning Disability and Transitions         1,000             200             800             800  

COM05 Joan Huton Increased focus of personalisation            482             350             132             132  

COM1
A 

Joan Huton Managing demand at the point of access to adult social care services         1,000             100             900             900  

COM2
A 

Joan Huton Ensuring support plans optimise value for money            500               -               500             500  

P
age 37



 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Ref Director Proposal 2021/22 
Agreed 
Savings 

2021/22 
Achieved 

2021/22 
Gap 

Covered 
by Covid 
Grants 

COM3
A 

Joan Huton Increase revenue from charging Adult Social Care clients            500               -               500             500  

CUS06 James Lee Bereavement Services increase income targets              67               67               -                 -    

RES17 James Lee Beckenham Place Park - income generation            105             105               -                 -    

Total for Community Services Directorate         3,654             822          2,832          2,832  

CORPORATE RESOURCES DIRECTORATE  £'000   £'000   £'000   £'000  

CUS13 Mick Lear Invest to save - improve sundry debt collection            480             480               -                 -    

RES01 David Austin Benefits realisation of Oracle cloud            350             200             150             150  

RES14 Brian Colyer Corporate Estate Facilities Management Contract Insourcing            100             100               -                 -    

Total Corporate Resources Directorate            930             780             150             150  

HOUSING, REGENERATION & PUBLIC REALM DIRECTORATE  £'000   £'000   £'000   £'000  

CUS02 Zahur Khan Income generation - increase of garden waste subscription            485             485               -                 -    

P
age 38

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Ref Director Proposal 2021/22 
Agreed 
Savings 

2021/22 
Achieved 

2021/22 
Gap 

Covered 
by Covid 
Grants 

CUS04 Zahur Khan Income generation - increase in commercial waste charges            300               -               300             300  

CUS14
A 

Zahur Khan Parking service budget review            500               -               500             500  

RES11 Emma Talbot Increase in pre-application fees            100             100               -                 -    

RES12 Patrick Dubeck Catford complex office rationalisation            250             250               -      

RES15 Patrick Dubeck Commercial estate growth            500             100             400    

RES18 Zahur Khan Electric vehicle charging points              50               50               -                 -    

Total for Housing, Regeneration & Public Realm Directorate         2,185             985          1,200             800  

GRAND TOTAL         8,119          2,587          5,532          5,132  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 39

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

APPENDIX B – 2021/22 Savings yet to be delivered 

Ref Director Proposal 2021/22 
Agreed 
Savings 

2021/22 
Achieved 

2021/22 
Gap 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORATE £'000 £'000 £'000 

A-01 All 
Staff productivity - arising from new ways of working better collaboration and a 
return on IT investment  (£3m split council wide) 

243 243 0 

A-03 All 
Corporate Transport arrangements (£100k split Council Wide) more use of electric 
bikes and less spend on public transport and cars 

3 3 0 

A-10 
Jeremy 
Chambers 

Election services 55 55 0 

A-09 Salena Mulhere Support Leadership 105 105 0 

A-11 
Jeremy 
Chambers 

Legal, governance service and elections review. 340 340 0 

A-01a 
Round 
2 

All 
Staff productivity - arising from new ways of working, better collaboration and a 
return on IT investment (£1m split Council Wide) 

81 81 0 

Total for Chief Executive Directorate 827 827 0 

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE DIRECTORATE £'000 £'000 £'000 

E-05 
Angela 
Scattergood 

Traded services with schools 50 50 0 

F-12 Lucie Heyes Housing - No Recourse to Public Funds 300 900 -600 

A-12 
Angela 
Scattergood 

Rationalising Central Education Services functions 150 160 -10 

A-13 
Angela 
Scattergood 

Children with complex needs (CWCN Revision) 195 133 62 

A-14 
Angela 
Scattergood 

Replace Educational Psychologist locums through expanding the generic EP 
Team 

200 214 -14 

A-16 Lucie Heyes Reduction of workforce development budget 50 50 0 

B-13 
Angela 
Scattergood 

Early Years Funding Block 54 54 0 

C-09 Sara Rahman Youth Offending Service (YOS) redesign 152 152 0 

C-30 
Angela 
Scattergood 

Rationalisation of Business support across Education services 70 70 0 

P
age 40

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Ref Director Proposal 2021/22 
Agreed 
Savings 

2021/22 
Achieved 

2021/22 
Gap 

D-09 
Angela 
Scattergood 

Educational Assets 300 300 0 

A-01 
and A-
01a 

All 
Staff productivity - arising from new ways of working (including learning from the 
Covid 19 pandemic), better collaboration and a return on IT investment 

1053 390 663 

A-03 All Corporate Transport arrangements 56 56 0 

E-03 All 
Review discretionary sales, fees and charges and increase to the point of full cost 
recovery. 

10 10 0 

Total for Children & Young People Directorate 2,640 2,539 101 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DIRECTORATE £'000 £'000 £'000 

B-04 Catherine Mbema Smoking cessation service 221 221 0 

B-05 Joan Hutton Recharge OT and housing officer costs to the Disabled Facilities Grant 250 250 0 

B-07 Liz Dart Review of Council run events 42 42 0 

B-10 James Lee Reduction in local assemblies service 45 45 0 

C-02 Joan Hutton Adult Learning and Day Opportunities 50 50 0 

E-04 Joan Hutton Introduce charging for certain elements of self-funded care packages 82 0 82 

F-01 Joan Hutton Adult Social Care Demand management 3,000 1,200 1,800 

F-06 Joan Hutton Adults with learning difficulties and 14 - 25yrs transitions costs 760 0 760 

F-09 Joan Hutton In house services reductions - adults passenger transport 600 600 600 

A-18 Liz Dart Library and Information Service 300 300 0 

B-11 Joan Hutton Improved usage of BCF Funding across partners 1,000 1,000 0 

B-12 Liz Dart Adult Learning Lewisham - back office efficiences 96 96 0 

C-12 Catherine Mbema Weight management services 25 25 0 

C-13 Catherine Mbema Sexual and Reproductive Health Services in Primary Care 100 100 0 

C-14 Catherine Mbema Substance Misuse Cuts (Public Health Budget) 150 150 0 

C-15 Catherine Mbema Integrated Sexual and Reproductive Health Services 150 150 0 

C-16 Dee Carlin 
Reduction of Management overheads for the Social Inclusion and Recovery 
Services (Slam lewisham Community Services) 

50 50 0 

C-17 Dee Carlin Re-configuration of MH Supported Housing pay - social interest group 100 0 100 

C-24 Liz Dart Culture Team Salaries & Borough of Culture 60 60 0 

C-28 Dee Carlin Supported Housing Services 169 169 0 

C-29 James Lee Crime, Enforcement & Regulation service restructure 50 50 0 P
age 41

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Ref Director Proposal 2021/22 
Agreed 
Savings 

2021/22 
Achieved 

2021/22 
Gap 

F-24 Joan Hutton Adult Social Care cost reduction and service improvement programme 3,849 0 3,849 

A-01 
and A-

01a 
ALL 

Staff productivity - arising from new ways of working (including learning from the 
Covid 19 pandemic), better collaboration and a return on IT investment 

1,027 1,027 0 

A-03 ALL Corporate Transport arrangements 23 23 0 

E-03 James Lee 
Review discretionary sales, fees and charges and increase to the point of full cost 
recovery. 

72 72 0 

Total for Community Services Directorate 12,271 5,680 7,191 

CORPORATE RESOURCES DIRECTORATE £'000 £'000 £'000 

A-04 Mick Lear Process automation in Revs and Bens 60 40 20 

A-05 Mick Lear Revs and Bens - additional process automation 400 0 400 

B-08 Mick Lear Review the Power of Attorney service 160 160 0 

B-09 Mick Lear Reduction in the discretionary award of concessionary fares 300 300 0 

D-03 Brian Colyer Facilities management general cost reduction 50 50 0 

D-04 Brian Colyer Operational estate - security 100 100 0 

D-06 Brian Colyer Catford Campus - Estate Consolidation 438 179 259 

A-01 
Round 
1 

All 
Staff productivity - arising from new ways of working, better collaboration and a 
return on IT investment  (£3m split council wide) 

522 522 0 

A-03 
and E-
03 
Round 
1 

All 
Corporate Transport arrangements AND Review discretionary sales, fees and 
charges and increase to the point of full cost recovery (£250k split Council Wide) 

7 7 0 

A-01a All 
Staff productivity - arising from new ways of working, better collaboration and a 
return on IT investment (£1m split Council Wide) 

174 174 0 

Total Corporate Resources Directorate 2,211 1,532 679 

HOUSING, REGENERATION & PUBLIC REALM DIRECTORATE £'000 £'000 £'000 

A-07 Fenella Beckman  Housing - Productivity gains 202 202 0 

B-05 Fenella Beckman  Recharge OT and housing officer costs to the Disabled Facilities Grant 175 175 0 

C-05 Fenella Beckman  Housing needs and procurement service review 50 50 0 

C-06 Fenella Beckman  Housing needs and procurement service review 77 77 0 P
age 42

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Ref Director Proposal 2021/22 
Agreed 
Savings 

2021/22 
Achieved 

2021/22 
Gap 

D-02 Patrick Dubeck Business Rates Revaluation for the estate 40 40 0 

D-06 Patrick Dubeck Catford Campus - Estate Consolidation 236 236 0 

D-07 Patrick Dubeck Meanwhile use - Temporary Accommodation 25 25 0 

E-02 Patrick Dubeck Income from building control 15 15 0 

E-07 Fenella Beckman  
Housing – Increased rent for Private Sector Lease (PSL) and Private Managed 
Accommodation (PMA) 

300 300 0 

C-10 Fenella Beckman  Housing Services Review 300 300 0 

E-11 Zahur Khan Environmental Enforcement – Use of Civic Enforcement Officers 100 100 0 

F-17 Zahur Khan Road safety enforcement 250 250 0 

F-20 Zahur Khan Emission based charging for Short Stay parking 120 120 0 

F-21 Zahur Khan Road Safety Enforcement 250 250 0 

A-01 & 
A-01a 

Zahur Khan Productivity (Additional) 969 969 0 

Total for Housing, Regeneration & Public Realm Directorate 3,109 3,109 0 

Cross-Cutting £'000 £'000 £'000 

B-07  All Review of Council run events 28 28 0 

E-01 / 
E-01a 

 All Improved Debt collection 750 750 0 

E-08 / 
E-08a 

 All Contract Efficiencies – inflation management 750 750 0 

Total for Cross-Cutting 1,528 1,528 0 

GRAND TOTAL 22,586 15,215 7,971 

 

P
age 43

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

APPENDIX C – Individual debts over £50k to be written off 

Type Amount 
£ 

Debtors Reason for write Off 

Sundry Debt 76,030  These two invoices were issued in 2013 and 2014 to NHS England.  They would have ordinarily been 
sent to the Trust however as Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) were disbanded in 2013 these invoices 
were issued to NHS England as they were managing a process to pay outstanding PCT invoices. The 
invoice originator and budget holder did not provide the supporting documentation requested by NHS 
England for these invoices to be paid. 

Sundry Debt 25,084  

Sundry Debt 65,026  

236 Evelyn Street – was leased  for 20 years from 13/02/1997 at £8,300 pa.  The same tenant also 
held a lease for 238 Evelyn Street.  It traded as a Vietnamese restaurant although the basement was 
used, without consent, as a nightclub.  The property was repossessed on the 06/09/2016 due to the 
breach of covenant (unlawful use) and significant rent arrears.   

Sundry Debt 79,061  

2-4 Riverpark Gardens – This property was leased comprising a shop with flat above.  The tenant 
was unable to trade due to subsidence and the collapse of culverts and drains running under the 
concrete floor in the shop. Agreement for the remedy was not reached and the property was sold to 
Phoenix Housing on 27/03/2013. 

Sundry Debt 126,368  

Foxgrove Club - this was leased for 12 years from 02/07/1995 at a rent of £12k pa and thereafter the 
tenants remained in occupation under a Tenancy at Will, although rent arrears continued to rise.  The 
Council began Legal action in the County Court.  A Settlement Agreement was completed in 2014 
under which the tenant’s agreed to deliver up vacant possession in return for the rent arrears being 
written off.  It was terminated 30/09/2015 and this is the associated write off. 

Sundry Debt 60,823  Legal recommendation to write off 

Housing Benefit 
Overpayments 

84,843  

These debts are now judged ‘not economically viable’ to persue.  The debts are over six years old 
with no payment activity in the past six years in response to recovery actions taken and no benefits 
claimed in six years.   
Should the debtor seek to claim benefits in the future the system will highlight this and the team can 
chose to persue the debt again.  

Housing Benefit 
Overpayments 

61,994  

Housing Benefit 
Overpayments 

61,380  

Housing Benefit 
Overpayments 

58,830  

Housing Benefit 
Overpayments 

55,938  

Housing Benefit 
Overpayments 

52,996  

Housing Benefit 
Overpayments 

52,091  P
age 44



 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Type Amount 
£ 

Debtors Reason for write Off 

Business Rates 62,953  

The company was registered in November 2015 and bills were issued to the registered office.  No 
payments were received on the account.  The statutory instalments were subsequently defaulted 
upon and recovery proceedings commenced.  The Council obtained three Liability Orders and the 
account was passed to Newlyn and Equita for collection.  The Liability Orders were returned as no 
goods or funds were received.  The company entered into dissolution on 5 September 2017. 

Business Rates 55,132  

The company was registered in April 2010 and demands were issued to the registered office address.  
No payments were received on the account.  The statutory instalments were subsequently defaulted 
upon and recovery proceedings commenced.  The Council obtained Liability Orders and the account 
was passed to Ross and Roberts Ltd for collection.  The Liability Orders were returned as no goods 
or funds were received.  The case was subsequently referred to Wilkin Chapman for winding up 
proceedings however, a discrepancy with the account name was identified and as such, it was 
necessary to withdraw all previous recovery. The period of debt is now statute barred. 

Total Write Off's for debts 
over £50k 

978,548    

 

P
age 45

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Public Accounts Select Committee 

 

 

Financial Monitoring 2022/23 

Date: Thursday 30 June 2022 

Key decision: No 

Class: Part 1 

Ward(s) affected: None Specific 

Contibutors: Executive Director for Corporate Resources 

Outline and recommendations 

 

This report presents the financial monitoring position for the 2022/23 financial 
year. It sets out the position as at 31 May 2022.. 

The report covers the position on the Council’s General Fund, Dedicated Schools 
Grant, Housing Revenue Account, Collection Fund and Capital Programme. It 
continues to provide an update on the progress against savings delivery.  

The Council-wide financial forecast for General Fund activities is an overspend of 
£10.1m, this is reduced by the the utilisation of £4m Local Authority Support grant 
(carry forward Covid funding) and £2m of corporate funding to partially mitigate the 
expected pressures. This means that the General Fund is forecast to overspend by 
£4.1m.  

Financial monitoring will continue throughout the year, and Executive Directors will work 
to manage down the reported budget pressure within their directorates in a drive to 
bring spend back into line with cash-limited budgets. 

The Public Accounts Select Committee are asked to review and note the monitoring 
position and forecasts for the financial year 2022/23. 

Page 47

Agenda Item 6



 

 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Timeline of engagement and decision-making 

30th June 2022 – Period 2 (May) Financial Monitoring 2022/23 to Public Accounts Select 
Committee 
 
6th July 2022 - Period 2 (May) Financial Monitoring 2022/23 to Mayor and Cabinet 
 

 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. This report sets out the financial forecasts for 2022/23 as at 31 May. The key areas to 
note are as follows: 

i. The General Fund (GF) has a forecast overspend of £4.1m against the 
directorates’ net general fund revenue budget, after the application of £4m 
Covid grant funding carried forward from 2021/22 to support the costs arising 
from the ongoing legacy impact of the pandemic and £2m of corporate 
funding set aside to fund expected pressure. This is set out in more detail in 
sections 4 to 10 of this report. 
 

ii. There are additional risks estimated at £3.3m, work is on going led by 
Executive Directors to seek mitigations should any of the risks partially or fully 
materialise. This is set out in more detail in section 11.  

 
iii. To date, £18m (72%), of the £25.2m savings have either been achieved or 

are on track to be achieved. The forecast outturn position takes into account 
the £18m of savings delivery. Where savings have not been achieved to date, 
services are working to deliver these or find alternative savings/cost 
reductions to enable the overall savings target to be achieved.  
 

iv. The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) is currently forecast to be balanced for 
2022/23 at the end of the financial year, with a deficit of £10.4m brought 
forward from prior years following the high needs secondary transfer process. 
This is set out in more detail in section 12 of this report.  

 
v. The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is currently projecting a balanced 

position at this stage of the financial year, this is set out in more detail in 
section 13 of this report. 
 

vi. As at 31 May, some 18.6% of council tax due and 22.4%% of business rates 
due had been collected. This is set out in more detail in section 14 of this 
report. 

 
vii. The Capital Programme has a budget for 2022/23 set as part of the budget 

setting process in February of £244.8m (GF and HRA), this will be revised 
over the coming months to account for slippage identified as part of the 
closing process for 2021/22. This has been set out in more detail in section 15 
of this report and Appendix 2. 

2.0 PURPOSE AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to set out the financial forecasts for 2022/23 as at the end of 
May 2022, projected to the year-end, 31 March 2023.  

2.2 Members of the Public Accounts Select Committee are asked to: Note the current 
financial forecasts for the year ending 31 March 2023 and that Executive Directors will 

Page 48

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

continue to work in bringing forward action plans to manage down budget pressures 
within their directorates. 

3.0 POLICY CONTEXT  

3.1 This financial position demonstrates the impact of the very severe financial constraints 
which have been imposed on Council services with the cuts made year on year, despite 
the increasing demand to deliver services to the borough’s residents. 

3.2 The Council's strategy and priorities drive the Budget with changes in resource allocation 
determined in accordance with policies and strategy.  The Council launched its current 
Corporate Strategy in 2018, with seven corporate priorities as stated below: 

3.3 Corporate Priorities: 

 Open Lewisham - Lewisham will be a place where diversity and cultural heritage is 

recognised as a strength and is celebrated. 

 Tackling the housing crisis - Everyone has a decent home that is secure and 

affordable. 

 Giving children and young people the best start in life - Every child has access to 

an outstanding and inspiring education, and is given the support they need to keep 

them safe, well and able to achieve their full potential. 

 Building and inclusive local economy - Everyone can access high-quality job 

opportunities, with decent pay and security in our thriving and inclusive local economy. 

 Delivering and defending health, social care and support - Ensuring everyone 

receives the health, mental health, social care and support services they need. 

 Making Lewisham greener - Everyone enjoys our green spaces, and benefits from a 

healthy environment as we work to protect and improve our local environment. 

 Building safer communities - Every resident feels safe and secure living here as we 

work together towards a borough free from the fear of crime. 

 

3.4 Values are critical to the Council’s role as an employer, regulator, and securer of services 
and steward of public funds.  The Council’s values shape interactions and behaviours 
across the organisational hierarchy, between officers, and members, between the council 
and partners and between the council and citizens.  In delivering our duties, we are 
guided by the Council's four core values: 

 We put service to the public first 

 We respect all people and all communities 

 We invest in employees 

 We are open, honest, and fair in all we do.  

 

3.5 The Council’s strong and resilient framework for prioritising action has served the 
organisation well in the face of austerity and on-going cuts to local government spending. 
This continues to mean, that even in the face of the most daunting financial challenges 
facing the Council and its partners, we continue to work alongside our communities to 
achieve more than we could by simply working alone. 

3.6 This joint endeavour helps work through complex challenges, such as the pressures faced 
by health and social care services, and to secure investment in the borough for new 
homes, school improvements, regenerating town centres, renewed leisure opportunities 
and improvement in the wider environment.  This work has and continues to contribute 
much to improve life chances and life opportunities across the borough through improved 
education opportunities, skills development and employment.  There is still much more 

Page 49

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

that can be done to realise our ambitions for the future of the borough; ranging from our 
work to support housing supply and business growth, through to our programmes of care 
and support to some of our most vulnerable and troubled families. 

3.7 The pace, scope and scale of change has been immense: the pandemic has demanded 
agility, creativity, pace, leadership, organisational and personal resilience, strong 
communications and an unerring focus on the right priorities.  The service and finance 
challenges arising from Covid are now blending with the wider economic implications of a 
decade of austerity, the trading changes arising from Brexit, and now the impacts arising 
from other global events (e.g. war in Ukraine, Covid lock downs in China, extreme climate 
events in India, etc..) impacting the supply of energy, goods and services and driving up 
inflation.   

3.8 Within the Council, the impact of the Covid pandemic is felt acutely across all of our 
service areas and throughout the year we have been grappling with real challenges in 
how we keep services running for our residents and how we protect the most vulnerable.  
Across the borough, residents are looking afresh at our borough, their neighbourhoods, 
and seeing where they live through new eyes. 

3.9 While we do not yet fully understand what all of the long-term implications of Covid will 
mean for the borough, there have been many clear and visible impacts of the pandemic 
on our residents, Lewisham the place and also the Council.  We know that coronavirus 
has disproportionately affected certain population groups in Lewisham, matching patterns 
that have been identified nationally and internationally: older residents, residents born in 
the Americas & the Caribbean, Africa or the Middle East & Asia, and residents in the most 
deprived areas of the borough have considerably higher death rates.  We know that more 
Lewisham residents are claiming unemployment benefits compared to the beginning of 
this year and that food insecurity has increased in the borough. 

4.0  GENERAL FUND POSITION 

4.1 The Council is reporting an overspend on general fund activities of £4.1m after the 
application of £4m Covid Local Authority support grant and £2m of corporate funding. The 
£4m of Local Authority support grant is utilising the remaining Covid funding carried 
forward from 2021/22, to mitigate costs arising due to the legacy impact of Covid. The 
monitoring position assumes that the legacy impact on expenditure or income foregone as 
a result of Covid is included within the reported position. The £2m of corporate funding 
consists of £1m set aside to partially fund the pressure on the General Fund due to the 
increase in energy prices and a further £1m set aside to provide the Children and Young 
People’s Directorate with time to deliver there savings as part of the sufficiency strategy.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 

Table 1 – General Fund Outturn Position for 2022/23 at Period 2 

 

General Fund 
Net 

Budget 
Net 

Forecast 

Net 
Forecast 
Variance 

  £m £m £m 

Children & Young People  
61.2 64.2 3.0 

Community Services 82.6 84.5 1.9 

Housing, Regeneration and Public 
Realm 21.7 24.2 2.5 

Corporate Resources 32.1 34.8 2.7 

Chief Executives 11.5 11.5 0.0 

Directorate Totals 209.1 219.2 10.1 

Covid Funding 0.0 (4.0)  (4.0)  

Corporate Items 39.5 37.5 (2.0)  

Corporate Budget 39.5 33.5 (6.0)  

Total 248.6 252.7 4.1 

 

4.2 The reported pressures are detailed further in paragraphs 6-10 with Section 11 containing 
an explanation of any further financial risks not included within the reported positions 

5.0 SAVINGS DELIVERY   

5.1 There are £5.6m of savings from 2020/21 which have not yet been delivered and £7.8m of 
savings from 2021/22 which are also yet to be delivered. These alongside £11.8m of 
savings need to be delivered during 2022/23, as set out in table 2 below, with the 
individual savings listed in Appendix 1: 

Table 2 - Savings to be delivered by Directorate 

Savings to be delivered by Directorate 
2020/21 
£m 

2021/22  
£m 

2022/23 
£m Totals 

Children & Young People  1.3 0.1 3.7 5.1 

Community Services 2.9 7.0 2.8 12.7 

Housing, Regeneration and Public Realm 1.2 0.0 3.7 4.9 

Corporate Resources 0.2 0.7 1.4 2.3 

Chief Executives 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 

Totals 5.6 7.8 11.8 25.2 

 

5.2 An early assessment of the deliverability of these savings has been undertaken. The table 
below shows savings which at this stage are not expected to be delivered during 2022/23, 
but delivery is expected in 2023/24. These are factored into the reported pressure in 
Section 4 and services are committed to striving to deliver these savings.   

Page 51

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Table 3 –Savings to be delivered by Directorate at risk 

Savings Not Expected to be Delivered by 
Directorates 

2020/21 
£m 

2021/22  
£m 

2022/23 
£m Totals 

Children & Young People  0.0 0.0 1.3 1.3 

Community Services 0.4 4.2 0.5 5.1 

Housing, Regeneration and Public Realm 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.2 

Corporate Resources 0.0 0.2 0.4 0.6 

Chief Executives 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Totals 0.6 4.4 2.2 7.2 

 

6.0    CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE DIRECTORATE 

6.1 The Children and Young People Directorate (CYP) are reporting an overspend of £3.0m, as 
detailed in the table and paragraphs below. It should be noted that the above reported 
position is before a budgeted £1m drawdown from corporate funding.  

Table 4 – Children & Young People Directorate Period 2 Forecast 

Children and Young People 
Directorate Projected Outturn 

Net 
Budget 

Net 
Forecast 

Net 
Forecast 
Variance 

  £m £m £m 

Children’s Social Care  52.8 54.6 1.8 

Education Services  13.8 15.5 1.7 

Family, Quality Commissioning (3.0)  (3.5)  (0.5)  

Schools (2.5)  (2.5)  0.0 

Total 61.2 64.2 3.0 

 

6.2 Children’s Social Care: The projected pressure is £1.8m. There are currently 484 Children 
Looked After (CLA) at the end of April 2022, compared to 479 CLA’s in April 2021. This 
number fluctuates month on month as children enter and leave care but has been 
consistent over the past 12 months. This is a demand led budget, the cost of individual 
placements is dependent on the needs of the child. This position assumes partial delivery 
of the care packages related savings with £1.4m currently listed as a pressure as it is too 
early in the financial year to verify the deliverabilty.  

6.3 Education Services: £1.4m pressure on taxi’s and £0.3m on passenger services based on 
the current number of children being transported and routes being delivered. The number of 
Children being transported to schools by taxi’s has more than doubled since 2019/20 with 
the percentage of Children being transported out of borough (longer, more costly journeys) 
also increasing. There is a risk of further costs as detailed in section 11 below.  

6.5 Family, Quality Commissioning: £0.5m underspend arising from robust management of 
the staffing budget. The service delivery has been reviewed and a restructure was 
undertaken however some elements are yet to fully implemented leading to posts still being 
vacant.   

  

Page 52

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

7.0 COMMUNITY SERVICES DIRECTORATE  

7.1 The Community Services Directorate are reporting an overspend of £1.9m, as detailed in 
the table and paragraphs below. 

Table 5 – Community Services Directorate 

Community Services Directorate 
Projected Outturn 

Net 
Budget 

Net 
Forecast 

Net 
Forecast 
Variance 

  £m £m £m 

Adults’ Social Care  63.4 65.3 1.9 

Integrated Commissioning 7.5 7.5 0.0 

Public Health  (0.8)  (0.8)  0.0 

Communities, Partnerships and 
Leisure  

8.9 8.9 0.0 

Culture, Learning and Libraries  3.5 3.5 0.0 

Total 82.6 84.5 1.9 

 

7.2 Adult Social Care:  A pressure of £1.9m is reported due to the delayed delivery of savings 
related to care packages. This is based on the level of commissioned care on Controcc at 
Period 2 with adjustment made for anticipated further demand, children transitioning into 
Adulthood and inflation costs, as well as adjustments for any additional health funding or 
savings delivered over the course of 2022/23.  

7.3 There are early signs of the impact of work done in partnership with Newton Europe to both 
improve productivity and also outcomes for people using our Enabement Service and also 
help to reduce or delay long term care placements. This comes at a time when the NHS 
recovery plans mean pressure on service remains very high.  

7.4 Culture, Learning and Libraries: A balanced position is reported at this stage of the year. 
The service are increasing course fees and café prices within Adult Learning in line with 
inflation to ensure cost recovery. This increase is in line with the Council’s fees and charges 
policy and will be incorporated within the budget setting fees and charges increase from 
2023/24. 

8.0 HOUSING, REGENERATION AND PUBLIC REALM  

8.1 The Housing, Regeneration and Public Realm Directorate are reporting an overspend of 
£2.5m, as detailed in the table and paragraphs below. 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 
 
 
Table 6 – Housing, Regeneration and Public Realm (HRPR) Directorate 
 

Housing, Regeneration and Public 
Realm Projected Outturn 

Net 
Budget 

Net 
Forecast 

Net 
Forecast 
Variance 

  £m £m £m 

Strategic Housing  3.9 5.9 2.0 

Public Realm  17.6 17.8 0.2 

Regeneration (0.4)  (0.1)  0.3 

Planning 0.7 0.7 0.0 

Total 21.7 24.2 2.5 

 

8.2 Strategic Housing: £2m pressure on Temporary Accommodation after the application of 
available grant funding. There are currently 985 people in Temporary Accommodation 
compared to 745 in April 2021. This increase in numbers has put pressure on the 
recharges for Housing Benefit payments which have exceeded the caps and limits 
(otherwise known as HB limitation recharges) and therefore are not payable through the 
DWP Housing Benefit claim. The level of overspend during the year may fluctuate 
depending on numbers moved on, accepted and levels of rent paid as the year progresses. 

8.3 Public Realm: A pressure of £0.2m is arising due to the increased cost of fuel, these 
charges will be incurred by the different divisions using Fleet Services but is shown under 
Public Realm until it is apportioned out.  

8.4 Regeneration: There is a £0.2m pressure on the Copperas Street saving due to a change 
in the delivery plans, further delivery is expected in 2023/24. There is further pressure of 
£0.1m on rental income due to properties within the portfolio being sold for Capital 
Receipts.  

8.5 Planning: The Planning Service is currently forecasted to end the year with a balanced 
budget position.  

9.0 CORPORATE RESOURCES DIRECTORATE  

9.1 The Corporate Resources Directorate are reporting an overspend of £2.7m, as detailed in 
the table and paragraph below. 

Table 7 – Corporate Services Directorate  

Corporate Resources Projected 
Outturn 

Net 
Budget 

Net 
Forecast 

Net 
Forecast 
Variance 

  £m £m £m 

Assurance 2.7 2.7 0.0 

Financial Services   5.5 5.5 0.0 

Resident & Business Services  16.8 19.5 2.7 

IT & Digital Services  7.8 7.8 0.0 

Reserves (0.7)  (0.7)  0.0 

Total 32.1 34.8 2.7 

Page 54

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 

9.2 Residents and Business Services: An energy pressure of £2.1m is shown within the 
Energy Team’s budget position, this will be apportioned out across the services but is 
included here at this early stage of the financial year so that it can be seen in it’s totality. 
There is £1m of corporate funding to partially mitigate (not included in the table above), 
shown in paragraph 4. There is a further £0.6m pressure on Revenue’s and Benefit’s as the 
service restructure has been delayed due to additional workload arising from the 
administration of several central government grants including the Council Tax Energy 
Grant, Household Support fund and Covid Additional Relief Fund (CARF). 

10. CHIEF EXECUTIVES DIRECTORATE 

10.1 The Chief Executive’s Directorate are reporting a balanced position at Period 2.  

Table 8 – Chief Executive’s Directorate 

Chief Executive's Projected Outturn 
Net 

Budget 
Net 

Forecast 

Net 
Forecast 
Variance 

  £m £m £m 

Assistant Chief Executive 7.5 7.5 0.0 

Law, Governance & Elections 4.0 4.0 0.0 

Total 11.5 11.5 0.0 

 

11. GENERAL FUND RISKS 

11.1 The table below shows the identified risks which are not certain to materialise but are 
significant in terms of financial impact. 

Table 9 – General Fund Risks 

General Fund 
Fly 

Tipping 
Temp 

Accom 
Comm 
Waste 

Transport Total 

        £m £m 

Children & Young People  
0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 

Community Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Housing, Regeneration and Public 
Realm 0.4 1.5 0.4 0.0 2.3 

Corporate Resources 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Chief Executives 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Total 0.4 1.5 0.4 1.0 3.3 

11.2 Fly Tipping: An enhanced level of service has been provided since April 2022, there is no 
budget for this service and the risk is based on the service remaining in place for the rest of 
2022/23.  

11.3 Temporary Accommodation: An additional £1.5m risk is highlighted, £1m relates to the 
anticipated level of incentive payments (compared to the budget) for landlords, these 
payments are aimed at stopping the breakdown of housing arrangements which would 

Page 55

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

further increased the demand on Temporary Accommodation. There is a further £0.5m risk 
of overspend on repairs costs on the Private Sector Leasing (PSL) stock based on the 
current budget versus anticipated spend levels.  

11.4 Commercial Waste: There is a risk that £0.4m of Commercial Waste income will not be 
achieved due to companies ceasing trading or no longer using the service as a result of 
Covid. The service is currently engaging with businesses to increase take up of the service.  

11.5  Transport: The pressure included within the reported position above is based on the 
current level of demand and cost of service. Based on historic trend date, each September 
the children transported increase by approx. 90, this coupled with inflationary increases in 
taxi driver costs and passenger services costs due to fuel and wage increases for taxi 
drivers present a further risk. The service are working hard to mitigate this risk by bringing 
into use further in borough provisions which should have a favourable impact on the 
financial risk above. A Transport Board has set up that includes representatives from the 
service, finance and Passenger service reviewing routes and considering options to reduce 
costs whilst maintaining service standards for the user.   

11.6 Unquantified Services Risk – Energy Care Homes: Due to the energy price increases 
there is the risk of an increased ask from Care Homes for inflation. It should be noted that 
services have been getting request for inflation significantly above the budget level of 2%. 

11.7 Unquantified Services Risk – Planning: The land charges function will be moving to the 
land registry in the financial year 2023/24 with work taking place to support that migration 
over the next 18 months. This migration is likely to affect the level of income received by 
the Council, yet the Council will still have responsibility for the accuracy of data and the 
preparation of Con 29 searches.  

11.8 The government are also making wide ranging changes to the Planning System, some of 
which have been introduced over the summer of 2021/22 with more expected. These 
require more upfront work by the planning service such as the preparation of design codes 
for which there is no opportunity for fee recovery. If the government changes are made in 
full, it is likely that the planning service will incur significant additional burdens requiring 
additional staffing and new IT systems. As yet, promised funding has not materialised so 
the cost implications are unknown. 

12. DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT  

12.1 The Dedicated Schools Grant for 2022/23 was provisionally announced in December 2021.   
At this stage the DSG has only been revised for Academy Recoupment and High Needs 
Import Export adjustments, both of these adjustments have a net neutral impact on the 
cash position. We are stil awaiting revision to the Early Years Block for the Spring 2022 
census, following this the 2021/22 final position will be confirmed and this will set the 
baseline for 2022/23. 

12.2 The table below shows the current position for 2022/23 showing the DSG on track to fully 
spend at this early stage of the year.  

 

 

 

 

Page 56

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Table 10 – DSG Projected Outturn 

DSG Projected Outturn 
Schools 

block 
£m 

Central 
school 

services 
block 

£m 

High 
needs 
block 

£m 

Early 
years 
block 

£m 

Total 
DSG 

allocation 
£m 

Gross 221.1 3.7 70.2 24.1 319.1 

In year Virements (0.7)  0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 

DSG Budget 220.4 3.7 71.0 24.1 319.1 

Expenditure 220.4 3.7 71.0 24.1 319.1 

Total Spend 220.4 3.7 71.0 24.1 319.1 

Variance 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

 

12.3 The DSG had a deficit carried forward from prior years of £10.4m as reported in the 
2021/22 Financial Outturn report and detailed in the table below. The overall net deficit on 
the DSG is £9.1m however each of the sub blocks come with their own conditions around 
expenditure with £1.3m set aside to fund specific challenges across the schools, central 
school services and early years blocks, leaving a reported deficit of £10.4m. 

12.4 The Directorate is currently working towards a mitigation plan supported by Schools forum 

to reduce the £10.4m deficit. The mitigation plan is currently in its third year of embedding 

which includes creating more in-house capacity both in special schools and resources 

basis. The position is not unique to Lewisham, we are currently commencing discussions 

with the Department for Education (DfE) to progress as part of the DfE safety value 

scheme.  This is the second wave of the initiative and will include approx. 50 other LA’s. 

The main challenges continue to be 

 0-5 year olds as more children are diagnosed with specialist need. This will require 

early intervention and support to prevent long term need for Education, Health and 

Care Plan (EHCP).  

 Post 16 /Further Education, continuing increase in numbers staying on to full time 

/part time education up to 25. 

 In borough provision, currently working with schools to create capacity to place 

more pupils in borough. This has included expansions to special schools and the 

creation of more targeted resource basis. 

12.5 It should be noted that the first two bullet points reflect the underfunded nature of the high 

needs block since the extension of the statutory age from 5 to 18, to 0 to 25. The DfE is 

aware of the challenges and has provided additional funding over the last 3 years, whilst 

the funding is welcomed, the demand continues to outstrip the available funding. This is 

despite an overall reduction in pupil numbers of approx.1,500. 

 

12.6 The Government is currently consulting on SEND changes which is expected to be followed 

by a SEND funding paper. The concern here is that the proposals to further support the 

needs of young people could again result in greater cost implications. It should be noted 

that there is an associated budget pressure on the General Fund for transport related costs. 

 

 

Page 57

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Table 11 – DSG Overall Position 

DSG Overall 
Schools 

block 
£m 

Central 
school 

services 
block 

£m 

High 
needs 
block 

£m 

Early 
years 
block 

£m 

Total 
DSG 

allocation 
£m 

Total spend for 2021/22 221.7 4.3 68.5 22.6 317.1 

DSG Variance 2021/22 0.0 0.0 5.4 (0.8)  4.6 

Balance Brought Forward (0.4)  (0.3)  5.0 (1.5)  2.9 

DSG Variance 2021/22 0.0 0.0 5.4 (0.8)  4.6 

Prior Year Funds Applied 0.0 0.1 0.0 1.0 1.1 

Estimate of Clawback 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5 

Balance Carry Forward (0.4)  (0.2)  10.4 (0.7)  9.1 

 

13.0 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 

13.1 The table below sets out the current budget for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) in 
2022/23. At this early stage of the financial year, the current forecast is for an overall 
balanced account. The balanced HRA budget seen in the table includes a budgeted 
contribution from reserves which is to be used to fund the HRA major works and new 
supply programme and is included as a part of the 30 year HRA business plan. The HRA 
budget will be revised in the next month to take account of the final closing position for 
2021/22 as well as updating stock numbers and forecast income, expenditure carry 
forwards and loss of stock. 

Table 12 – Housing Revenue Account 

Housing Revenue Account 
Net 

Budget 
Net 

Forecast 

Net 
Forecast 
Variance 

  £m £m £m 

Housing, Regeneration and Public Realm – 
Housing 

13.4 13.4 0.0 

Lewisham Homes & Repairs & Maintenance 39.9 39.9 0.0 

Resources 1.8 1.8 0.0 

Centrally Managed Budgets (55.1)  (55.1)  0.0 

Total 0.0 0.0 0.0 

 

13.2 There is a significant income target from the charging of major works at properties for 
leasehold tenants of £6.0m, which is based on the General Capital programme allocation of 
£83.4m. Work undertaken on a leaseholder property is currently charged to the leaseholder 
upon completion, as opposed to being based on estimates. This is being reviewed now that 
new long-term contracts are in place and planned works can be programmed effectively 
allowing bills to be raised based on estimates. As at the end of May 2022, a total of £0.46m 
of charges have been raised to leaseholders. There are ongoing discussions with 
Lewisham Homes to ensure that they are raised in financial year 2022/23. This is not 
currently factored into the HRA Budgets/forecasts and would enable reserve balances to be 

Page 58

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

replenished for works funded in prior years.  

13.3 Repairs & Maintenance (R&M) is currently forecast to budget, but it should be noted that 
R&M overspent by £9.6m in 2021/22. Updated forecasts will be provided next month when 
the 2022/23 updated programme data for the year is available. If any pressures arise in this 
area, it would be expected that either a compensatory reduction in the Capital programme 
would be made or costs within the revenue stream recharged to Capital where appropriate. 
This would help to mitigate any overspends which may arise.  

13.4 Whilst income from tenant’s rents and service charges, garage rents and leaseholder 
service charges is being projected to budget, it would be expected that additional income 
may arise due in part to void levels being lower than current budgeted rates, and the 
completion of the leaseholder service charge audit in September 2022. This will be updated 
once more data is available. In addition, the bad debt impairments charge to the HRA will 
be reviewed. Whilst energy costs overall underspent in 2021/22 by £0.6m, this is not 
expected to occur in 2022/23 due to price increases. The current revenue allocation in 
2022/23 is £3.0m. In addition there is an energy reserve of £1.0m which will be called upon 
if pressures arise in this area.  

13.5 The current 30 year HRA financial model has been refreshed, with the final outturn for 
2021/22 as well as the latest updates for the general capital programme, revised stock 
numbers and reserves allocations incorporated into the plans. Based on the outturn budget 
plans are being updated. The revisions to the budgets will be agreed and processed and 
may push some of the planned capital and new supply expenditure into 2023/24 due to a 
re-programming of works and programme delays. 

13.6 The 2022/23 updated capital programme will be available from next month. Any 
underspends or slippage in the programme will be used to cover for any overspend in R&M 
or be re-profiled to 2022/24. The HRA element of the BfL programme will also be updated 
for next month. The current allocation is £79.6m but will be updated with the latest 
programme consolidation when available and re-profiled accordingly. Underspends and/or 
re-profiling of the budgets may result in a lower than forecasted revenue capital 
contribution. No adjustment for these are made in the current forecasts.  

14.0 COLLECTION FUND  

Council Tax 

14.1 As at 31 May 2022, £31.8m of Council Tax has been collected representing 18.6% of the 
total amount due for the year. This is £0.2m below the 18.7% target required in order to 
reach 95% for the year.  

  Table 13 - Council Tax Collection Fund  

Council 
Tax 

Cash 
Collected 

(cumulative) 

Cash 
needed to 
meet 95% 

Profile 

Difference 
between 
collected 
and 95% 
profile 

Current 
Year 

Collection 
Rate% 

Required 
Collection 

Rate to 
reach 
95% 

Difference 
2021/22 

% 
Collected 

Apr-22 17,397,272 18,376,158 978,885 10.23% 10.81% 0.58% 10.59% 

May-22 31,588,028 31,824,427 236,399 18.58% 18.71% 0.13% 18.41% 

 

 

Business Rates 

14.2 As at 31 May 2022, £17.9m of Business Rates has been collected representing 22.4% of 

Page 59

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

the total amount due for the year. This is £2.6m below the level required in order to reach 
99% for the year. 

  Table 14 – Business Rate Collection 

Business 
Rates 

Cash 
Collected 

(cumulative
) 

Cash 
needed to 
meet 99% 

Profile 

Differenc
e 

between 
collected 
and 99% 
profile 

Current 
Year 

Collectio
n Rate% 

Require
d 

Collecti
on Rate 
to reach 

99% 

Difference 

2021/22 
% 

Collecte
d 

Apr-22 9,024,446 8,058,757 (965,689)  13.3% 11.9% -1.4% 2.8% 

May-22 15,211,611 17,861,362 2,649,751 22.4% 26.3% 3.9% 12.0% 

 

15.0 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

15.1 The table in Appendix 2 sets out the budget for the Capital Progamme for 2022/23 as at 31 
January 2021. These are being revised as part of the year end processes for 2021/22 and 
an up to date budget taking into account any slippage will be presented in the next report.  

16.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

16.1 This report concerns the projected financial outturn for 2021/22. Therefore, any financial 
implications are contained within the body of the report. 

17.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 17.1 The Council is under a duty to balance its budget and cannot knowingly budget for a deficit. 
It is imperative that there is diligent monitoring of the Council’s spend and steps taken to 
bring it into balance.  

18.0 CRIME AND DISORDER, CLIMATE AND ENVIRONMENT IMPLICATIONS  

18.1 There are no specific crime and disorder act or climate and environment implications 
directly arising from this report. 

19.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

19.1 The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a public sector equality duty (the equality duty or 
the duty). It covers the following protected characteristics: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or 
belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

19.2 There are no equalities implications directly arising from this report. 

Background Papers 

Short Title of Report Date Location Contact 

Budget Report 2021/22 3rd March 2021 (Council) 1st Floor Laurence House David Austin 

Report Author and Contact 

Nick Penny, Head of Service Finance nick.penny@lewisham.gov.uk; or  

Page 60

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
mailto:nick.penny@lewisham.gov.uk


 

 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

David Austin, Director of Finance at david.austin@lewisham.gov.uk

Page 61

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
mailto:david.austin@lewisham.gov.uk


 

APPENDIX 1 – Summary of agreed revenue budget savings for delivery in 2022/23 

Year Ref Directorate Director Proposal 
Savings to 

be 
Delivered 

Expected 
Delivery in 

2022/23 

Expected 
Savings 
Shortfall 

Risk 
Rating of 
Saving in 
2022/23 

2020/21 CYP01 CYP 
Lucie 
Heyes 

More efficient use of residential placements            300             300               -      

2020/21 CYP03 CYP 
Lucie 
Heyes 

More systematic and proactive management of the 
market 

           600             600               -      

2020/21 CYP04 CYP 
Lucie 
Heyes 

Commission semi-independent accommodation for 
care leavers 

           250             250               -      

2020/21 CYP05 CYP 
Lucie 
Heyes 

Residential framework for young people. Joint SE 
London Commissioning Programme 

           200             200               -      

2021/22 A-13 CYP 
Angela 
Scattergood 

Children with complex needs (CWCN Revision) 62 62              -      

2021/22 
A-01 
and A-
01a 

CYP 
Lucie 
Heyes 

Staff productivity - arising from new ways of working 
(including learning from the Covid 19 pandemic), better 
collaboration and a return on IT investment 

63 63              -      

2022/23 B-02 CYP 
Lucie 
Heyes 

Strategic recharging 600 600              -      

2022/23 C-03 CYP 
Lucie 
Heyes 

Reduction in the use of agency social workers. 215 215              -      

2022/23 C-07 CYP 
Angela 
Scattergood 

Review Short breaks provision. 50 50              -      

2022/23 E-05 CYP 
Angela 
Scattergood 

Traded services with schools 50 50              -      

2022/23 E-06 CYP 
Lucie 
Heyes 

Reduce care leaver costs 100 0            100    

P
age 62



 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

2022/23 F-02 CYP 
Lucie 
Heyes 

Children Social Care Demand management 500 0            500  

2022/23 F-03 CYP 
Lucie 
Heyes 

Children Service reconfiguration - fostering 250 0            250  

2022/23 F-05 CYP 
Lucie 
Heyes 

VfM commissioning and contract management - CSC 250 0            250  

2022/23 C-35 CYP 
Lucie 
Heyes 

Specialist social care support review 177 0            177  

2022/23 C-36 CYP 
Lucie 
Heyes 

Reduction of commissioned care leaver housing costs - 
CSC Placements 

400 400              -      

2022/23 C-36 CYP 
Lucie 
Heyes 

Reduction of commissioned care leaver housing costs - 
NRPF 

200 200              -      

2022/23 D-13 CYP 
Sara 
Rahman 

Review of commercial opportunities for nurseries within 
children’s centres 

11 11              -      

2022/23 A-01 CYP All 
Staff productivity - arising from new ways of working 
(including learning from the Covid 19 pandemic), better 
collaboration and a return on IT investment 

796 796              -      

2022/23 A-03 CYP All Transport 67 67              -      

2022/23 F-26 CYP All Subscriptions 2 2              -      

CYP Subtotal 
           
5,143  

           
3,866  

           
1,277    

2020/21 COM04 Comm Joan Hutton Reduce costs for Learning Disability and Transitions 800 800              -      

2020/21 COM05 Comm Joan Hutton Increased focus of personalisation 132 132              -      

P
age 63

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

2020/21 COM1A Comm Joan Hutton 
Managing demand at the point of access to adult social 
care services 

900 900              -      

2020/21 COM2A Comm Joan Hutton Ensuring support plans optimise value for money 500 100            400    

2020/21 COM3A Comm Joan Hutton 
Increase revenue from charging Adult Social Care 
clients 

500 500              -      

2020/21 CUS06 Comm James Lee Bereavement Services increase income targets 67 67              -      

2021/22 E-04 Comm Joan Hutton 
Introduce charging for certain elements of self-funded 
care packages 

82 82              -      

2021/22 F-01 Comm Joan Hutton Adult Social Care Demand management 2000 900         1,100    

2021/22 F-06 Comm Joan Hutton 
Adults with learning difficulties and 14 - 25yrs 
transitions costs 

760 760              -      

2021/22 F-09 Comm Joan Hutton 
In house services reductions - adults passenger 
transport 

100 0            100    

2021/22 C-17 Comm Dee Carlin 
Re-configuration of MH Supported Housing pay - social 
interest group 

100 100              -      

2021/22 F-24 Comm Joan Hutton 
Adult Social Care cost reduction and service 
improvement programme 

        3,849             900          2,949    

P
age 64

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

2021/22 E-03 Comm James Lee 
Review discretionary sales, fees and charges and 
increase to the point of full cost recovery. 

72 72              -      

2022/23 A-02 Comm James Lee Hybrid roles - enforcement 50 50              -      

2022/23 B-06 Comm James Lee Cuts to the main grants programme 800 800              -      

2022/23 B-07 Comm Liz Dart Review of Council run events 30 30              -      

2022/23 B-10 Comm James Lee Reduction in local assemblies service 178 178              -      

2022/23 C-02 Comm Joan Hutton Adult Learning and Day Opportunities 100 0            100    

2022/23 C-17 Comm Dee Carlin 
Re-configuration of MH 
Supported Housing pay – Social 
Interest Group 

150 150              -      

2022/23 C-28 Comm Dee Carlin Supported Housing Services 84 84              -      

2022/23 F-24 Comm Joan Hutton 
Adult Social Care cost reduction 
and service improvement 
programme 

430 0            430    

2022/23 C-40 Comm 
Catherine 
Mbema 

Substance misuse – contract review and staffing 92 92              -      

2022/23 E-14 Comm James Lee Changes to leisure concessions for older people 95 95              -      

2022/23 A-01 Comm All 
Staff productivity - arising from new ways of working 
(including learning from the Covid 19 pandemic), better 
collaboration and a return on IT investment 

773 773              -      

2022/23 A-03 Comm All Transport 63 63              -      

2022/23 F-26 Comm All Subscriptions 1 1              -      

Communities 
         
12,708  

           
7,629  

           
5,079    

P
age 65

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

2020/21 CUS04 HRPR Zahur Khan 
Income generation - increase in commercial waste 
charges 

300 300              -      

2020/21 CUS14A HRPR Zahur Khan Parking service budget review 500 500              -      

2020/21 RES15 HRPR 
Patrick 
Dubeck 

Commercial estate growth 400 200            200    

2022/23 C-10 HRPR 
Fenella 
Beckman 

Housing Services Review 300 300              -      

2022/23 D-02 HRPR 
Patrick 
Dubeck 

Business Rates Revaluation for the estate 40 40              -      

2022/23 D-06 HRPR 
Patrick 
Dubeck 

Catford Campus - Estate Consolidation 11 11              -      

2022/23 D-07 HRPR 
Patrick 
Dubeck 

Meanwhile use - Temporary Accommodation 25 25              -      

2022/23 D-8 HRPR 
Patrick 
Dubeck 

Miscellaneous - income generation 25 25              -      

2022/23 E-02 HRPR 
Patrick 
Dubeck 

Income from building control 15 15              -      

2022/23 E-07 HRPR 
Fenella 
Beckman 

Housing – Increased rent for Private Sector Lease 
(PSL) and Private Managed Accommodation (PMA) 

375 375              -      

2022/23 F-15 HRPR Zahur Khan Environment - environmental operations review 330 330              -      

2022/23 F-15a HRPR Zahur Khan Environment - environmental operations review 567 567              -      

2022/23 F-17 HRPR Zahur Khan Road safety enforcement 250 250              -      

2022/23 F-20 HRPR Zahur Khan 
Emission based charging for 
Short Stay Parking 

120 120              -      

2022/23 F-21 HRPR Zahur Khan Road Safety Enforcement 375 375              -      

2022/23 F-22 HRPR Zahur Khan Motorcycle parking charges 80 80              -      

P
age 66

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

2022/23 C-38 HRPR 
Patrick 
Dubeck 

Strategic development team cost capitalisation 100 100              -      

2022/23 C-39 HRPR 
Patrick 
Dubeck 

Aligning the Kickstart scheme with Government plans 25 25              -      

2022/23 C-44 HRPR Zahur Khan Removal of graffiti from private property 5 5              -      

2022/23 D-11 HRPR 
Patrick 
Dubeck 

Business Rates revaluation of Council owned 
properties 

100 100              -      

2022/23 E-12 HRPR 
Patrick 
Dubeck 

Building Control Service Efficiency 20 20              -      

2022/23 E-15 HRPR Zahur Khan Seek corporate sponsorship for Festive Lighting 30 30              -      

2022/23 F-25 HRPR Zahur Khan Road Safety – new yellow boxes 150 150              -      

2022/23 A-01 HRPR All 
Staff productivity - arising from new ways of working 
(including learning from the Covid 19 pandemic), better 
collaboration and a return on IT investment 

686 686              -      

2022/23 A-03 HRPR All Transport 12 12              -      

2022/23 F-26 HRPR All Subscriptions 7 7              -      

Housing, Regen and Public Realm 
           
4,848  

           
4,648  

               
200    

2020/21 RES01 Corp 
David 
Austin 

Benefits realisation of Oracle cloud 150 150              -      

2021/22 A-04 Corp Mick Lear Process automation in Revs and Bens 20 20              -      

2021/22 A-05 Corp Mick Lear Revs and Bens - additional process automation 400 200            200    

2021/22 D-06 Corp 
Brian 
Colyer 

Catford Campus - Estate Consolidation 259 259              -      

2022/23 A-04 Corp Mick Lear Process automation in Revs and Bens 100 100              -      

P
age 67

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

2022/23 A-06 Corp Mick Lear Revs and Bens - Generic roles 400 0            400    

2022/23 C-08 Corp 
Murray 
James 

IT - mobile telephony review 10 10              -      

2022/23 D-05 Corp 
Brian 
Colyer 

Savings on mothballed assets.  A review is in 
progresses - savings on the cost of running the 
operational estate  

50 50              -      

2022/23 E-01 Corp 
David 
Austin 

Improved Debt collection 250 250              -      

2022/23 E-09 Corp 
David 
Austin 

Realising further benefits from the Oracle Cloud 
Solution and exploiting its functionality as a fully 
integrated enterprise resource planning solution. 

100 100              -      

2022/23 A-01 Corp All 
Staff productivity - arising from new ways of working 
(including learning from the Covid 19 pandemic), better 
collaboration and a return on IT investment 

511 511              -      

2022/23 A-03 Corp All Transport 4 4              -      

2022/23 F-26 Corp All Subscriptions 6 6              -      

Corporate Resources 
           
2,260  

           
1,660  

               
600    

2022/23 A-01 CE All Staffing 234 234              -      

2022/23 A-03 CE All Transport 4 4              -      

2022/23 F-26 CE All Subscriptions 4 4              -      

Chief Executives 
               
242  

               
242                    -      

Total 
         
25,201  

         
18,045  

           
7,156    

 

P
age 68

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

APPENDIX 2 – Capital Programme Major Projects Budgets 2022 To 2025 

Major Programmes & Projects 
2021/22 

£m 
 2022/2

3 £m 
2023/2
4 £m 

2024/2
5 £m 

3 year 
Total £m 

GENERAL FUND          

CCTV Modernisation 1.1  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Leisure Schemes 3.6  0.2 0.0 0.0 0.2 

Schools - School Places Programme 7.2  6.0 0.9 0.0 6.9 

Schools – Other (Inc. Minor) Capital 
Works 

4.6  4.0 0.0 0.0 4.0 

Schools - Unallocated 0.0  1.5 0.0 0.0 1.5 

Highways & Bridges – TfL 1.5  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Highways & Bridges – LBL 4.1  3.1 0.0 0.0 3.1 

Asset Management Programme  1.3  1.7 2.0 0.0 3.7 

Other AMP Schemes 1.7  1.4 0.0 0.0 1.4 

Unallocated AMP 0.0  0.8 0.6 0.0 1.4 

Broadway Theatre 2.0  4.8 0.2 0.0 5.0 

Catford Phase 1 – Thomas Lane Yard/ 
CCC 

0.6  1.3 1.3 0.0 2.6 

Catford Station Improvements 0.1  0.5 0.9 0.0 1.4 

Travellers Site Relocation 0.1  1.0 2.7 0.0 3.7 

Lewisham Gateway (Phase 2) 3.5  0.0 4.8 0.0 4.8 

Beckenham Place Park (Inc. Eastern 
Part) 

0.4  0.9 0.6 0.0 1.5 

Catford Town Centre 0.2  0.8 0.0 0.0 0.8 

Milford Towers Decant 0.3  0.3 3.4 0.0 3.7 

Deptford Southern Sites Regeneration 0.3  0.0 2.2 0.0 2.2 

Edward St. Development 12.0  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Lewisham Homes – Property Acquisition 3.0  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Achilles St Development 1.0  0.0 3.6 0.0 3.6 

Place Ladywell 0.8  0.8 0.0 0.0 0.8 

Temporary Accomodation - Mayow Rd 7.0  1.1 0.1 0.0 1.2 

Temporary Accomodation - Canonbie Rd 1.8  0.3 0.0 0.0 0.3 

Temporary Accomodation - Sydney Arms 1.0  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Temporary Accomodation - Morton 
House 

0.6  1.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 

Temporary Accomodation - Manor 
Avenue 

0.3  0.9 0.0 0.0 0.9 

Disabled Facilities Grant 1.3  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Private Sector Grants and Loans 0.6  0.6 0.6 0.0 1.2 

Other General Fund Housing Schemes 1.5  1.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 

Other Miscellaneous Schemes 3.1  1.2 0.0 0.0 1.2 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 66.6  35.2 23.9 0.0 59.1 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT          

Building For Lewisham Programme (BfL) 50.2  121.2 129.3 67.5 318.0 

Decent Homes Programme 57.8  83.4 62.9 64.1 210.4 

Housing Management System 1.3  1.2 0.0 0.0 1.2 

Other Schemes 6.5  3.8 3.9 4.0 11.7 

TOTAL HRA PROGRAMME  115.8  209.6 196.1 135.6 541.3 

TOTAL PROGRAMME 182.4  244.8 220.0 135.6 600.4 

Page 69



 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 

Page 70

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

 

Public Accounts Select Committee 

 

Draft Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 

Date: 30 June 2022 

Key decision: No 

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Executive Director for Corporate Resources, Director for Finance and Head 

of Strategic Finance, Planning and Commercial 

Outline and recommendations 

The purpose of this report is to present the draft medium term financial position for the 

Council over the next four years and the assumptions on which it is based, as well as the 

likely levels of budget reductions which will be required to present a balanced budget.  

 

Public Accounts Select Committee is recommended to: 

- Note the draft report which is being tabled at Mayor and Cabinet on the 6 July 2022; 

Page 71

Agenda Item 7



 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Timeline of engagement and decision-making 

2 March 2022 – Budget report to Council 

15 June 2022 – Financial Outturn for 2021/22 – report to Mayor & Cabinet (M&C) 

30 June 2022 – Medium Term Financial Strategy – report to Public Accounts Select 
Committee 

6 July 2022 – First 2022/23 financial monitoring report to M&C 

 

 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. As per Appendix 1, the draft Medium Term Financial Strategy being presented to 
Mayor and Cabinet on the 6 July 2022.  

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. Public Accounts Select Committee is recommended to: 

2.2. Note the draft report which is being tabled at Mayor and Cabinet on the 6 July 
2022. 

 

3.  POLICY CONTEXT 

3.1. As per Appendix 1, the draft Medium Term Financial Strategy being presented to 
Mayor and Cabinet on the 6 July 2022.  

 

4. MAIN BODY REPORTSTRUCTURE OF THE REPORT 

4.1. As per Appendix 1, the draft Medium Term Financial Strategy being presented to 
Mayor and Cabinet on the 6 July 2022.  

 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 

5.1. As per Appendix 1, the draft Medium Term Financial Strategy being presented to 
Mayor and Cabinet on the 6 July 2022.  

 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1. As per Appendix 1, the draft Medium Term Financial Strategy being presented to 
Mayor and Cabinet on the 6 July 2022 

 

7. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

7.1. As per Appendix 1, the draft Medium Term Financial Strategy being presented to 
Mayor and Cabinet on the 6 July 2022.  

Page 72

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

8. CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

As per Appendix 1, the draft Medium Term Financial Strategy being presented to 
Mayor and Cabinet on the 6 July 2022. 

9. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

9.1. As per Appendix 1, the draft Medium Term Financial Strategy being presented to 
Mayor and Cabinet on the 6 July 2022.  

 

10. HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS  

10.1. As per Appendix 1, the draft Medium Term Financial Strategy being presented to 
Mayor and Cabinet on the 6 July 2022. 

 

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

11.1. Budget Report 2021/22 – Full Council 3 March 2021 
https://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s77544/Council%20Budget%
202021-2022.pdf 

11.2. Financial Results 2020/21 – Mayor & Cabinet 9 June 2021 
https://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s81077/Financial%20Results
%202020-21.pdf 

 

12. GLOSSARY  

12.1. As per Appendix 1, the draft Medium Term Financial Strategy being presented to 
Mayor and Cabinet on the 6 July 2022.  

12.2.  

 

13. REPORT AUTHOR AND CONTACT 

13.1. For more information please contact David Austin, Director for Corporate Services, 

1st Floor Laurence House, 020 8314 9114, David.Austin@lewisham.gov.uk.  

13.2. Katharine Nidd, Strategic Finance Manager, 4th Floor Laurence House, 020 
8314 6651, Katharine.Nidd@lewisham.gov.uk. 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 

Draft Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 

Page 73

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Mayor and Cabinet 

 

Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 

Date: 6 July 2022 

Key decision: No 

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Executive Director for Corporate Resources, Director for Finance and Head 
of Strategic Finance, Planning and Commercial 

Outline and recommendations 

The purpose of this report is to set out the medium term financial position for the Council 

over the next four years and the assumptions on which it is based, as well as the likely 

levels of budget reductions which will be required to present a balanced budget.  

 

Mayor and Cabinet is recommended to: 

- Note the risks with regards to current year budget reduction measures, the long term 
impact of Covid and the uncertainty of future government funding; and the potential for 
this to impact negatively on the budget reduction levels required for 2023/24; 

- Agree the 2023/24 to 2026/27 Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and outline 
approach being taken to identify budget reduction proposals required to meet the 
remaining estimated budget gap of £36m over the next four years; and 

- Agree the timetable for bringing forward budget reduction proposals and building the 

2023/24 budget to Full Council in February/March 2023. 

 

Page 75



 

 

Timeline of engagement and decision-making 

2 March 2022 – Budget report to Council 

15 June 2022 – Financial Outturn for 2021/22 – report to Mayor & Cabinet (M&C) 

30 June 2022 – Medium Term Financial Strategy – report to Public Accounts Select 
Committee 

6 July 2022 – First 2022/23 financial monitoring report to M&C 

 

 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. The Council is required to annually set a balanced budget and prepare a sustainable 
medium term financial plan.  Due to the sustained levels of economic and fiscal 
uncertainty this continues to be as challenging as in recent years.  This following a 
decade of austerity which the Council has successfully navigated but only by 
significantly reducing its use of resources.  

1.2. The Covid-19 pandemic drove the country into recession in 2020/2021 and 
according to the Office of National Statistics, over the year as a whole, Gross 
Domestic Product (GDP) contracted by 9.9% in 2020, marking the largest annual fall 
in UK GDP on record.  

1.3. Whilst the economy returned to pre-Covid levels by November 2021 the Russian 
invasion of the Ukraine has since driven energy and utility prices up sharply and 
severely tightened supply chains globally. By June 2022 the level of national 
inflation reached 40 year highs and triggered concerns for the impact of a cost of 
living crisis. Against this economic backdrop, despite the Comprehensive Spending 
Review in 2021 which set out three year Department spending levels, there is little 
clarity on what this will mean for local government finances as the government 
continues to change the policy framework, tweak grant arrangements, and rely on 
the sector to administer new burdens at short notice.   

1.4.       Despite four years with limited action, it remains the Government’s stated intention to 
implement new funding baselines for all local authorities. The new baselines will be 
based on a review of local needs and resources (the Fair Funding Review) and a 
review of the national business rates tax. The last time the ‘needs based 
assessment’ was updated was for the 2013/14 settlement using the 2011 census.  
However, due to other government priorities such as the national response to 
inflationary pressures, it is expected that these changes will be further delayed.  

1.5. Alongside unprecedented levels of economic and fiscal uncertainty in 2022/23 the 
Council is committed to adjusting to levels of spending without the £26m of Covid 
grant support used in 2021/22, prior year undelivered savings carried forward, and 
additional significant budget reductions for 2022/23.  These must be delivered in full 
as planned as any shortfall adds to the funding gap, requiring more cuts to be 
identified to set a balanced budget.   

1.6. The Council is setting its medium term financial plan in the recovery period of a 
global pandemic without the clarity or certainty on the levels of funding it can expect 
beyond March 2023 at this time.  For this reason the assumptions, as set out in the 
report, will need to be tested and reviewed as future funding announcements and 

Page 76



 

 

general economic forecasts are themselves revised and updated.   

1.7. The current base case assumptions produce an assumed budget gap of £36m over 
the four year period of 2023/24 to 2026/27, with a profile of £10m, £10m, £8m, and 
£7m in each year.   The report also presents the assumptions for an optimistic and 
pessimistic case which, given the number of variables, moves the four year budget 
gap down by £19m or up by £17m from the base case of £36m. 

1.8. For the future budget gap, officers have started work on a number of initiatives, 
firstly in reviewing and confirming that the £11.8m cuts for 2022/23 and £3.6m for 
2023/24 offered in 2021/22 remain deliverable.  Where there are risks to delivery 
officers will need to identify and bring forward alternative cuts proposals.   

 
1.9. Executive Management Team (EMT) have reviewed the assumptions used and 

confirmed their intention to continue to use the targeted key service led approach 
and to seek efficiencies as set out in the report to developing future budget 
reduction proposals.  This will involve EMT and Senior Leadership Team (SLT) 
working to develop draft officer proposals to be put to Members for scrutiny in 
November and decision in December.  All services are part of this process.   

 
1.10. The timetable to deliver the Budget for 2023/24 is as set out in Table 1 below. 

 

Month Key Stage 

 

June / July 2022 Officers develop proposals and plans for the agreed Service 

Target Areas and Priority Areas for General Efficiencies 

July / August 

2022 

EMT engagement with cabinet members individually to test 

proposals 

September / 

October 2022 

Engagement with Mayor, Member for Finance & Resources 

and Cabinet. 

Chancellor’s Autumn Budget 

October / 

November 2022 

Draft Officer proposals presented for scrutiny and decision 

Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 

December 2022 Mayor & Cabinet decision 

 

January 2023 Council Tax Base agreed by Council  

Draft Council Budget for 2023/24 prepared 

February 2022 Greater London Authority sets their Precept for 2023/24 

Council approves Budget & Council Tax for 2023/24 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. Mayor and Cabinet are recommended to: 

2.2. Note the risks with regards to current year budget reduction measures, the long term 
impact of Covid and the uncertainty of future government funding; and the potential 
for this to impact negatively on the budget reduction levels required for 2023/24; 

2.3. Agree the 2023/24 to 2026/27 Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and outline 

Page 77



 

 

approach being taken to identify budget reduction proposals required to meet the 
remaining estimated budget gap of £36m over the next four years; and 

2.4. Agree the timetable for bringing forward budget reduction proposals and building the 
2023/24 budget to Full Council in February/March 2023. 

 

3.  POLICY CONTEXT 

3.1. The Council’s 2018 to 2022 Corporate Strategy identifies seven corporate priorities 
and four core values which are the driving force behind what we do as an 
organisation. It sets out a vision for Lewisham and the priority outcomes that 
organisations, communities and individuals can work towards to make this vision a 
reality.  Through the work on Covid recovery these are also supported by the four 
Future Lewisham themes. 

3.2. In setting out the Council’s Budget Strategy, in engaging our residents, service 
users and employees, and in deciding on the future shape, scale and quality of 
services, we will be driven by the Council’s four core values: 

 We put service to the public first. 

 We respect all people and all communities. 

 We invest in employees. 

 We are open, honest and fair in all we do. 

 

3.3. These core values align with the Council’s seven corporate priorities namely:  

Open Lewisham - Lewisham is a welcoming place of safety for all where we 
celebrate the diversity that strengthens us.  

Tackling the housing crisis - Everyone has a decent home that is secure and 
affordable.  

Giving children and young people the best start in life - Every child has access to 
an outstanding and inspiring education and is given the support they need to 
keep them safe, well and able to achieve their full potential.  

Building an inclusive local economy - Everyone can access high quality job 
opportunities, with decent pay and security in our thriving and inclusive local 
economy.  

Delivering & defending: Health, Social Care and Support - Ensuring everyone 
receives the health, mental health, social care and support services they need.  

Making Lewisham greener - Everyone enjoys our green spaces and benefits 
from a healthy environment as we work to protect and improve our local 
environment.  

Building safer communities - Every resident feels safe and secure living here as 
we work together towards a borough free from the fear of crime. 

 
3.4. As the Council seeks to support the borough and its businesses and residents 

through the pandemic and beyond, this recovery is based on the four key themes of 
Future Lewisham, these are: 

 A Greener Lewisham; 

 A healthy and well future; 

 An economically sound future; and  

 A future we all have a part in. 

Page 78



 

 

3.5. The Medium Term Financial Strategy will directly support the theme of an 
economically sound future for the borough and its residents.  

3.6. The Council is in the process of preparing its new corporate strategy and the 
Council’s budgets will be aligned to this via the regular financial monitoring, the 
building up of the 2023/24 budget, and the current refresh and re-profiling of the 
capital programme.   

 

 

4. STRUCTURE OF THE REPORT 

4.1. The Report is structured as follows: 

1.  Executive Summary  

2.  Recommendations 

3.  Policy Context 

4.  Structure of the report 

5.  Economic Context 

6.  MTFS Assumptions 

7.  Revenue Expenditure Assumptions 

8.  General Fund Budget Gap 

9.  Addressing the Budget Gap and Timetable 

10.  Risks 

11.  Conclusion 

12.  Financial Implications 

13.  Legal Implications 

14.  Equalities Implications 

15.  Environmental Implications 

16.  Crime & Disorder Implications 

17.  Background Papers 

18.  Appendices 

 

5. ECONOMIC CONTEXT  

5.1. The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) represents the start of the Council’s 
formal budget process, which concludes with the setting of the overall Budget each 
year.  The Budget Report for 2023/24 will be presented to Mayor and Cabinet and 
full Council in February/March 2023. 

5.2. The key objectives of the four year strategic approach continue to be: 

 plan the Council’s finances over a four year period to take account of local and 

national economic considerations and priorities; 

 ensure that the Council’s corporate priorities continue to drive its financial 

strategy and resource allocation; 

Page 79



 

 

 assist the alignment of service and financial planning processes; 

 ensure that the plan takes account of: stakeholder and partner consultation; 

external drivers; capital investment; budget risk assessments; and expected 

developments in services; 

 ensure that the MTFS is linked to other internal strategies and plans; and 

 that the final agreed 2023/24 Budget reflects all these considerations. 

5.3. The financial outlook for the Council and the public sector as a whole remains 
extremely challenging.  The priorities for public finances are not certain and the 
resources available for local services continue to be adjusted as a result of post 
Brexit trading conditions, life and work changes following the Covid pandemic, and 
other global economic drivers impacting the cost of goods and services.   

5.4. In the continuing absence of a multi-year local government finance settlement and 
knowing that the current high levels of inflation will take at least 18 months to return 
to long term target levels of 2%, during which time the impact will be 
disproportionately on areas with higher inequality, it is expected that the Council’s 
finances will remain under continued severe financial strain in the coming years.  
Faced with higher costs, more demands, and lower anticipated income the Council 
needs to prepare to make further budget reductions in order to be able to set a 
balanced budget for 2023/24 and future years in line with its statutory obligation to 
do so. 

5.5. The focus of the MTFS is the Council’s General Fund budget.  Whilst it is very 
important, particularly at a time of prolonged financial constraint, to identify ways in 
which all services can be delivered more effectively across traditional organisational 
and financial boundaries, the nature of the current continuing financial austerity 
regime is such that most of the budget reductions have to come from Council’s 
General Fund services.   Having a sound General Fund MTFS and a strategy for 
responding to the challenges it presents is an essential pre-requisite to ensuring 
effective responses from all of the services the Council directs and influences. 

  

  National Economic Context 

5.6. The UK economy recovered to its pre-pandemic level around the end of last year 
with real GDP having regained its February 2020 level by November 2021, with 
GDP growth of 7.5% for the year. However, the Russian invasion of the Ukraine in 
early 2022 and further Covid lock downs in China have resulted in new global supply 
chain pressures and rising inflation alongside stagnant growth.  The March 
statement from the Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) forecast that GDP growth 
will fall to 3.8% in 2022 and be 1.8% in 2023 and 2.1% in 2024.  

5.7. The Plan for Jobs has supported the strong recovery in the labour market, with the 
total number of payrolled employees in February 2022 2.3% above pre-pandemic 
levels. Unemployment has fallen steadily for twelve consecutive months to below its 
pre-pandemic rate (three months to February 2020) at 3.9% in the three months to 
January 2022. The OBR highlights that the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme 
“looks to have exceeded all predictions, including ours, regarding its likely success 
in avoiding the persistent high unemployment that has followed other recessions.” 

With vacancies at record highs, the unemployment to vacancy ratio is at a record 
low. Nominal wage growth was 4.8% in the three months to January 2022 and the 
OBR expects nominal wage growth to average 3.3% across the forecast period. 

5.8. However the Consumer Prices Index (CPI) inflation has risen to a 30-year high in 
recent months. This has primarily been driven by global factors outside the 
government’s control, including continued disruption to global supply chains and 

Page 80



 

 

higher global energy and commodity prices. The OBR forecasts inflation to remain 
elevated through 2022 and 2023, peaking at 8.7% in Q4 2022. On an annual basis, 
inflation is forecast to be 7.4% in 2022, before decreasing to 4.0% in 2023 and 1.5% 
in 2024. Inflation is then forecast to be 1.9% in 2025 and 2.0% in 2026. The Bank of 
England is responsible for controlling inflation and took the steps of raising interest 
rates from the historic low of 0.1% to 0.5% in February, then 0.75% in March and 
has now increased rates to 1% in May 2022.  

5.9. The Office of National Statistics (ONS) and the OBR have produced the chart below 
which separates out the constituent elements of CPI  and which demonstrates that 
the main drivers of the current 30 year high level of inflation are utilities (blue) and 
supply chain disruption (red – other tradables). Wage inflation is broadly 
represented by the green (other non-tradables) bar and this is expected to hold 
reasonably steady during the period. The overall rate of CPI is therefore expected to 
return to the long term forecast of 2% by Q1 of 2024. 

 

 

 

5.10. Despite the relatively short term nature expected of the current 30 year high levels 
of inflation, the impact in 2022 and 2023, when coupled with the economic drag 
following the pandemic has meant that the UK as a whole is facing a cost of living 
crisis which will make the role of local government simultaneously more vital for its 
residents and even more financially challenging. 

Local Government 

Local Government funding reform 
 

5.11. It remains the Government’s intention to implement new funding baselines for all 
local authorities.  The new baselines to reflect updated assessments of local needs 
and resources (the Fair Funding Review), the approach to business rates retention, 
and resetting business rate baselines.  The last time the ‘needs based assessment’ 
was updated was for the 2013/14 settlement.   

5.12. Confirmation of the timing for these changes has not been provided.  The later in the 
year any changes are made, up to the local government settlement in November / 
December, the harder planning the allocation of resources to set a balanced budget 
for 2023/24 becomes. 

Page 81



 

 

5.13. On business rates, London continued the business rate pool for 2020/21.  The 
Covid-19 pandemic negatively impacted all boroughs tax bases through the period 
of disruption and for many the recovery of the tax base has been slow, this resulted 
in the requirement for the Council to contribute £2.1m to the pool for 2020/21. 
London ceased pooling for 2021/22, although 8 boroughs formed a local pool, but 
with no decision for another pan-London pool for future years at present.     

5.14. The other elements of the impact of rolling over spending decisions pending the 
funding reform has been the rise in annual grants for specific services (e.g. better 
care fund, social care grant, homelessness grant), policy changes resulting in the 
introduction of new grants (e.g. market sustainability grant, lower tier grant) and 
discontinuation of others (e.g. new homes bonus), as well as new once-off funding 
such as the Services Grant.  This limits the Council’s ability to plan with any certainty 
and constrains local decision making on how to allocate resources.   At the same 
time councils have been expected to continue to implement above inflationary 
council tax rises with council tax now providing 50% of the Council’s General Fund.    

 

6. MTFS ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1. The resource envelope set out in this section of the report consists of the following 
elements: 

 The ‘Settlement Funding Assessment’ (SFA) which is the total of retained 

business rate income and business rate top-up. 

 Council Tax income. 

  

 Settlement Funding Assessment (SFA) 

6.2. Local authorities receive funding from the government via the Settlement Funding 
Assessment (SFA). This previously consisted of a share of local Business Rates 
and a Revenue Support Grant (RSG).  

6.3. The table below shows the forecast SFA over the next four years. 

Table 2: Make-up of Lewisham’s 2022/23 and Estimated Settlement Funding 

Assessment, 2022/23 to 2023/24 to 2026/27 

Settlement Funding 

Assessment 

2022/23 

Actual 

2023/24 

Forecast 

2024/25 

Forecast 

2025/26 

Forecast 

2026/27 

Forecast 

Main case £m £m £m £m £m 

Retained Business Rates  29.02     

Business Rate Top-up 95.15     

Baseline Funding Level (BFL)  123.22 117.42 113.72 110.95 

Total  SFA 124.17 123.22 117.42 113.72 110.95 

  

 Business rates income  

6.4. In 2018/19, the government devolved 100% of Business Rates to London Local 
Authorities (LA) via the pilot pool.  In 2019/20, the level of devolved Business Rates 
was changed to 75%.  In London, this was shared between Local Authorities and 
the GLA with 48% to local authorities and 27% to the GLA. In the 2019 Spending 

Page 82



 

 

Round the government announced that other than the established Combined 
Authorities all sponsored pilots would end and revert to the original business rates 
system of distribution.  At the end of 2020/21 the London pool was suspended by 
mutual agreement of London Boroughs.  Therefore, Lewisham returned to the 
business rates shares as at 2017-18, which means the LA retains 30% of Business 
Rates and the GLA 37%. The RSG has been ‘rolled-in’ at this stage thereby phasing 
it out.  
 

6.5. Changes to Business Rates retention were intended to be fiscally neutral by 
allowing the main local government grant (e.g. Revenue Support Grant) to be 
phased out and additional responsibilities devolved to local authorities or regions, 
matching the additional funding from business rates. 

6.6. Through Covid-19 the national business rates system has been and continues to be 
significantly impacted.  Given the level of reliefs and other uncertainties, in particular 
in relation to possible changing rateable valuations and tax collection levels, as the 
economy resets and recovers from Covid-19 the income assumptions for the 
Council’s budget remain uncertain but assume government interventions will hold an 
assumed broadly stable position for this tax base for councils in 2023/24. 

6.7. The forecast now assumes the reforms and the business rates reset will be 
implemented from 2024/25 although this has still to be confirmed.  This is assumed 
to include the return to the phased reduction of RSG.  The government also 
operates a safety net for business rates with Lewisham’s currently set at £88m, £7m 
below the £95m expected shown above.  This means any loss of collection up to 
£7m is borne by the Council directly before becoming a burden on the national pool.   

6.8. As the London pool has been stopped for 2021/22 no assumptions are made in this 
MTFS on any risks or benefits should it be re-started. 

 

The Fair Funding Review 

6.9. Central government funding for local authorities is based on an assessment of 
relative needs and resources. The overarching methodology that determines how 
much funding each authority receives annually was introduced over ten years ago 
and has not been updated since funding baselines were set at the start of the 50 per 
cent business rates retention scheme in 2013/14. 

6.10. The government is undertaking the Fair Funding Review to update the needs 
formula and set new funding baselines.  The government is proposing to simplify the 
funding formula based on a small number of key cost drivers such as population, 
deprivation, rurality/density, and area costs. The government has so far undertaken 
two consultation exercises.  The consultation identified key areas that require a 
more detailed assessment of needs such as adult social care, children’s services, 
highways and public transport, waste collection and disposal.   

6.11. The MTFS assumes any impact will now be for the start of 2024/25 by when the 
2021 Census results will be available to provide a better baseline for the formula. 

 

Council Tax income 

6.12. In considering savings proposals and the level of Council Tax, Members make 
political judgements balancing these with their specific legal responsibilities to set a 
balanced budget and their general responsibilities to stewardship of the Council’s 
finances over the medium term.   

6.13. As well as decisions about the level of Council Tax, Council Tax income is also 

Page 83



 

 

affected by growth in the number of properties in the borough, the rate of Council 
Tax collection, and the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme (LCTRS). 

6.14. The government sets annually the limit by which council tax can be increased locally 
without triggering the requirement to hold a referendum. Exceptionally this was set 
at 3% for the two year period 2018/19 and 2019/20.  The level then reverted and 
was set at 2% for 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23.  Lewisham agreed increases for 
this element of the Council Tax of 1.99% for each of these years (2020/21 – 
2022/23).  While recognising that Council Tax is a regressive tax, the MTFS main 
case assumes this arrangement continues over the next four years.  

6.15. The Social Care Precept is in addition to this.  The Social Care precept was 
introduced by the government from 2016/17, and the percentages available to levy 
annually have varied over the six year period.  In 2021/22 government gave Local 
Authorities the option of levying a 3% Social Care Precept over two years.  This was 
agreed by the Council and the 3% included in the 2021/22 budget. A further 1% 
precept was included in the 2022/23 budget. Given the delay in the long awaited 
government proposals for the sustainable long-term funding of adult social care 
services it remains unclear whether and how the government’s solution to the longer 
term funding of social care will include contributions via local authority taxation or 
grant.  As it’s not expected that this will be in place for 2023/24 a 1% precept has 
been assumed for 2023/24, but none in the latter years of the MTFS. 

6.16. In 2022/23 Council Tax was raised by 2.99% in total, the 1.99% core increase and 
the 1% social care precept increase as set out above.  This generated additional 
funding of £3.7m.  

6.17. For 2023/24 the MTFS main case assumes a 2.99% increase from 1% precept and 
1.99% in core Council Tax and then 1.99% in each year thereafter.  This reflects the 
assumption that the Council will apply the maximum increase allowed without a 
referendum in 2023/24 and beyond.  In addition, the MTFS assumes a 0.5% 
average increase in the Council Tax base for the years 2023/24 and 2024/25, 
increasing to 1% for 2025/26 and 2026/27, based on Planning Service’s housing 
trajectory. In total over the period this will add approximately £13m to the Council 
Tax income base over the four year period to 2026/27.  However, this remains 
below the London target for housing supply in the borough.  The MTFS also 
acknowledges the impact on collection rates from Covid-19 which dropped 
significantly.  For each year from 2023/24 onwards the MTFS assumes life time 
collection rates will continue to recover and then match the pre-pandemic levels as 
follows: 96%, 97%, 97% and 97% respectively. 

6.18. Forecast Council Tax income from 2023/24 to 2026/27 is set out in Table 3 using 
the assumptions in Appendix 1.  The amounts collected here are after allowing for 
the cost of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme and any uncollected debts.   

Table 3: Council Tax Income Future Year Projections 

 

 

 

 
2023/24 

projection 

2024/25 

projection 

2025/26 

projection 

2026/27 

projection 

 £m £m £m £m 

Optimistic  134.106 139.581 145.984 151.867 

Main 132.159 136.874 140.993 145.237 

Pessimistic  127.511 132.089 136.817 140.935 

Page 84



 

 

 

 

7. REVENUE EXPENDITURE ASSUMPTIONS 

7.1. In addition to the reduction in the level of resources available over the next four 
years, the Council faces a number of budget pressures which will add to the overall 
revenue expenditure, including legacy pressures from the Covid-19 pandemic and 
temporary pressures from energy and inflation. This section of the report considers 
the effect such pressures will have on the future years’ revenue expenditure. 

 

 Pay 

7.2. A pay award of 1.5% - 1.75% was agreed by the Greater London Provincial Council 
for 2021/22.  There is no current offer for 2022/23 although 2% has been budgeted 
for.  In light of the current inflation levels, and despite the constraints on public 
finances, the main model has assumed a 3% pay award for 2023/24 and 2024/25 
but assumed that pay awards will return to match long term inflation of 2% in 
2025/26 and 2026/27.   

 

 General price inflation assumptions 

7.3. General price inflation is calculated on non-pay expenditure on General Fund 
services (excluding internal recharges and housing benefit payments).  A proportion 
of this expenditure is contractual with indices linked to inflation but in many cases 
the Council is in a position to re-negotiate increases.  As set out in section 5 above, 
current level of inflation is at a 40 year high, however, the Office for Budget 
Responsibility forecasts this returning to the Bank of England long term forecast of 
2% by Q1 of 2024. Therefore the MTFS assumes that price inflation will be 2.5% in 
2023/24 and 2024/25 and 2% in 2025/26 and 2026/27.  Whilst not building the 
current record levels of inflation into the MTFS base model, the Council is 
recognising the temporary impact in 2022/23 and has allowed for additional 
pressures funding of £2.7m which is equivalent to a further 3% uplift on net non-
salary budgets. 

 

 General fees and charges assumptions 

7.4. The Council’s approach in the past has been to expect fees and charges it levies to 
rise in line with inflation unless there is a specific decision to increase them by more 
or less.  In some cases, this will be outside the control of the Council (for example, 
where charge rates are set by statute).  However, for the purposes of these 
projections of spending, it is assumed that on average fees and charges in 
aggregate will increase by inflation.  

 

     Further budget pressures and risks 

7.5. Forecasting the impact of demand changes is the most difficult aspect of the MTFS.  
But the MTFS needs to make allowance for the potential impact of these through the 
allocation of an amount for risks and pressures.  The key challenges that impact on 
the demand for Council services are as follows: 

Page 85



 

 

 Population growth – this particularly affects people-based services such as 

adult and children’s social care.  But it also affects general demand for universal 

services such as leisure and cultural services and school places; 

 Ageing population – this affects care for the very elderly but also impacts on 

care for younger adults and children with disabilities who are living longer as a 

result of improvements in medical care.  It also has a direct impact on the 

funding the Council needs to provide for the London-wide concessionary fares 

scheme; 

 Household growth – this impacts on General Fund property-based services 

such as refuse collection and waste disposal; highways, footpaths and street 

lighting; and more school places and additional health and care needs. 

 Impact of government policy – improvements in economic well-being and 

reduction in crime should potentially mean less demand for Council services. 

However, the shortage of housing, the impact of welfare changes, and policy 

toward people with No Recourse to Public Funds are all having a major impact 

on social needs within the borough.  With deep and long lasting implications for 

the level and impact of poverty as set out in the 2019 United Nations report on 

the impact of austerity in the UK since 2010, further evidenced through the 

impact of Covid on local communities in 2020/21 and 2021/22 which further 

highlighted the current levels of inequality in society, and now the 

disproportionate impact of high inflation on lower income households.     

 Impact of reducing preventative services – reductions in budgets for 

preventative services such as early years, the youth service and aspects of 

adult social care provision are likely to affect demand for more acute services 

including children at risk, children involved in crime, adults with drug and alcohol 

problems, adults in residential accommodation and so on; and 

 Regulations and standards – following the Covid pandemic, with new 

responsibilities for local government through anticipated funding changes and 

as councils respond to changes in community need; standards and ways of 

working are expected to change. 

7.6. The Council is pro-actively trying to address these demand pressures and seeks to 
ensure, wherever possible, that the changes it has to make to services help 
residents and the community become more resilient and reduce rather than increase 
demand.  

7.7. Other pressures, such as the cost of transition of children with disabilities into adult 
services or when specific grants are reduced or withdrawn, are assumed to be 
managed within service budgets.  

7.8. To enable the Council to recognise these pressures and risks in a flexible way as 
they come to bear, the MTFS includes an annual provision corporately for growth 
from demand and other unavoidable pressures in the budget.  The model assumes 
this will continue for future years, but that there is the slow reduction in this funding 
from the current level of £5.5m assumed for 2023/24 down to £4.5m in 2024/25.   

7.9. Whilst all Covid-19 restrictions have been removed, the borough’s economy has not 
returned to pre-pandemic levels and there remains additional demand pressure on a 
number of services, including adults’ and childrens’ social care.  In 2021/22 the 
direct cost of Covid-19 for the Council was £26m, with £4m of once off Covid-19 
funding carried forward and available for 2022/23.  At present government has 

Page 86



 

 

removed almost all of its funding for residents and businesses and it is not expected 
that additional funding will be made available to meet local government’s direct cost 
pressures. The Council has therefore made a £2.3m allowance to enable the 
Council to accept some of the new ways of working costs into service budgets. 

7.10. Whilst simultaneously working to protect our most vulnerable residents and 
businesses throughout the pandemic, the Council had also committed to reducing its 
annual budget by over £30m across 2020/21 and 2021/22. Given the scale and 
nature of the reductions many of these required significant service transformation 
which was unable to be done in the timescales expected. There remains £5m of 
undelivered budget reduction initiatives from these years and it’s therefore proposed 
that this be put back into the budget in 2023/24.  

 

 Specific grant assumptions  

7.11. The following assumptions have been made in the projections on specific grants 
which fund services.  The general point is that within the Council’s devolved budget 
management arrangements the funding position is noted and it is for the service to 
ensure that their spending is managed within the available grant.  The main specific 
grants include: 

 Public Health – this grant is £26.06m in 2022/23, an increase of £0.66m from 

2021/22.  Any future year changes to the public health budgets once announced 

will need to be the subject of further officer proposals to ensure expenditure on 

services matches the available grant.  

 

 Better Care Fund (BCF) – this grant is £25.97 in 2022/23.  The Council receives 

approximately £10.4m of this funding via the local Clinical Commissioning Group 

(CCG) to support Council led services.  

 Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF) – In 2022/23, the iBCF increased by £0.4m 

to £14.9m in 2022/23 from the £14.5m in 2021/22. This grant is for funding adult 

health and social care activity. Plans for its use, which have not yet been 

finalised, will also require the agreement of the CCG. The grant is likely to be 

spent in substantially the same way as in 2022/23.  

 Social Care grant - the provisional Local Government finance settlement in 

December 2022 committed £636m more for Social Care grant nationally for 

2022/23. This has increased Lewisham’s final grant from £10.773m in 2021/22 to 

£14.622m (a 35.7% increase) with the discretion to spend this on both adults and 

children social care.  In the 2022/23 budget £1.95m of the £3.85m increase was 

taken into base budget and the remaining £1.9m was utilised to support once off 

pressures within these services. It is assumed in the MTFS that in 2023/24 this 

£1.9m be taken into base budget.  

 Other grants – the Council receives a number of other revenue grants, the most 

recent and significant being the £6.56m of once off ‘Services Grant received in 

2022/23.  Pending a full financial settlement for local government these have 

increased in recent years, in number and scale, and therefore post a greater risk 

to the Council’s budget as they are only annual.  These include recent s31 grants 

which supplement business rates, social care, and special education needs as 

well as some other relatively small or directly related to specific projects.   

Page 87



 

 

A number of the smaller ones come from the Greater London Authority; for 

example, funding we receive from the London Mayor’s Office for Policing and 

Crime (MOPAC) to support crime reduction work.   

Any changes to these grants will have to be met with an equivalent reduction in 

service spend to ensure it will have a neutral impact on the Council’s overall 

budget gap.  

   

Other Income and Expenditure Items 

7.12. There are other income and expenditure items in the Council’s budget which are 
mainly non-service specific.  These consist of the following elements: 

 Capital financing charges 

7.13. Capital financing costs include all revenue costs relating to the Council’s outstanding 
borrowing which comprises repayment of principal and interest charges.  It also 
includes provision for capital spending which is charged directly to revenue and 
repayment of historic debt in respect of the former Inner London Education 
Authority.  These costs are offset by principal and interest repayments from the 
Catford Regeneration Partnership Limited, Lewisham Homes, and interest on the 
Council’s investment balances. 

7.14. The main factors that affect the forecasting of capital financing costs are the level of 
additional borrowing for capital purposes, the level of the Council’s cash balances, 
and interest rates.  The MTFS assumes that capital spending will be funded either 
from grant, capital receipts, capital reserves (including S106 and CIL), be charged 
direct to revenue or borrowing.  

7.15. Short term changes to interest rates should not materially affect borrowing costs as 
the Council borrows long term (typically 30 plus years) at fixed rates.  It also 
assumes that cash balances remain at their current level in the immediate future 
pending a pick-up in the delivery of the capital programme.  If interest rates rise the 
Council receives more interest on balances invested.  However, the projections 
have not built in any assumptions about changes to interest rates as their scale is 
likely to be limited and the timing remains uncertain.   

Levies 

7.16. These cover the London Pension Fund Authority, the Environment Agency and Lee 
Valley. It is assumed these will stay at similar levels for future years. 

 Added years pension costs 

7.17. In the past, staff who retired early were awarded additional assumed years in the 
Pension Fund with the additional cost being charged to the General Fund.  Although 
added years stopped being awarded some years ago, the Council has an on-going 
commitment for those staff who were awarded added years in the past.   

 

 Other known future years’ budget adjustments  

7.18. There are further adjustments that are included within the budget projections for 
future years, funded from the £5.5m corporate provision stated in para 7.8 above: 

 Concessionary fares – the cost of concessionary fares to the Council changes 

each year to reflect increases in population entitled to concessionary fares, 

increases in fares themselves, levels of usage, and changes to the basis for 

Page 88



 

 

allocation of costs between boroughs.  The projections now assume an annual 

increase of £0.5m for the period 2024/25 to 2026/27. This was decreased in 

2021/22 and held flat in 2022/23 to reflect the impact of Covid on public transport 

usage, but this is expected to return to previous levels and require additional 

funding. 

 Pension Fund Contributions – It is anticipated that, due to recent court rulings 

impacting all local government pension schemes and the continuing maturing of 

the Lewisham fund with fewer members contributing, additional contributions will 

be required into the Council’s pension fund in coming years.  It is assumed that 

up to a further £1m per annum will be needed from the next valuation. 

 Service investments – these range across a number of areas and are being 

monitored as the Future Lewisham plans evolve.  They include: cost of market 

changes in areas such as social care and leisure services, demand for housing 

and temporary accommodation in particular, the need to develop stronger 

economy and partnership relationships across the Borough, and other changes 

due to government policy and funding. 

  

 

8. GENERAL FUND BUDGET GAP  

8.1. Using the medium term resource envelope and revenue expenditure projections 
stated above, the resulting overall forecast position for the authority is shown in 
Table 4 below: 

 

 

Page 89



 

 

Table 4: Summary of Projected Financial Position 

  Optimistic Case Main Case Pessimistic Case 

  2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Business Rates Baseline 
Funding Level 

124.171 125.122 120.280 117.578 123.219 117.416 113.715 110.952 116.464 110.889 107.175 104.203 

BR S31 Grant (RPI to CPI 
adjustment) 

6.000 6.000 6.000 6.000 6.000 6.000 6.000 6.000 6.000 6.000 6.000 6.000 

Business Rates Collection Fund 
losses 

(2.000) (1.000) (1.000) 0.000 (4.000) (3.000) (2.000) (1.000) (6.000) (5.000) (4.000) (2.000) 

Council Tax raised 134.106 139.581 145.984 151.867 132.159 136.874 140.993 145.237 127.511 132.089 136.817 140.935 

Council Tax Collection Fund 
losses 

(1.000) (1.000) 0.000 0.000 (2.000) (1.000) (1.000) (1.000) (4.000) (3.000) (2.000) (1.000) 

Total Resources 261.276 268.703 271.264 275.445 255.378 256.289 257.708 260.189 239.975 240.991 243.991 248.138 

Total Revenue  Expenditure 267.568 270.748 278.275 280.377 268.950 266.839 265.928 267.450 271.369 252.047 251.797 254.393 

Budget Gap 6.291 2.045 7.011 4.932 13.572 10.550 8.220 7.260 31.393 11.069 7.805 6.255 

Approved Savings  (3.611) (0.195) 0.000 0.000 (3.611) (0.195) 0.000 0.000 (3.611) (0.195) 0.000 0.000 

Additional Annual Savings 
Required 2.680 1.850 7.011 4.932 9.961 10.355 8.220 7.260 27.782 10.874 7.805 6.255 

P
age 90



 

 

Cumulative Savings Required 2.680 4.530 11.541 16.473 9.961 20.316 28.535 35.796 27.782 38.656 46.461 52.717 

P
age 91



 

 

8.2. Taking the main case scenario as the expected position, the MTFS shows the 
annual measures required to bridge the budget gap from 2023/24 to 2026/27 as 
£9.961, £10.355, £8.220 and £7.260, respectively in each year.  A total of £36m 
over the four years to 2026/27.   

8.3. It is important to note two things.  Firstly, any of the pressures not addressed in 
service spending through 2022/23 will add to the cuts target for 2023/24.  
Secondly, the cuts offered up in 2020/21 for 23/24 and 24/25, £3.611m and 
£0.195m respectively, are included within these MTFS figures. If these are not 
delivered then the budget gap increases proportionately. 

8.4. The optimistic case scenario has been modelled to show the effect that positive 
changes in the assumptions will have on the overall budget gap. Here the 
cumulative budget gap to 2026/27 reduces by approximately £19m to £16m. This 
is based on lower predicted cuts to baseline funding and higher increase in the 
Council Tax base.   

8.5. The pessimistic case scenario reflects the impact of certain risks having a more 
severe impact.  The cumulative budget gap to 2026/27 increases by approximately 
£17m to £53m. This scenario demonstrates the difficulty the Council could 
potentially face if the impact of funding cuts are higher and Council Tax base and 
collection rates are lower than expected. 

8.6. The Council has considered how it will manage the longer term financial impact of 
the Covid pandemic and made some allowance for this in the base case scenario 
to ensure that there is not unrealistic reliance assumed on Government. 

8.7. The next section of this report looks at how the Council continues to address the 
gap in order to produce a balance budget. 

 

9. ADDRESSING THE BUDGET GAP AND TIMETABLE 

9.1. Officers continue to work on implementing delayed savings not implemented due 
to the impact of Covid 19, the £11.835m of new budget reductions taken into the 
budget for 2022/23, while also managing the recovery from Covid-19 and reliance 
on additional grant support.  This work is discussed more fully in the quarter one 
financial monitoring reported to Mayor & Cabinet on the 6 July 2022.   

9.2. Given the scale of the budget gap for 2023/24 a budget reduction process is 
required and the timetable below sets out the process to ensure that robust and 
deliverable proposals can be put forward by officers and scrutinised by Members 
before the budget is prepared for 2023/24.  

9.3. The initial work by officers will be to review the 2022/23 pressures and delivery of 
plans to ascertain whether these remain fully deliverable.  If they are, officers will 
consider refining and further developing them as necessary to update proposals 
for pre-scrutiny ahead of Mayor and Cabinet as per the timetable.  Where strategic 
work streams are not sufficient to deliver the level of savings required officers will 
also continue to work on alternatives.   

9.4. In 2020/21 and 2021/22 the Council adopted a collaborative thematic approach 
centred round the Council’s recovery from Covid, Future Lewisham, and transition 
to delivering future services within the available financial resources on a secure 
and sustainable basis. 

9.5. This approach enabled services to work together as One Council across themes to 
develop cross cutting proposals that sought to ensure that reductions were 
sustainable and did not cause cost shunt into either other service or the wider local 
government and health systems. It moved away from potential ‘salami slicing’ of 
budgets.  

Page 92



 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

9.6. For 2023/23, the proposal is to approach the budget reduction process by 
simultaneously targeting key services whilst driving increasing efficiency from all 
services where feasible. The targeting of certain key areas of spend will enable a 
clearer focus on service design, both from a cost and income perspective.   

9.7. The concentration on key services reflects where the Council’s budgets of scale 
are committed and will be easier to support for innovation and lead on, allowing for 
more opportunities of scale to be achieved.  There is a risk that the concentration 
on certain services concentrates the non-delivery risk but the investment in the 
Programme Management Office approach to support will seek to mitigate this. 

9.8. The services which will be focused on are those with both the greatest spend and 
the most opportunity to drive reductions from. These are:  

 Children social care – both demand management and commissioning 
approaches; 

 Adult social care – the continued and successful adoption of the new 
preventative delivery model alongside the requirements of the Health and 
Social Care Act; 

 Public Realm – to manage demand whilst reducing costs and maximising 
income; 

 Resident and Business Services – to ensure that those that can pay for 
services do so in full, whilst supporting those that can’t.  

9.9. In addition to targeting key services, the Council will look across all services to 
continue to drive increased efficiency from its delivery. This will include certain 
areas of persistent overspend such as SEN transport costs, the pace and 
efficiency of the capital programme delivery and better management more 
generally of inflationary pressures, both pay and non-pay. 

9.10. The table below shows the alignment of this approach and the areas of focus for 
2023/24 relative to the respective gross service budgets as the starting point. 

 

 

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

140.0

Staff

Non staff

Lewisham Gross Service Budgets Expenditure 2022/23 - £m

1

2

3
45

6 7 8

Page 93

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 

9.11. Existing governance arrangements will be utilised where appropriate to ensure that 
there is rigorous oversight of the programmes that are brought forward to support 
these reduction measures and where new necessary new governance will be 
introduced under the leadership of EMT. 

 

TIMETABLE   

9.12. The timetable to deliver the necessary cuts and Budget for 2023/24 is as set out 
below. 

Date / Month Key Stage 

 

May 2022 Budget recap to SLT emphasised risks of not delivering 
approved cuts and to introduce the new approach and 
potential scale of reductions required. 

Formal process launched.  

June 2022 MTFS overview presented to EMT 

Check points as to development of the process and 
proposals 

30 June 2022 MTFS presented to PASC 

06 July 2022 MTFS presented to M&C 

18 July 2022 EMT engagement with cabinet members individually to test 
proposals 

15 August 2022  Draft proposals with outline plan and implications for 
delivery (including equalities considerations) 

05 September 
2022 

Engagement with Mayor and Member for Finance & 
Resources 

 

19 September 
2022 

Engagement with Cabinet  

 

September / 
October 2022 

Medium term financial planning and monitoring. 
Chancellor’s Autumn Budget 

26 September 
2022 

Final proposals for submission to scrutiny 

 

Service led target areas

1. Children Social Care – demand & commissioning

2. Adult Social Care – deliver Newton and care act

3. Public Realm – demand; costs & income

4. Resident & Business Services – income

Efficiencies

5. Housing – governance, supply & costs

6. Special Education Needs & Transport – costs

7. Capital programme delivery – time & value

8. Pay (incl. pension) and non-pay inflation - cost

Page 94

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Date / Month Key Stage 

 

October 2022 All Member briefings 

October – 
November 2022 

Pre-scrutiny process 

7 December 
2022 

Budget Reduction proposals to M&C 

November / 
December 2022 

Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 

January 2023 Council Tax Base agreed by Council  

Draft Council Budget for 2023/24 prepared 

Business rate payers consultation launched 

January 2023 Draft Council Budget 2023/24 to PASC 

February 2023 Budget 2023/24 to M&C 

February 2023 Greater London Authority sets their Precept for 2023/24 

February/March 
2023 

Council approves Budget & Council Tax for 2023/24  (NB 
this may be pushed back a week depending on the GLA 
timetable) 

 

9.13. Once the in-year service monitoring position is more certain and the Chancellor’s 
Autumn Budget announced, it may be necessary to bring an updated MTFS 
forward to refresh the assumptions and plans outlined in this report.   

    

10. Risks 

10.1. There are a number of risks facing the Council in setting its MTFS for the period 
2023/24 to 2026/27. The key issues are discussed below. 

10.2. The long term impact of Covid, and our ability to unwind the pressures within 
2022/23 is still yet to be known, both in terms of the financial impact on the Council 
and its residents, but also in terms of the boroughs residents and its economy and 
the cost of living crisis that has emerged.  The regular financial monitoring will be 
critical in ensuring that this is reported and action taken in a timely manner.  We 
are assuming that there will be no further Covid funding received and that the 
remaining grants held will be fully utilised and that an additional £2.3m will be 
required and included in the 2023/24 MTFS to support any permanent or semi-
permanent changes to underlying services. 

10.3. Funding uncertainty and risk. The Fair Funding review has been delayed 
previously and is now long overdue, however it is unlikely that Government will be 
publishing this in 2022 given the continuing distraction of the pandemic and the 
cost of living crisis.  Whilst we can assume that a roll forward in funding from 
2022/23 into 2023/24 is likely it can be assumed that Local Government funding 
will be reduced.  This will place even greater dependence on Council Tax and local 
income or cost reduction measures at a time when all of the Government support 
measures for residents have ended.  

10.4. The scale of the budget reductions taken in 2021/22 and 2022/23, coupled with the 
budget reductions which have not been fully achieved, has meant that £5m has 
been put back into the 2023/24 budget although the resultant gap could increase if 
the current budget cannot be delivered in full.  A number of the measures were 
ambitious and required transformation and resources to deliver, much of which had 

Page 95

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

been diverted into our Council’s response to, and recovery from, the pandemic.  

10.5. The progress and outcomes of the capital strategy and programme review work 
reporting to M&C in July are not yet known.  If the capital strategy and its 
associated risks (given the scale and pace of delivery) put more pressure on the 
revenue budget (e.g. through abortive costs, overspends, new or extended 
projects, etc.) this will add to the cuts targets required.  

 

11. CONCLUSION 

11.1. The Medium Term Financial Strategy sets out initial estimates based on uncertain 
assumptions for the funding of local government to prudently anticipate the scale 
of financial challenge the Council will face over the medium term to 2026/27.   

11.2. The next stages in the development of the financial strategy will be further 
refinement of the Council’s longer term forecasting in light of the next Spending 
Round, Local Government Finance Settlement, and clarity on the government’s 
policy agenda as it impacts local government.  This, in turn, will inform the 
Council’s development of the saving proposals required to balance the Council’s 
budget and timing of these.  

11.3. The MTFS identifies that the Council may have to make up to £36m of budget 
reductions over the next four years, on top of the £3.6m and £0.9m already put 
forward in 2021/22 for 2023/24 and 2024/25.    

11.4. Given the high level of uncertainty and risk of making cuts which may then have to 
be reversed if the assumptions used are wrong, the recommended focus now is to 
ensure that those cuts previously offered remain deliverable, returning to Mayor & 
Cabinet in good time to make further difficult decisions if necessary.   

11.5. Local authorities have largely acknowledged that deep changes are required if 
they are to continue to deliver positive outcomes for their citizens.  What is not yet 
clear is how authorities can continue to make this happen in practice if funding 
levels are cut further, what services local government may be responsible for in 
future, and how services are expected to transform and change to support the 
borough and its residents post Covid-19. 

 

12. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 

12.1. This report is concerned with the Council’s medium term financial strategy and as 
such, the financial implications are contained within the body of the report.  

 

13. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

13.1. The purpose of this report is to develop a medium term approach in support of 
better service and financial planning and an update of in-year financial pressures. 
Members are reminded that the legal requirements are centred on annual budget 
production, and that indicative decisions made for future years are not binding. 

13.2. The Local Government Act 2000 and subsequent regulations and guidance says 
that it is the responsibility of the full Council to set Lewisham’s budget, including all 
of its components and any plan or strategy for the control of the Council’s capital 
expenditure. Regulations provide that it is for the Executive to have overall 
responsibility for preparing the draft budget for submission to the full Council to 
consider. Once the budget has been set, it is for the Mayor & Cabinet to make 

Page 96

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

decisions in accordance with the statutory policy framework and the budgetary 
framework set by the Council.  

13.3. Where there are proposals for a reduction to a service which the Council is either 
under a statutory duty to provide, or which it is providing in the exercise of its 
discretionary powers and there is a legitimate expectation that it will consult, then 
consultation with all service users will be required before any decision to 
implement the proposed saving is taken. The outcome of such consultation must 
be reported to the Mayor. Where the proposed savings will have an impact upon 
staff, then the Council will have to consult the staff affected and their 
representatives in compliance with all employment legislative requirements and the 
Council's own employment policies.  

 

14. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

14.1. The Council has a public sector equality duty (the equality duty or the duty - The 
Equality Act 2010, or the Act).  It covers the following protected characteristics: 
age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy 
and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.  In summary, the 
Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 

conduct prohibited by the Act. 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a    protected 

characteristic and those who do not. 

 foster good relations between people who share a protected    characteristic 

and those who do not. 

14.2. It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, 
victimisation or other prohibited conduct, or to promote equality of opportunity or 
foster good relations between persons who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. It is a duty to have due regard to the need to achieve the goals 
listed above.  The weight to be attached to the duty will be dependent on the 
nature of the decision and the circumstances in which it is made. This is a matter 
for Mayor and Cabinet, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and proportionality. 
Mayor and Cabinet must understand the impact or likely impact of the decision on 
those with protected characteristics who are potentially affected by the decision. 
The extent of the duty will necessarily vary from case to case and due regard is 
such regard as is appropriate in all the circumstances. 

14.3. The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has issued Technical 
Guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance. The Council 
must have regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty. The 
Technical Guidance also covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty. 
This includes steps that are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The 
guidance does not have statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, 
as failure to do so without compelling reason would be of evidential value. The 
statutory code and the technical guidance can be found on the EHRC website. 

14.4. The EHRC has issued five guides for public authorities in England giving advice on 
the equality duty.  The ‘Essential’ guide provides an overview of the equality duty 
requirements including the general equality duty, the specific duties and who they 
apply to. It covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty including 
steps that are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The other four 
documents provide more detailed guidance on key areas and advice on good 
practice. 

Page 97

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 

15. CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

15.1. There are no environmental implications directly arising from the report.  

 

16. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

16.1. There are no crime and disorder implications directly arising from the report.  

 

17. HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS  

17.1. There are no health and wellbeing implications directly arising from the report. 

 

18. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

18.1. Budget Report 2021/22 – Full Council 3 March 2021 
https://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s77544/Council%20Budget%
202021-2022.pdf 

18.2. Financial Results 2020/21 – Mayor & Cabinet 9 June 2021 
https://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s81077/Financial%20Results
%202020-21.pdf 

 

19. GLOSSARY  

Term Definition 

Actuarial Valuation  

 

An independent report of the financial position of the Pension 
Fund carried out by an actuary every three years. The actuary 
reviews the Pension Fund assets and liabilities as at the date 
of the valuation and makes recommendations such as, 
employer's contribution rates and deficit recovery period, to 
the Council.  

Baseline Funding 
Level  

 

The amount of a local authority’s start-up funding allocation 
which is provided through the local share of the estimated 
business rates aggregate (England) at the outset of the 
scheme as forecast by the government. It forms the baseline 
against which tariffs and top-ups are calculated.  

Budget Requirement  

The Council’s revenue budget on general fund services after 
deducting funding streams such as fees and charges and any 
funding from reserves. (Excluding Council Tax, RSG and 
Business Rates)  

Business Rates 
Baseline  

The business rates baseline is equal to the amount of 
business rates generated locally in a specific year.  

Capital Expenditure  

Spend on assets that have a lasting value, for example, land, 
buildings and large items of equipment such as vehicles. This 
can also include indirect expenditure in the form of grants or 
loans to other persons or bodies.  

Page 98

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Term Definition 

Capital Programme  

 

The Council’s plan of future spending on capital projects such 
as buying land, buildings, vehicles and equipment.  

Capital Receipts  
These are proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets 
and can be used to finance new capital expenditure but 
cannot be used to finance revenue expenditure.  

Capping  

 

This is the power under which the government may limit the 
maximum level of local authority spending or increases in the 
level of spending year on year, which it considers excessive. It 
is a tool used by the government to restrain increases in 
Council Tax. The Council Tax cap, currently 2%, means that 
any local authority in England wanting to raise Council Tax by 
more than 2% in 2015/16 must consult the public in a 
referendum, Councils losing a referendum would have to 
revert to a lower increase in their bills.  

CIPFA  

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
are one of the UK accountancy institutes. Uniquely, CIPFA 
specialise in the public sector. Consequently CIPFA holds the 
responsibility for setting accounting standards for local 
government.  

Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group (CCG)  

Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) were created 
following the Health and Social Care Act in 2012, and 
replaced Primary Care Trusts on 1 April 2013. They are 
clinically-led statutory NHS bodies responsible for the planning 
and commissioning of health care services for their local area.  

Collection fund  

A statutory account maintained by the Council recording the 
amounts collected from Council Tax and Business Rates and 
from which it pays the precept to the Greater London 
Authority.  

Collection Fund 
surplus (or deficit)  

 

If the Council collects more or less than it expected at the start 
of the financial year, the surplus or deficit is shared with the 
major precepting authority, in Lewisham’s case this is the 
GLA, in proportion to the respective Council Taxes. These 
surpluses or deficits have to be returned to the Council 
taxpayer in the following year through lower or higher Council 
taxes. If, for example, the number of properties or the 
allowance for discounts, exemptions or appeals vary from 
those used in the Council Tax base, a surplus or deficit will 
arise. The Council generally achieves a surplus, which is 
shared with the GLA.  

Contingency  

 

This is money set-aside centrally in the Council’s base budget 
to meet the cost of unforeseen items of expenditure, such as 
higher than expected inflation or new responsibilities.  

Page 99

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Term Definition 

Council Tax Base  

 

The Council Tax base for a Council is used in the calculation 
of Council Tax and is equal to the number of Band D 
equivalent properties. To work this out, the Council counts the 
number of properties in each band and works out an 
equivalent number of Band D equivalent properties. The band 
proportions are expressed in ninths and are specified in the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992. They are: A 6/9, B 7/9, 
C 8/9, D 9/9, E 11/9, F 13/9, G 15/9 and H 18/9, so that Band 
A is six ninths of the ‘standard’ Band D, and so on.  

CPI and RPI  

 

The main inflation rate used in the UK is the CPI (Consumer 
Price Index), the Chancellor of the Exchequer bases the UK 
inflation target on the CPI. The CPI inflation target is currently 
set at 2%. The CPI differs from the RPI (Retail Price Index) in 
that CPI excludes housing costs. Also used is RPIX, which is 
a variation on RPI, one that removes mortgage interest 
payments.  

Dedicated schools 
grant (DSG)  

 

This is the ring-fenced specific grant that provides most of the 
government's funding for schools. This is distributed to 
schools by the Council using a formula agreed by the schools 
forum. 

Financial Regulations  

 

These are a written code of procedures set by a local 
authority, which provide a framework for the proper financial 
management of the authority. They cover rules for accounting 
and audit procedures, and set out administrative controls over 
the authorisation of payments, etc.   

Financial Year  

 

The local authority financial year commences on 1st April and 
finishes on the following 31 March. 

General Fund  

 

This is the main revenue fund of the local authority, day-to-day 
spending on services is met from the fund. Spending on the 
provision of housing however, must be charged to the 
separate Housing Revenue Account (HRA).  

Gross Domestic 
Product (GDP)  

 

GDP is defined as the value of all goods and services 
produced within the overall economy.  

Gross Expenditure  

 

The total cost of providing the Council's services, before 
deducting income from government grants, or fees and 
charges for services.  

Housing Revenue 
Account (HRA)  

 

A separate account of expenditure and income on housing 
that Lewisham must keep. The account is kept ring-fenced 
from other Council activities. The government introduced a 
new funding regime for social housing within the HRA from 
April 2012.  

Individual authority 
business rates 
baseline  

This is derived by apportioning the billing authority business 
rates baseline between billing and major precepting authorities 
on the basis of major precepting authority shares.  

Page 100

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Term Definition 

 

Levies  

 

A levy is an amount of money a local authority is compelled to 
collect (and include in its budget) on behalf of another 
organisation. Lewisham is required to pay levies to a number 
of bodies such as the London Pensions Fund Authority. 

Local share  

 

This is the percentage share of locally collected business 
rates that will be retained by local government, currently 50%.  

Net Expenditure  

 

This is gross expenditure less services income, but before 
deduction of government grant.  

New Homes Bonus  

 

Under this scheme Councils receive a new homes bonus 
(NHB) per each new property built in the borough for the first 
six years following completion. Payments are based on match 
funding the Council Tax raised on each property with an 
additional amount for affordable homes. It is paid in the form 
of an un-ringfenced grant.  

Prudential Borrowing  

 

Set of rules governing local authority borrowing for funding 
capital projects under a professional code of practice 
developed by CIPFA to ensure the Council’s capital 
investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable.  

Revenue Expenditure  

 

The day-to-day running expenses on services provided by 
Council.  

Revenue Support 
Grant (RSG)  

 

All authorities receive Revenue Support Grant from central 
government in addition to its baseline funding level under the 
local government finance system. An authority’s Revenue 
Support Grant amount plus its baseline funding level together 
comprises its Settlement Funding Assessment.  

Section 151 officer  

 

Legally Councils must appoint under section 151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 a named chief finance officer to give 
them financial advice, in Lewisham’s case this is the post of 
the Executive Director for Resources and Regeneration.  

Settlement Funding 
Assessment (SFA)  

 

A Local Authority’s share of the local government spending 
control total which comprises its Revenue Support Grant for 
the year in question and its baseline funding level.  

Specific Grants  

 

As the name suggests funding through a specific grant is 
provided for a specific purpose and cannot be spent on 
anything else e.g. The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) for 
schools. 

Page 101

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 

20. REPORT AUTHOR AND CONTACT 

20.1. For more information please contact David Austin, Director for Corporate Services, 

1st Floor Laurence House, 020 8314 9114, David.Austin@lewisham.gov.uk.  

20.2. Katharine Nidd, Strategic Finance Manager, 4th Floor Laurence House, 020 
8314 6651, Katharine.Nidd@lewisham.gov.uk. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 102

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

APPENDIX 1 – SUMMARY OF MTFS ASSUMPTIONS 

 

RESOURCE ENVELOPE  

 Main case  Pessimistic case  Optimistic Case  

Notional 
Revenue Support 
Grant  

2023/24 0% 
change to 
2022/23 levels, 
thereafter 20% 
reduction 
assumed each 
year  

2023/24 -20% 
change to 2022/23 
levels, and thereafter 
20% reduction 
assumed each year  

2023/24 and 
2024/25 0% change to 
2022/23 levels, 
thereafter 20% 
reduction assumed 
each year  

Business Rates  
1% real terms 

decrease in 
2023/24, then 
0% change in 
2024/25, 1% 
increase in 
2025/26 and 
then 1% 
increase in 
2026/27 on the 
rateable value 
base and top-up  

6m S31 grant 
in each year  

decrease in 2023/24, 
1% decrease in 
2024/25, then 0% 
change in 2025/26, 
and 1% increase in 
2026/27 on the 
rateable value base 
and top-up  

each year 

decrease in 2023/24, 
then 1% increase in 
2024/25, 1% increase 
in 2025/26 and then 
2% increase in 
2026/27 on the 
rateable value base 
and top-up  

each year 

Council Tax 
income  

3/24 
1.99% change in 
Council Tax level 
and 1% Social 
Care precept)  

each year in 
Council Tax 
base from 
2022/23 
onwards is: 
0.5%, 0.5%, 1% 
and 1%  

rate each year 
from 2022/23 
onwards is: 96%, 
97%, 97% and 
97% 

changes 
increase the cost 
of the scheme by 
the following 

1.99% change in 
Council Tax level (No 
Social Care precept)  

h 
year in Council Tax 
base from 2022/23 
onwards is: 0%, 0.5%, 
0.5% and 1.0%  

each year from 
2022/23 onwards is: 
94%, 95%, 96% and 
96% 

increase the cost of 
the scheme by the 
following each year 
from 2022/23: £4m, 
£3m, £2m, £1m 

1.99% change in 
Council Tax level, 1% 
inflation uplift and 1% 
Social Care precept  

year in Council Tax 
base from 2022/23 
onwards is: 1%, 1%, 
1.5% and 2%  

each year from 
2022/23 onwards is: 
96%, 97%, 98% and 
98% 

increase the cost of 
the scheme by the 
following each year 
from 2022/23: £1m, 
£1m, £0m, £0m 

 

Page 103

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

RESOURCE ENVELOPE  

 Main case  Pessimistic case  Optimistic Case  

each year from 
2022/23: £2m, 
£1m, £1m, £1m  

Surpluses/deficits 
on Collection 
Fund  

collection 
fund shortfall to 
be collected over 
3 years is 
assumed to be 
from 2022/23: 
£4m, £3m, £2m, 
and £1m 

shortfall to be 
collected over 3 years 
is assumed to be from 
2022/23: £6m, £5m, 
£4m, and £2m 

 

shortfall to be 
collected over 3 years 
is assumed to be from 
2022/23: £2m, £1m, 
£1m, and £0m 

EXPENDITURE  
 

 Main case  Pessimistic case  Optimistic Case  

Pay awards  and 2024/25 and 
2% each year 
afterwards  

 

3% in 2024/25 and 
2% each year 
afterwards  

 

years 2023/24 – 
2026/27  

 

General price 
inflation (incl. 
fees and 
charges)  

year in non-pay 
budgets from 
2022/23 is: 2.5%, 
2.5%, 2% and 2% 

 

each 
year in non-pay 
budgets from 
2022/23 is: 3.5%, 
3%, 3% and 2.5% 

 

year in non-pay 
budgets from 2022/23 
is: 2.5%, 2%, 2% and 
1.5% 

 

Pressures and 
risks  

2023/24, and 
£4.5m in 2024/25 - 
2026/27  

 

2023/24, and £4.5m 
in 2024/25 - 
2026/27  

 

2023/24, and £4.5m in 
2024/25 - 2026/27  

 

New legislation  
 

 

 

 

 

 

NB the MTFS assumes that any overspending is addressed in-year or met from 
reserves  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 104

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

APPENDIX 2 – IMPACT OF EACH ASSUMPTION IN PESSIMISTIC V OPTIMISTIC 
SCENARIO AND 1% CHANGE TO ASSUMPTION FROM BASE  

 

 

 

-1%

£1m

1%

0.5%

£2m

1%

1%

1%

-£2m

-1%

-0.5%

-2%

-£2m

-20%

-1%

 (6.50)  (5.50)  (4.50)  (3.50)  (2.50)  (1.50)  (0.50)  0.50  1.50  2.50

Non Pay Inflation

Pay Inflation

Ctax Deficit

Ctax Inflation Uplift

ASC Precept

Ctax Growth to Base

Ctax Collection Rate

BR Deficit

RSG

BR Growth to base

£m

Impact of Optimistic v Pessimistic Scenarios

Pessimistic Base Optimistic

0.95 

0.29 

1.32 

1.32 

1.28 

1.28 

1.38 

1.04 

 -  0.20  0.40  0.60  0.80  1.00  1.20  1.40  1.60

BR Growth to base

RSG

Ctax Collection Rate

Ctax Growth to Base

ASC Precept

Ctax Inflation Uplift

Pay Inflation

Non Pay Inflation

£m

1% Change to Assumptions

Page 105

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Public Accounts Select Committee 

 

Timeline of engagement and decision-making 

The meeting dates below were agreed at the Council’s Annual General Meeting on 25 May 
2022: 

 Thursday 30 June 2022 

 Thursday 22 September 2022 

 Monday 5 December 2022 (subject to change) 

 Monday 23 January 2023 (subject to change) 

 Thursday 16 March 2023 

 

Select Committee work programme report 

Date: 30 June 2022 

Key decision: No.  

Class: Part 1 (not restricted)  

Ward(s) affected: All (none specific) 

Contributor(s): Assistant Chief Executive (Scrutiny Manager) 

Outline and recommendations 

To ask members to discuss the Committee’s priorities for the 2022/23 municipal year and to 
agree an annual work programme. 

The Committee is asked to: 

 Consider the potential items set out in the draft work programme at appendix D. 

 Consider the policy context: the corporate strategy and Future Lewisham. 

 Discuss the Committee’s priorities and agree a work programme for 2022-23. 

 Note opportunities for public engagement, site visits and expert witnesses. 

 Appoint a climate change champion for the Committee. 

Page 107

Agenda Item 8



 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports 

1. Summary 

1.1. This report asks members to discuss and agree priorities for the Committee’s work 
programme for the year ahead and describes the process for approval by the business 
panel and ongoing monitoring by the Committee. 

2. Recommendations 

2.1. The Committee is asked to:  

 Consider the potential items set out in the draft work programme at appendix D. 

 Consider the policy context: the corporate strategy and ‘Future Lewisham’. 

 Discuss the Committee’s priorities and agree a work programme for 2022-23. 

 Note opportunities for public engagement, site visits and expert witnesses.  

 Appoint a climate change champion for the Committee. 

3. The role of the select committee 

3.1. The Committee has a key role in scrutinising the performance and supporting the 
development of the Council’s financial functions and budget setting processes.. It also 
has a role in engaging and reflecting the views of residents in relation to finance-
related matters. 

3.2. The Committee considers how the Council manages and uses money - it can: 

 Review the way Council managers make decisions about spending money. 

 Challenge the Council to use the most effective means of managing its finances. 

 Examine and challenge the Council’s plans for spending over the whole year - and 
delivering its budget. 

 Recommend ways to improve the Council’s processes for buying goods and 
services (and for managing services to get the best value). 

 Listen to the views of the Council’s Audit Panel and challenge it to do its best work. 

3.3. The Committee’s full terms of reference are set out in appendix A. 

4. Different types of scrutiny 

4.1. It’s important to think early on about the most effective way to scrutinise each item on 
the work programme. Some issues may only require an initial briefing, circulated by 
email, for information, some may require site visits and public engagement, and others 
may require detailed questioning at a formal Committee meeting and input from 
stakeholders. 

4.2. The Effective Scrutiny Guidelines at appendix C sets out 5 key principles to take into 
account when carrying out scrutiny: Prioritise; Be independent; Work Collectively; 
Engage; make SMART1 recommendations. This will help the Committee decide on the 
most appropriate approach for the issue at hand. 

                                                

1 Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Relevant, Time-bound, see: 
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/SMART_criteria and appendix C for context and further information. 

Page 108

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/SMART_criteria


 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports 

4.3. Members should also note the comments in the Local Democracy Review about how 
scrutiny can be even more effective, participative and open. Suggestions included: 

 Focusing on fewer issues more closely linked to council priorities. 

 More engagement with the public outside of formal meetings. 

 Individual scrutiny members leading on defined topic areas. 

 Contributing to new policy proposals at an early stage. 

4.4. Some of the most common scrutiny methods are described below, but members are 
encouraged to try new ways of gathering evidence and engaging the public. 

Standard items 

4.5. The majority of work programme items tend to be standard items, where scrutiny is 
carried out as part of a single meeting with members: 

 agreeing in advance the information and analysis needed 

 receiving an officer report presenting the relevant information 

 gathering additional evidence from activity outside of meetings 

 asking questions of the presenting officers or expert guests 

 agreeing recommendations to Mayor and Cabinet and partners. 

Policy development 

4.6. When the council is due to renew a policy the Committee may be asked to consider the 
options available and officer recommendations before a decision by Mayor and 
Cabinet. Select committees should be engaged at an early enough stage to be able to 
influence and contribute to the new policy. 

Performance monitoring 

4.7. Scrutiny can request a wide range of performance information to examine the 
effectiveness of council services. This includes monitoring data on key performance 
indicators and outcomes and assessing the delivery of particular programme or 
projects against set targets or timescales. 

Task and finish groups 

4.8. For issues that require more extensive evidence gathering, members may put forward 
a proposal for a task and finish group. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will 
agree which task and finish groups should be established, their membership, terms of 
reference and duration. Task and finish groups are independent of select committees 
and make recommendations directly to Mayor and Cabinet. 

Information items 

4.9. Some low-priority items may only require a briefing report to be circulated to 
Committee members by email, with questions put to the report author for written 
response. There is no provision for discussion of information items at Committee 
meetings. 

5. Agreeing the Committee’s work programme 

5.1. A draft work programme is attached at appendix D. It currently includes: 

 Key financial reports and regular reviews of financial performance 

 issues arising as a result of previous scrutiny 
5.2. It is for the Committee, however, to set its own work programme and agree the priority 

issues it would like to include – the Committee does not have to look into everything 
officers, the public or other members suggest. 

5.3. When deciding on issues to include in the work programme, the Committee should 

Page 109

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
http://www.lewishamdemocracy.com/


 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports 

consider the key services and programmes within the Committee’s remit, the criteria for 
selecting and prioritising topics (see flowchart below), upcoming Mayor and Cabinet 
decisions (appendix E) and avoid duplicating the work of any agreed task and finish 
groups. 

5.4. The Corporate Strategy 2018-22 sets out how the Council will deliver for its residents 
up to 2022. The Corporate Strategy provides an overarching framework and focus for 
all Council business; and items within the Committee’s work programme should be 
linked to the priorities in the strategy (appendix B). A new Corporate Strategy is 
currently in development, which will include a refreshed set of priorities and describe 
how the Council will address the social, economic and environmental challenges facing 
the borough up to 2026. Once this is in place, the Committee may wish to review its 
work programme in light of the new strategy. 

5.5. The Committee should also note and take into account the four strategic themes of the 
borough’s Covid-19 recovery plan, Future Lewisham, which support what we want for 
every single resident and that we know are what we need to focus on locally: An 
economically sound future; A healthy and well future; A greener future; and a future we 
all have a part in. 

5.6. The Committee is advised to schedule two substantive items per meeting to allow 
enough time for detailed discussions and the involvement of any invited witnesses or 
guests and to leave, leaving space available for any Mayor and Cabinet responses that 
arise throughout the year. The Committee should be responsive and if urgent business 
arises throughout the year the work programme can be amended with urgent business 
added and lower priority business removed. 

5.7. Provision is made for meetings to last for up to 2.5 hours, but the Committee should 
aim to manage its business within 2 hours. In exceptional cases the committee may 
decide to suspend standing orders and extend the meeting for a further 30 minutes to 
conclude any urgent business. 

5.8. The Committee should specify the information it would like for each item to ensure that 
officer reports and other evidence meets its needs. This should be done under the 
work programme item at every meeting. 

5.9. At the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting held in November 2021, it was 
recommended that each select committee should appoint a climate change champion 
to ensure that (a) the annual work programme takes climate change matters into 
account; and (b) officers are given appropriate steers in relation to the reports for 
specific items, to ensure they include relevant climate change considerations. The 
Committee is asked to consider appointing one of its members to take on this important 
role. 

 

Page 110

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports 

 

  

Page 111

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports 

5.10. There is no provision at Committee for the discussion of information items (reports to 
note). If required, they will be circulated to members by email with questions put to the 
report author for a written response. 

5.11. Some of the regular reports that fall under the Committee’s remit, which are presented 
as reports to note and are circulated to members by email in the first instance, include 
the following. They are only taken as substantive items if wider engagement and 
scrutiny would add value, in line with the prioritisation process. 

 Reserves update 

 Capital programme review 

5.12. Key financial reports and financial monitoring 

 Medium term financial strategy 

 Financial monitoring 

 Financial results 2021-22 

 Treasury management 

 Budget cuts 

 Council budget 2023-24 

5.13. Issues arising as a result of previous scrutiny 

 Budget pressures/management – key areas in previous years have been: children’s 
social care, adult social care, passenger transport and environment services. 

5.14. It is the Chair’s responsibility to keep abreast of other developments within the 
Committee’s remit, liaise regularly with the relevant cabinet member(s) and escalate 
any issues that require action by the Committee to the work programme as 
appropriate.  

6. Approval and ongoing monitoring of the work programme 

6.1. Each select committee is required to submit its work programme to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Business Panel for approval. This is to ensure a coordinated overview and 
scrutiny work programme across select committees that avoids duplication of effort and 
supports effective scrutiny. The Business Panel will meet on 19 July 2022. 

6.2. The Committee’s work programme can be reviewed at each meeting to allow urgent 
items to be added and lower priority issues to be removed. Any potential items should 
be considered against the priority criteria outlined earlier in this report. If a high-priority 
item is included, a lower-priority item should be removed. The Committee’s work 
programme must be achievable in the time available. 

7. Financial implications 

7.1. There are no direct financial implications arising from the implementation of the 
recommendations in this report. Items on the Committee’s work programme will all 
have financial implications and these will need to be considered as part of the reports 
on those items 

8. Legal implications 

8.1. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, all scrutiny select committees must 
devise and submit a work programme to the Business Panel at the start of each 
municipal year. 

Page 112

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports 

9. Equalities implications 

9.1. Equality Act 2010 brought together all previous equality legislation in England, 
Scotland and Wales. The Act included a new public sector equality duty, replacing the 
separate duties relating to race, disability and gender equality. The duty came into 
force on 6 April 2011. It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

9.2. The Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. 

9.3. There may be equalities implications arising from items on the work programme and all 
activities undertaken by the Select Committee will need to give due consideration to 
this. 

10. Climate change and environmental implications 

10.1. There are no direct climate change or environmental implications arising from the 
implementation of the recommendations in this report. However, in February 2019 
Lewisham Council declared a Climate Emergency and proposed a target to make the 
borough carbon neutral by 2030. An action plan to achieve this target was 
subsequently agreed by Mayor and Cabinet (following pre-decision scrtuiny by the 
Sustainable Development Select Committee)2. The plan incorporates all areas of the 
Council’s work. Items on the work programme may well have climate change and 
environmental implications and reports considered by the Committee should 
acknowledge this. 

11. Crime and disorder implications 

11.1. There are no direct crime and disorder implications arising from the implementation of 
the recommendations in this report. Items on the Committee’s work programme may 
have crime and disorder implications and these will need to be considered as part of 
the reports on those items. 

12. Health and wellbeing implications 

12.1. There are no direct health and wellbeing implications arising from the implementation 
of the recommendations in this report. Items on the Committee’s work programme may 
have health and wellbeing implications and these will need to be considered as part of 
the reports on those items. 

13. Report author and contact 

13.1. If you have any questions about this report then please contact: Timothy Andrew 
(Scrutiny Manager) timothy.andrew@lewisham.gov.uk (020 8314 7916).   

                                                

2 See https://lewisham.gov.uk/TacklingTheClimateEmergency for a summary of the Council’s work in 
this area. 

Page 113

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
mailto:timothy.andrew@lewisham.gov.uk
https://lewisham.gov.uk/TacklingTheClimateEmergency


 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports 

14. Appendices 

Appendix A – Committee terms of reference (see below) 

Appendix B – Council corporate priorities (see below) 

Appendix C – Effective scrutiny principles (see below) 

Appendix D – Draft work programme (see attached) 

Appendix  E – Notice of forthcoming executive decisions (see attached) 

  

Page 114

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports 

Appendix A 

The following roles are common to all select committees: 

(a) General functions 

 To review and scrutinise decisions made and actions taken in relation to executive and 
non-executive functions 

 To make reports and recommendations to the Council or the executive, arising out of such 
review and scrutiny in relation to any executive or non-executive function 

 To make reports or recommendations to the Council and/or Executive in relation to matters 
affecting the area or its residents 

 The right to require the attendance of members and officers to answer questions includes 
a right to require a member to attend to answer questions on up and coming decisions 

(b) Policy development 

 To assist the executive in matters of policy development by in depth analysis of strategic 
policy issues facing the Council for report and/or recommendation to the Executive or 
Council or committee as appropriate 

 To conduct research, community and/or other consultation in the analysis of policy options 
available to the Council  

 To liaise with other public organisations operating in the borough – both national, regional 
and local, to ensure that the interests of local people are enhanced by collaborative 
working in policy development wherever possible 

(c) Scrutiny 

 To scrutinise the decisions made by and the performance of the Executive and other 
committees and Council officers both in relation to individual decisions made and over time 

 To scrutinise previous performance of the Council in relation to its policy 
objectives/performance targets and/or particular service areas 

 To question members of the Executive or appropriate committees and executive directors 
personally about decisions 

 To question members of the Executive or appropriate committees and executive directors 
in relation to previous performance whether generally in comparison with service plans and 
targets over time or in relation to particular initiatives which have been implemented 

 To scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the borough and to invite them to 
make reports to and/or address the select committee/Business Panel and local people 
about their activities and performance 

 To question and gather evidence from any person outside the Council (with their consent) 

 To make recommendations to the Executive or appropriate committee and/or Council 
arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process 

(d) Community representation 

 To promote and put into effect closer links between overview and scrutiny members and 
the local community 

 To encourage and stimulate an enhanced community representative role for overview and 
scrutiny members including enhanced methods of consultation with local people 

 To liaise with the Council’s ward assemblies so that the local community might participate 
in the democratic process and where it considers it appropriate to seek the views of the 
ward assemblies on matters that affect or are likely to affect the local areas, including 
accepting items for the agenda of the appropriate select committee from ward assemblies. 

 To keep the Council’s local ward assemblies under review and to make recommendations 
to the Executive and/or Council as to how participation in the democratic process by local 

Page 115

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports 

people can be enhanced 

 To receive petitions, deputations and representations from local people and other 
stakeholders about areas of concern within their overview and scrutiny remit, to refer them 
to the Executive, appropriate committee or officer for action, with a recommendation or 
report if the committee considers that necessary 

 To consider any referral within their remit referred to it by a member under the Councillor 
Call for Action, and if they consider it appropriate to scrutinise decisions and/or actions 
taken in relation to that matter, and/or make recommendations/report to the Executive (for 
executive matters) or the Council (non-executive matters). 

(e) Finance 

 To exercise overall responsibility for finances made available to it for use in the 
performance of its overview and scrutiny function. 

(f) Work programme 

 As far as possible to draw up a draft annual work programme in each municipal year for 
consideration by the overview and scrutiny Business Panel.  Once approved by the 
Business Panel, the relevant select committee will implement the programme during that 
municipal year.  Nothing in this arrangement inhibits the right of every member of a select 
committee (or the Business Panel) to place an item on the agenda of that select committee 
(or Business Panel respectively) for discussion. 

 The Council and the Executive will also be able to request that the overview and scrutiny 
select committee research and/or report on matters of concern and the select committee 
will consider whether the work can be carried out as requested. If it can be accommodated, 
the select committee will perform it.  If the committee has reservations about performing 
the requested work, it will refer the matter to the Business Panel for decision. 

 
Public Accounts Select Committee has specific responsibilities for the following: 

(a) To exercise all the functions and roles of the overview and scrutiny committee in relation 
to the following matters: 

 To make reports and recommendations to the Council or the Executive which 
promote the better custodianship of the Council’s finances and to make 
recommendations for best financial practice across the authority. 

 To investigate the possibilities for improving the Council’s financial management 
practice and to make reports and recommendations to Executive or Council as 
appropriate. 

 To encourage the highest standards of financial custodianship where necessary 
overseeing training activity for all members in this area. 

 To consult on and to comment on and make recommendations to the Executive in 
respect of the actual and proposed contents of the Council’s budget and without 
limiting the general remit of the committee, to hold the Executive to account for its 
performance in respect of all budgetary matters. 

 To receive reports as appropriate from the Audit Panel in respect of their overview of 
contract procedure rules and financial regulations. 

 To make recommendations and reports for consideration by the Executive or Council 
to improve procurement practice. 

 To scrutinise the effectiveness of the Audit Panel. 
  

Page 116

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports 

Appendix B 

Council corporate priorities 2018-2022 

Items within the work programme should be linked to the priorities of the Council’s Corporate 
Strategy for 2018-2022 (set out below): 

Open Lewisham - Lewisham is a welcoming place of safety for all, where we 
celebrate the diversity that strengthens us. 

Tackling the housing crisis - Everyone has a decent home that is secure and 
affordable. 

Giving children and young people the best start in life - Every child has 
access to an outstanding and inspiring education, and is given the support they 
need to keep them safe, well and able to achieve their full potential. 

Building an inclusive local economy - Everyone can access high-quality job 
opportunities, with decent pay and security in our thriving and inclusive local 
economy. 

Delivering and defending: health, social care and support - Ensuring 
everyone receives the health, mental health, social care and support services 
they need. 

Making Lewisham greener - Everyone enjoys our green spaces, and benefits 
from a healthy environment as we work to protect and improve our local 
environment. 

Building safer communities - Every resident feels safe and secure living here 
as we work together towards a borough free from the fear of crime. 

  

Page 117

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/open-lewisham
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/tackling-the-housing-crisis
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/giving-children-and-young-people-the-best-start-in-life
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/building-an-inclusive-local-economy
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/making-lewisham-greener
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/building-safer-communities


 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports 

Appendix C 

Effective Scrutiny Guidelines 

At Lewisham we: 
 
1. Prioritise 
 

It is more effective to look at a small number of key issues in an in-depth way, than skim the 
surface of everything falling within scrutiny’s remit. We try to focus on issues of concern to 
the community and/or matters that are linked to our corporate priorities. We only add items 
to the work programme if we are certain our consideration of the matter will make a real and 
tangible difference. 

 
2. Are independent  
 

Scrutiny is led by Scrutiny Members. Scrutiny Members are in charge of the work 
programme and, for every item, we specify what evidence we require and what information 
we would like to see in any officer reports that are prepared. We are not whipped by our 
political party or unduly influenced by the Cabinet or senior officers. 

 
3. Work collectively 
 

If we collectively agree in advance what we want to achieve in relation to each item under 
consideration, including what the key lines of enquiry should be, we can work as a team to 
question witnesses and ensure that all the required evidence is gathered. Scrutiny is 
impartial and the scrutiny process should be free from political point scoring and not used to 
further party political objectives. 

 
4. Engage 
 

Involving residents helps scrutiny access a wider range of ideas and knowledge, listen to a 
broader range of voices and better understand the opinions of residents and service users. 
Engagement helps ensure that recommendations result in residents’ wants and needs 
being more effectively met.  

 
5. Make SMART evidence-based recommendations 

We make recommendations that are based on solid, triangulated evidence – where a 
variety of sources of evidence point to a change in practice that will positively alter 
outcomes. We recognise that recommendations are more powerful if they are: 
 Specific (simple, sensible, significant). 
 Measurable (meaningful, motivating). 
 Achievable (agreed, attainable). 
 Relevant (reasonable, realistic and resourced, results-based). 
 Time bound (time-based, time limited, time/cost limited, timely, time-sensitive). 

 

 

Page 118

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


Item Type of item Priority 30-Jun-22 22-Sep-22 tbd/12/2022 tbd/01/2023 16-Mar-23

Medium term financial strategy Standard item All

Financial monitoring Performance monitoring All (period 2) (period 5) (period 8)

Financial results 2021-22 Performance monitoring All

Budget Pressures/Management Performance monitoring All

Treasury management Performance monitoring All Draft 23-24 strategy

Budget cuts Performance monitoring All

Council budget 2023-24 Policy development All

??? Tbd All

Commercialisation Performance monitoring All

Audit Panel update Performance monitoring All

Information items

Reserves update Information All

Capital programme review Information All

Treasury management mid-year review Information All

Asset strategy update Information All
Income generation and commercialisation update Information All

Public Accounts Select Committee Work Programme 2022-23

P
age 119



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
  

 
 

 

  
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

 

   
 

Forward Plan July 2022 - October 2022 
 
 
This Forward Plan sets out the key decisions the Council expects to take during the next four months.  
 
Anyone wishing to make representations on a decision should submit them in writing as soon as possible to the relevant contact officer (shown as number (7) in 
the key overleaf). Any representations made less than 3 days before the meeting should be sent toKevin Flaherty 0208 3149327, the Local Democracy Officer, 
at the Council Offices or kevin.flaherty@lewisham.gov.uk. However the deadline will be 4pm on the working day prior to the meeting. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A “key decision”* means an executive decision which is likely to: 
 
(a) result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the 

decision relates; 
 

(b) be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards. 

 
 

P
age 121



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

February 2022 
 

Leisure Contract Extension 
 

15/06/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

James Lee, Director of 
Communities, 
Partnerships and Leisure 
and Councillor Andre 
Bourne, Cabinet Member 
for Culture and Leisure 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

November 2021 
 

Blackheath Joint Events Policy 
2022-2027 
 

15/06/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Nick Pond, Parks and 
Open Space Contracts 
and Service Development 
Manager and Patrick 
Codd, Assistant to the 
Executive 
 

 
  

 

February 2022 
 

Out of Hours Switchboard 
 

15/06/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Mark Ferris and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Strategy 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Authority to procure a new 
contract for 0-19 Public Health 
Nursing (Health Visiting and 
School Health Service 
 

15/06/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Emily Newell, Joint 
Commissioner  0-19 
Health and Maternity and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Levelling Up Fund bid 
 

15/06/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

John Bennett, Head of 
Economy, Jobs and 
Partnerships and 
Councillor Kim Powell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Businesses, Jobs and 
Skills 
 

 
  

 

P
age 122



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

May 2022 
 

Building for Lewisham - 
Ladywell Update Part 1 & 2 
 

15/06/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

James Ringwood, 
Housing Delivery 
Manager and Councillor 
Brenda Dacres, Deputy 
Mayor and Cabinet 
Member for Housing 
Development and 
Planning 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Energy Grants, Covid 
Additional relief Fund (CARF) 
scheme and Household 
Support Fund updates 
 

15/06/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Mick Lear, Service 
Manager, Benefits and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet Member for 
Housing Development 
and Planning 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Compute & Storage 
Infrastructure Replacement 
 

15/06/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

 and Councillor Amanda 
De Ryk, Cabinet Member 
for Finance and Strategy 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Permission to tender (Mental 
Health Supported Housing) 
 

15/06/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

 and Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

November 2021 
 

Award of Corporate Estate 
Maintenance Programme 
Phases 1 & 2 works contract 
 

28/06/22 
Executive Director 
for Housing, 
Regeneration & 
Environment 
 

Akweley Badger, Project 
Support Officer and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Strategy 
 

 
  

 

January 2022 
 

Contract for Statutory Funeral 
Provision 
 

28/06/22 
Executive Director 
for Community 
Services 

Corinne Moocarme, Joint 
Commissioning Lead, 
Community Support and 
Care, Community 

 
  

 

P
age 123



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 Services, LBL and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

May 2022 
 

Catford Library Winslade Way 
works - Contract Award 
 

28/06/22 
Executive Director 
for Corporate 
Services 
 

Kplom Lotsu, SGM 
Capital Programmes and 
Councillor Andre Bourne, 
Cabinet Member for 
Culture and Leisure (job 
share) 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Procurement of Learning and 
Development Services Provider 
 

28/06/22 
Executive Director 
for Corporate 
Services 
 

 and Councillor Amanda 
De Ryk, Cabinet Member 
for Finance and Strategy 
 

 
  

 

June 2022 
 

Digital Infrastructure Fibre 
Wayleave 
 

28/06/22 
Executive Director 
for Corporate 
Services 
 

 and Councillor Amanda 
De Ryk, Cabinet Member 
for Finance and Strategy 
 

 
  

 

June 2022 
 
 

Expert Assessors Services for 
Concessionary Award Services 
 

28/06/22 
Executive Director 
for Corporate 
Services 
 

 and Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

June 2022 
 
 

Procurement of Replacement 
Housing Management System 
and implementation of 
Customer Relationship 
Management System 
 

28/06/22 
Executive Director 
for Corporate 
Services 
 

 and Councillor Amanda 
De Ryk, Cabinet Member 
for Finance and Strategy 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Expert Assessors services for 
Concessionary Award 

28/06/22 
Executive Director 

 and Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 

 
  

 P
age 124



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Schemes 
 

for Corporate 
Services 
 

Member for Children's 
Services and School 
Performance 
 

May 2022 
 

Procurement of a replacement 
Housing Management System 
and implementation of a 
Customer Relationship 
Management System. 
 

28/06/22 
Executive Director 
for Corporate 
Services 
 

 and Councillor Amanda 
De Ryk, Cabinet Member 
for Finance and Strategy 
 

 
  

 

January 2022 
 

Location Priority Procurement 
Strategy 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Ella McCarthy, Housing 
Partnership and Insight 
Manager and Councillor 
Paul Bell, Cabinet 
Member for Health and 
Adult Social Care 
 

 
  

 

January 2022 
 

Request to extend the Extra 
Care Housing Support Contract 
for Conrad Court, Marine 
Wharf, Deptford. 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Heather Hughes, Joint 
Commissioner, Learning 
Disabilities and Councillor 
Chris Best 
 

 
  

 

January 2022 
 

Extra Care Housing Support 
Contract for Cinnamon Court, 
Deptford and Cedar Court 
Grove Park. 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Heather Hughes, Joint 
Commissioner, Learning 
Disabilities and Councillor 
Chris Best 
 

 
  

 

February 2022 
 

Building for Lewisham Budget 
requirements 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

James Ringwood, 
Housing Delivery 
Manager and Councillor 
Paul Bell, Cabinet 
Member for Health and 
Adult Social Care 
 

 
  

 

November 2021 
 

Housing Infrastructure Funding 
A205 Realignment 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 

Patrick Dubeck, Director 
of Inclusive Regeneration 

 
  

 P
age 125



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

  and Patrick Codd, 
Assistant to the Executive 
 

January 2022 
 

Permission to Procure Extra 
Care Housing at Hazelhurst 
Court 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Heather Hughes, Joint 
Commissioner, Learning 
Disabilities and Councillor 
Chris Best 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Permission to Procure (Stop 
Smoking Contract) 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

 and Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

February 2022 
 

Building for Lewisham 
Appropriation for Planning 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

James Ringwood, 
Housing Delivery 
Manager and Councillor 
Paul Bell, Cabinet 
Member for Health and 
Adult Social Care 
 

 
  

 

November 2021 
 

Lewisham Air Quality Action 
Plan 2022-2027 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Eliane Foteu, 
Environmental Protection 
Manager and Patrick 
Codd, Assistant to the 
Executive 
 

 
  

 

October 2021 
 

Approval of Flood Risk 
Management Strategy 2022-27 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Martin O'Brien, Climate 
Resilience Manager and 
Patrick Codd, Assistant to 
the Executive 
 

 
  

 

November 2021 
 

New Cross Road Acquisition 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

James Ringwood, 
Housing Delivery 
Manager and Councillor 
Paul Bell, Cabinet 
Member for Health and 

 
  

 

P
age 126



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Adult Social Care 
 

May 2022 
 

5th Annual Besson Street 
Business Plan 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Angela Bryan, Strategic 
Development Officer and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet Member for 
Housing Development 
and Planning 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Approval for the Local 
Development Scheme (LDS) 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Syme, Head of 
Strategic Planning and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet Member for 
Housing Development 
and Planning 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Approval of the Lewisham 
Local Plan - Regulation 19 
Proposed Submission 
document for public 
consultation 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Syme, Head of 
Strategic Planning and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet Member for 
Housing Development 
and Planning 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Approval for the making of an 
Article 4 Direction E to class 
C3 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Syme, Head of 
Strategic Planning and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet Member for 
Housing Development 
and Planning 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Approval for the making of an 
Article 4 Direction C3 to Class 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 

David Syme, Head of 
Strategic Planning and 

 
  

 P
age 127



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

C4 
 

 Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet Member for 
Housing Development 
and Planning 
 

June 2022 
 
 

Annual Complaints Report 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

 and Councillor Amanda 
De Ryk, Cabinet Member 
for Finance and Strategy 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Adding a SEN Resource Base 
to Edmund Waller Primary 
School 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Matthew Henaughan, 
Head of Business, 
Infrastructure, 
Compliance and 
Education and Councillor 
Chris Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Children's 
Services and School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Adding a SEN Resource Base 
to Forster Park Primary School 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Matthew Henaughan, 
Head of Business, 
Infrastructure, 
Compliance and 
Education and Councillor 
Chris Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Children's 
Services and School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Expansion of Drumbeat School 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Matthew Henaughan, 
Head of Business, 
Infrastructure, 
Compliance and 
Education and Councillor 
Chris Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Children's 

 
  

 

P
age 128



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Services and School 
Performance 
 

May 2022 
 

Change of Age Range at 
Fairlawn Primary School 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Matthew Henaughan, 
Head of Business, 
Infrastructure, 
Compliance and 
Education and Councillor 
Chris Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Children's 
Services and School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Permission to Procure New 
Hope Housing Project 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Polly Pascoe, Integrated 
Commissioning Manager 
and Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Permission to Procure 
Lewisham Wellbeing Service 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Polly Pascoe, Integrated 
Commissioning Manager 
and Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Permission to Procure 
Lewisham Dementia Hub 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Polly Pascoe, Integrated 
Commissioning Manager 
and Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

June 2022 
 

Future of Housing 
Management: Options 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 

 and Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Deputy Mayor 

 
  

 P
age 129



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 Appraisal 
 

 and Cabinet Member for 
Housing Development 
and Planning 
 

June 2022 
 
 

Learning Disability Framework 
Permission to procure 
contracts for Supported 
Livingand related contract 
extensions 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Joanne Lee, Contracts 
Monitoring Officer and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

June 2022 
 
 

Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Katharine Nidd, Strategic 
Procurement and 
Commercial Services 
Manager and Councillor 
Amanda De Ryk, Cabinet 
Member for Finance and 
Strategy 
 

 
  

 

June 2022 
 
 

Approval for Contract Award 
former Catford Constitutional 
Club 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

 and Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet Member for 
Housing Development 
and Planning 
 

 
  

 

June 2022 
 
 

Authority to procure Specialist 
Short Breaks for overnight, 
Holiday & Weekend 
 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Councillor Suzannah 
Clarke, Chair Strategic 
Planning and Councillor 
Chris Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Children's 
Services and School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

June 2022 
 
 

Authority to procure Specialist 
Short Breaks/Personalised 
Care & Support 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

 and Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Children's 

 
  

 

P
age 130



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 Services and School 
Performance 
 

May 2022 
 

Meliot Centre Relocation 
Contract Award 
 

19/07/22 
Executive Director 
for Housing, 
Regeneration & 
Environment 
 

 and Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

June 2022 
 
 

Authority to Procure Mediation 
and Disagreement Resolution 
Service 
 

19/07/22 
Executive Director 
for Children and 
Young People 
 

 and Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Children's 
Services and School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

June 2022 
 
 

Authority to procure SEN and 
Disabilities Advice and Support 
Services 
 

19/07/22 
Executive Director 
for Children and 
Young People 
 

 and Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Children's 
Services and School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

June 2022 
 
 

Authority to procure Specialist 
Short Breaks - Mentoring 
Programme 
 

19/07/22 
Executive Director 
for Children and 
Young People 
 

 and Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Children's 
Services and School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

June 2022 
 
 

Authority to Procure SEN 
Transport - Dynamic 
Purchasing System Licence 
 

19/07/22 
Executive Director 
for Children and 
Young People 
 

 and Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Children's 
Services and School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

June 2022 
 
 

Authority to procure ASD Post 
Diagnosis Parent Support 
 

19/07/22 
Executive Director 
for Children and 

 and Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Children's 

 
  

 

P
age 131



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Young People 
 

Services and School 
Performance 
 

February 2022 
 

BfL Programme - Approval to 
enter into contract 
 

14/09/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

James Ringwood, 
Housing Delivery 
Manager and Councillor 
Paul Bell, Cabinet 
Member for Health and 
Adult Social Care 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Watergate Special School 
Expansion budget approval 
and approval to procure 
 

14/09/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Iqbal Iffat, Project 
Manager Capital 
Programme Delivery and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Children's 
Services and School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Permission to Procure new 
registered provider for 
supported accommodation and 
building management 
(Northover and Amersham). 
 

14/09/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

 and Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Children's 
Services and School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

On Street Advertising Contract 
Variation and Extension 
 

14/09/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

 and Councillor Amanda 
De Ryk, Cabinet Member 
for Finance and Strategy 
 

 
  

 

January 2022 
 

Lewisham Autism Strategy 
 

14/09/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Polly Pascoe, Integrated 
Commissioning Manager 
and Councillor Chris Best 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Approval for s106 monies to go 
to Deptford Challenge Trust 
 

14/09/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

 and Councillor Kim 
Powell, Cabinet Member 
for Businesses, Jobs and 

 
  

 

P
age 132



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Skills 
 

June 2022 
 
 

Reduction and Recycling Plan 
2023-2025 
 

14/09/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Wendy Nicholas, 
Strategic Waste and 
Environment Manager 
and Councillor Louise 
Krupski, Cabinet Member 
for Environment and 
Climate 
 

 
  

 

June 2022 
 
 

Maximising Wellbeing of 
Carers 
 

14/09/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tristan Brice, Associate 
Director, Community 
Support and Care and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

June 2022 
 
 

Public Realm Call Off 
Framework 
 

14/09/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Louise McBride, Head of 
Highways & Transport 
and Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet Member for 
Housing Development 
and Planning 
 

 
  

 

June 2022 
 
 

Catford Regeneration 
Partnership Ltd Update 
 

14/09/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kplom Lotsu, SGM 
Capital Programmes and 
Councillor Kim Powell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Businesses, Jobs and 
Skills 
 

 
  

 

June 2022 
 
 

Parker House Development 
Agreement 
 

14/09/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Karen Barke, Head of 
Strategic Development 
and Councillor Brenda 

 
  

 

P
age 133



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Dacres, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet Member for 
Housing Development 
and Planning 
 

June 2022 
 
 

Carer Information Advice and 
Support Services - permission 
to procure 
 

14/09/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Joanne Lee, Contracts 
Monitoring Officer and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

June 2022 
 
 

Lewisham and Lee Green LTN 
Monitoring Update 
 

14/09/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Zahur Khan, Director of 
Public Realm and 
Councillor Louise 
Krupski, Cabinet Member 
for Environment and 
Climate 
 

 
  

 

June 2022 
 
 

Catford Regeneration 
Partnership Ltd Update 
 

28/09/22 
Council 
 

Kplom Lotsu, SGM 
Capital Programmes and 
Councillor Kim Powell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Businesses, Jobs and 
Skills 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Lewisham Play Strategy 2022 - 
2027 
 

05/10/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

 and Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Children's 
Services and School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

May 2022 
 

Approval to appoint operator 
for concessions contract at 
Beckenham Place Park lake 
 

05/10/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

 and Councillor Andre 
Bourne, Cabinet Member 
for Culture and Leisure 
(job share) 

 
  

 

P
age 134



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

P
age 135



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

      

      

P
age 136


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the meeting held on 17 March 2022
	3 Declarations of interest
	5 Financial outturn report 2021-22
	05 Financial Outturn Report 2021-22 300622

	6 Financial monitoring 2022-23
	7 Medium term financial strategy
	07 Appendix 1 - Draft medium term financial strategy 300622

	8 Select Committee work programme
	08 Appendix D - Draft work programme 2022-23
	08 Appendix E - Forward plan of key decsions


